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JOINT-STOCK COMPANY BELGRADE NIKOLA TESLA AIRPORT

In accordance with Article 53 of the Capital Market Act (Official Gazette of RS No. 31/2011,
112/2015 and 108/2016) and in accordance with the Regulations on the content, form and
manner of publication of annual, semi-annual and quarterly reports of public companies
("Official Gazette of RS No.14/2012, 5/2015 and 24/2017), Joint Stock Company Belgrade
Nikola Tesla Airport announces:

REPORT FOR THE SECOND QUARTER OF 2017
CONTAINING ALSO DATA

FOR THE PERIOD I-VI 2017
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JSC AIRPORT NIKOLA TESLA BELGRADE

FINANCIALSTATEMENTS June 30, 2017

INCOME SHEET
in the period from January 1 to June 30, 2017

for the period from 01/01/2017 untii 30/06/2017
-inthousand RSD -

60 to 65,
4 A. OPERATING REVENUES {1002 + 1009 + 1016 +
except 62 & 1017) { 1001 2,371,317 4,330,402 2,160,664 3,920,357
63
{ REVENUES FROM SALE OF GOODS {1003 +
10,11
60 1004 + 1005 + 1006 + 1007+ 1008) 1002 5 ,115 10,421 34,305 56,054
1. Revenues from sale of goods to parent
600 companies and subsidiaries in domestic 1003
market
2. Revenues from sale of goods to parent
601 companies and subsidiaries in foreign 1004
markets
602 3. Revenues.fror.n sale of goods to other 1005
related parties in domestic market
603 4. Revenues.fror.n sale.of goods to other 1006
related parties in foreign markets
604 5. Revenues from sale of goods in domestic 1007 5 10,115 10,421 659 998
market
. i le of in forei ! !
605 6. Revenues from sale of goods in foreign 1008 5 0 o 33,646 55,056
markets :
1l REVENUES FROM SALE OF PRODUCTS AND |
61 SERVICES 1009 6,7,8 2,112,241 3,872,550 1,895,733 3,456,639

(1010 + 1011 + 1012 + 1013 + 1014 + 1015)
1. Revenues from sale of products and

610 services to parent com.and subsidiariesin 1010
domestic market
2. Revenues from sale of products and

611 services to parent com.and subsidiaries in 1011
foreign markets
3. Revenues from sale of products and

612 services to otherrelated parties in domestic 1012
market
4, Revenues from sale of products and
613 services to otherrelated parties in foreign 1013
markets
5. Revenues from sale of products and
614 services to otherrelated parties in domestic 1014 6 885,646 1,641,063 832,783 1,477,517
market

) cts and )
6. Revenues from sale of products an 1015 7 1,226,595 2,231,487 1,062,950 1,979,122

615 . . .
services in foreign markets
11 REVENUES FROM PREMIUMS, SUBSIDIES,
1
64 GRANTS, DONATIONS ETC. 016 0 0 230 230
65 IV OTHER OPERATING REVENUES 1017 9 248,961 447,431 230,396 407,434




JSC AIRPORT NIKOLA TESLA BELGRADE

FINANCIALSTATEMENTS June 30, 2017

INCOME SHEET (continued)
in the period from January 1 to June 30, 2017

for the period from 01/01/2017 until 30/06/2017

-in thousand RSD -

50 to 55, B. OPERATING EXPENDITURES
except 62 & 1018 1,204,703 2,575,858 1,171,360 2,389,172

(1019 ~ 1020 ~ 1021 + 1022 + 1023 + 1024 +
1025 + 1026 + 1027 + 1028+ 1029) 2 0

63

50 1. PURCHASE VALUE OF SOLD GOODS 1019 10 14,052 14,259 29,036 51,234

. i i f
6 Il. revenues from activation of use of own 1020 0 0
products and goods

11, INCREASE OF STOCK VALUE OF UNFINISHED

630 AND FINISHED PRODUCTS AND UNFINISHED 1021
SERVICES
1V. DECREASE OF STOCK VALUE OF
631 UNFINISHED AND FINISHED PRODUCTS AND 1022
UNFINISHED SERVICES
gi;xcept V. COSTS OF MATERIALS 1023 11 21,999 95,781 26,222 76,179
513 V1. COSTS OF FUEL AND ENERGY 1024 12 57,122 140,475 54,494 127,286
V. COSTS OF SALARIES, SALARY
52 COMPENSATIONS AND OTHER PERSONAL 1025 13 744,575 1,505,235 713,889 1,419,313
EXPENSES
53 Viit, COSTS OF PRODUCTION SERVICES 1026 14 97,775 203,743 67,231 168,397
540 IX. AMORTISATION COSTS 1027 15 131,412 366,398 211,877 416,893
54110 549 X. COSTS OF LONG-TERM RESERVING 1028 16 5,370 5,370 2,000 2,000,
55 Xi. INTANGIBLE COSTS 1029 17 132,394 244,537 66,611 127,870
V. OPERATING PROFIT {1001 ~ 1018) 2 0 1030 1,166,614 1,754,544 989,304 1,531,185
G. OPERATING LOSS {1018 - 1001} 2 0 1031
66 D. FINANCIAL REVENUES (1033 + 1038 + 1039) 1032 41,033 78,994 64,714 126,312
66 except  |. FINANCIAL REVENUES FROM RELATED
662,663 &  PARTIES AND OTHER FINANCIAL REVENUES 1033 0 0
664 {1034 + 1035 + 1036 + 1037}
560 1. Fmancu.a{ re.venues from parent company 1034
and subsidiaries
661 2. F|r\anaal revenues from other related 1035
parties
665 3. Revrenues from par:tl.upat;on‘ 1.n profit of 1036
associated legal entities and joint ventures
669 4. Other financial revenues 1037
662 11, INTEREST REVENUE (FROM THIRD PARTIES) 1038 18 25,690 47,424 27,939 53,406

11, FOREIGN EXCHANGE GAINS AND
663 & 664  POS.EFFECTS OF CURRENCY CLAUSE (TOWARD 1039 19 15,343 31,570 36,775 72,906
THIRD PARTIES)




JSC AIRPORT NIKOLA TESLA BELGRADE

FINANCIALSTATEMENTS June 30, 2017

INCOME SHEET (continued)
in the period from January 1 to June 30, 2017

for the period from OU01/2017 untl 30/08/2017

inthousand RSO -

. FINANCIAL EXPENDITURES (1041 + 1046 +

1 145,15 164,2 28,072 4,

1047) 040 5,158 64,203 8,0 54,494
. FINANCIAL EXPENDITURES FROM RELATED
PARTIES RELATION AND OTHER 1041 0 0
FIN.EXPENDITURES (1042 + 1043 + 1044 + 1045)
1. Financial expenditures from relation with 1042
parent companies and subsidiaries
2. Financial expenditures from relation with

X 1043
other related parties
3. Expenditures from participation in the
loss of associated legal entities and joint 1044
ventures
4, Other financial expenditures 1045
1. INTEREST EXPENDITURES (TOWARD THIRD 1046 20 10,136 19,001 11,550 21,640
PERSONS)
11{. FOREIGN EXCHANGE LOSSES AND
NEG.EFFECTS OF CURRENCY CLAUSE (TOWARD 1047 21 135,022 145,202 16,522 32,854
THIRD PARTIES)
E. PROFIT FROM FINANCING(1032 — 1040) 1048 o} 0 36,642 71,818
Z. LOSS FROM FINANCING (1040 — 1032) 1049 104,125 85,209

Z. REVENUES FROM VALUATION ADJUSTMENTS

OF OTHER ASSETS CARRIED AT FAIR VALUE 1050 22 868 963 285 285
THROUGH INCOME SHEET

I. EXPENDITURES FROM VALUATION

ADJUSTMENTS OF OTHER ASSETS CARRIED AT 1051 23 -120 25,038 ¢ 7
FAIR VALUE THROUGH INCOME SHEET

J. OTHER REVENUES 1052 24 4,206 9,080 34,571 36,265

K. OTHER EXPENDITURES 1053 25 8,237 14,730 13,556 17,103

L. OPERATING PROFIT BEFORE TAX
{1030 — 1031 + 1048 ~ 1049 + 1050 — 1051 + 1054 26 1,059,446 1,639,610 1,047,246 1,622,443)
1052 - 1053)

L1. OPERATING LOSS BEFORE TAX
(1031 ~ 1030 + 1049 ~ 1048 + 1051 — 1050 + 1055
1053 —~ 1052)

M. NET INCOME FROM DISCONTINUED
OPERATIONS, THE EFFECT OF CHANGES IN
ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND CORRECTIONS
FROM PREVIOUS PERIOD

N. NET LOSS FROM DISCONTINUED
OPERATIONS, EXPENSES CHANGE IN
ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND CORRECTIONS
FROM PREVIOUS PERIOD

1056 733 641

1057 0 0

NJ. PROFIT BEFORE TAX (1054 — 1055 + 1056 —

1057) 1058 26 1,060,179 1,640,251 1,047,246 1,622,443

0. LOSS BEFORE TAX {1055 — 1054 + 1057 ~

1059
1056)




JSC AIRPORT NIKOLA TESLA BELGRADE

FINANCIALSTATEMENTS June 30, 2017

INCOME SHEET (continued)
in the period from January 1 to June 30, 2017

for the period from 01012017 untl 300872017

- inthousand RSD -

§"

I. INCOME TAX EXPENDITURE 1060 26 143,142 215,647 107,495 171,552
1. DEFERRED TAX EXPENDITURE 1061 27 37,373 37,373 62,892 76,829
111, DEFERRED INCOME TAX 1062 27 -2,671 0 0
R. EARNINGS PAID BY EMPLOYER 1063
S. NET PROFIT

1064 28 876,993 1,387,231 876,859 1,374,062

(1058 ~ 1059 - 1060 — 1061 + 1062)

T. NET LOSS
1065
(1059 — 1058 + 1060 + 1061 — 1062)
| NET INCOME OF MINORITY SHAREHOLDERS 1066
11 NET INCOME OF THE MAJORITY OWNER 1067
111 PROFIT PER SHARE 28
1. Basicearning pershare 1068
2. Reduced (diluted) earning per share 1069
TOTAL REVENUES 2,418,922 4,420,937 2,260,234 4,083,219
TOTAL EXPENDITURES . 1,358,743 2,780,686 1,212,988 2,460,776




JSC AIRPORT NIKOLA TESLA BELGRADE

FINANCIALSTATEMENTS June 30, 2017
BALANCE SHEET on June 30, 2017

on 30/06 2017

0 A. NON-PAID UP SUBSCRIBED CAPITAL 1
8. FIXED ASSETS (0003 + 0010 + 0019 + 0024 + 0034) 2 24,938,227 23,895,702 0
1 I. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (0004 + 0005 + 0006 + 0008 + 0009) 3 142,852 135,730 0
29
010 & part 019 1. Investmentin development 4
011, 012 : ions, i , trade marks, softw d
2. Concessions, patents, licences, trade marks, software an 5 29 142,852 135,730

& part 019 other rights

013 & part 019 3. Goodwill 6

014 & part 019 4. Otherintangible assets 7

015 & part 019 5. Intangible assets in progress 8

016 & part 019 6. Advances for intangible assets 9
1i. REAL ESTATES, PLANTS AND EQUIPMENT

2 10 29 24,575,693 23,535,062 0
(0011 + 0012 + 0013 + 0014 + 0015 + 0016 + 0017 + 0018)

020, 021 & part

029 1. land : 11 29 9,434,255 9,416,290
022 & part 029 2. Buildings 12 29 10,092,400 9,678,995
023 & part 029 3. Plantand eguipment 13 29 3,725,646 3,101,024
024 & part 029 investment property 14 29 26,525 26,525
025 & part 029 5. Other property, plants and equipment 15 29 3,619 3,619
026 & part 029 6. Property, plants, equipmentin progress 16 29 1,229,863 1,188,102
027 & part 029 7. Investments in some.else's property, plant and equipment 17

028 & part 029 8. Advances for property, plants and equipment 18 29 63,385 120,507
3 1. BIOLOGICAL RESOURCES (0020 + 0021 + 0022 + 0023) 19 65 145 0
(0);(9) 031 & part 1. Forests and perennial plants 20

032 & part 039 2. Livestock unit 21 29 65 145
037 & part 039 3. Biological resources in progress 22

038 & part 039 4. Advances for biological resources 23

V. LONG-TERM FINANCIAL INVESMENTS (0025 + 0026 + 0027 +

04. except 047 24 135,798 140,946 0,
PEO%T 0028 + 0029 + 0030 + 0031 + 0032 + 0033) g
040 & part 049 1. Shares in subsidiaries 25
041 & part 049 2. Shares in associated companies and joint ventures 26
3. Shares in other fegal entities and other securities
042 & partoag > >haresino & o : 27 30 1 1
available forsale
part 043, part 4. Long-term investments to parent companies and 28
044 & part 049 subsidiaries
rt 043, . .
224 & pa:Z:g 5. Long-term investments to other related parties 29
rt 045 &
g:rt049 6. Long-term investments in the country 30
art045 &
P 7. Long-term investments abroad 31
part 049
046 & part 049 8. Securities hold to maturity 32
048 & part 049 9. Otherlong-term financial investments 33 31 135,797 140,945



JSC AIRPORT NIKOLA TESLA BELGRADE

FINANCIALSTATEMENTS June 30, 2017
BALANCE SHEET (continued) on June 30, 2017

on 30/06 2017

-in thousand RSD -

5 XOEST;IE;;M RECEIVABLES {0035 + 0036 + 0037 + 0038 + 0039 + 34 83,819 83,819 0
050 & part 059 1. Receivables from parentcompanyand subsidiaries 35
051 & part 059 2. Receivables from otherrelated parties 36
052 & part 059 3. Receivables from sale on trade credit 37
053 & part 059 4. Receivables from sale per contracts on financial leasing 38
054 & part 059 5. Receivables based on guarantees 39
055 & part 059 6. Disputed and doubtful receivables 40
056 & part 059 7. Otherlong-term receivables 41 31 83,819 83,819
288 V. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS 42
G. TURNOVER ASSETS
43 5,366,398 6,455,664 0
(0044 + 0051 + 0059 + 0060 + 0061 + 0062 + 0068 + 0069 + 0070)
Class 1 | STOCKS {0045 + 0046 + 0047 + 0048 + 0049 + 0050) 44 140,696 85,637 0
10 1. Material, spare parts, tools and small inventory 45 32 107,573 62,272
i1 2. Unfinished p(oduction and unfinished services 46
12 3. Ready products 47
13 4. Goods 48 33 4,812 4,816
14 5. Non-current assets intended forsale 49
15 6. Advances paid for stock and services 50 34 28,311 18,549
20 1f RECEIVABLES FROM SALE ‘ 5 1,235,786 1,020,436 o
{0052 + 0053 + 0054 + 0055 + 0056 + 0057 + 0058}
200 & part 203 1. Buyers in the country - parent companies and subsidiaries 52
201 & part 209 2. Buyers abroad - parent companies and subsidiaries 53
202 & part 209 3. Buyers in the country - other related parties 54
203 & part 209 4. Buyers abroad - otherrelated parties 55
204 & part 209 5. Buyers in the country 56 35 364,465 360,511
205 & part 209 6. Buyers abroad 57 36 871,321 659,925
206 & part 209 7. Otherreceivables from sale 58
21 111 RECEIVABLES FROM SPECIFIC OPERATIONS 59
22 1V OTHER RECEIVABLES 60 37 394,861 388,411
236 V FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH INCOME SHEET 61
23 except 236 VI SHORT-TERM FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS 6 2,005,231 3,985,007 o
8237 (0063 + 0064 + 0065 + 0066 + 0067)
230 & part 239 :uil’;«la;::z: loans and invest.- parent companies and 63
231 & part 239 2. Short-term loans and invest.- other related parties 64
232 & part 239 3. Short-term credits and {oans in the country 65 38 70,466 50,953
233 & part 239 4. Short-term credits and loans abroad 66
i:::; 22’ 388 5. Other short-term financial investments 67 39 2,734,765 3,934,494
24 Vil CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 68 41 706,239 740,102
27 Vili VALUE ADDED TAX 69 0
28 except 288 IX PREPAYMENTS AND ACCRUED INCOME 70 42 83,585 235,631
D. TOTAL ASSETS = BUSINESS ASSETS (000140002 + 0042 50043}~ 71 30,304,625 30,351,366 o]
88 D. OFF-BALANCE SHEET ASSETS 72 62 525,693 524,556




JSC AIRPORT NIKOLA TESLA BELGRADE

FINANCIALSTATEMENTS June 30, 2017
BALANCE SHEET (continued) on June 30, 2017

on 30/06 2017

-in thousand RSD -

A. CAPITAL (0402 + 0411 — 0412 + 0413 + 0414 + 0415 - 0416 + 0417

+0420 - 0421) 2 0 = (0071 - 0424 ~ 0441 - 0442) 401 43 27,832,088 27,087,521 0

30 ! CORE CAPITAL 402 20,573,610 20,573,610
(0403 + 0404 + 0405 + 0406 + D407 + 0408 + 0409 + 0410)

300 1. Share capital 403 44 20,573,610 20,573,610

301 2. Shares of limited liability companies 404

302 3. Stakes 405

303 4. State capital 406

304 5. Social capital 407

305 6. Cooperative capital 408

306 7.Share issue premium 409

309 8. Other core capital 410

31 11 NON-PAID UP SUSCRIBED CAPITAL 411

047 & 237 {11 REPURCHASED OWN SHARES 412

32 iV RESERVES 413 45 5,254,126 4,120,259

V. REVALUATION RESERVES BASED ON THE REVALUATION OF
330 414 45 9,364 827
INTANGIBLE PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 599,36 601,82

V1. NON-REALISED INCOMES FROM SECURITIES AND OTHER
33 except 330 COMPONENTS OF OTHER COMPRIHENSIVE RESULTS (credit 415 45 16,590 16,590
balance of group account 33 except 330}
Vil. NON-REALISED LOSSES FROM SECURITIES AND OTHER
33 except 330 COMPONENTS OF OTHER COMPRIHENSIVE RESULTS {debit 416
balance of group account 33 except 330}

Vili NON-DISTRIBUTED PROFIT

34 417 46 1,388,398 1,775,235 0
{0418 + 0419)
340 1. Non-distributed profit of previous years 418 45 1,167 303
341 2. Non-distributed profit of the current year 419 46 1,387,231 1,774,932
I1X. SHARE WITHOUT RIGHT OF CONTROL 420
35 X. LOSS (0422 + 0423) 421 0 0 0
350 1. Loss of previous years 422
351 2. loss of the current year 423
B. LONG -TERM RESERVES AND LIABILITIES {0425 + 0432) 424 891,472 508,241 0

| LONG -TERM RESERVES
40 425 4748 204,479 206,332 0
(0426 + 0427 + 0428 + 0429 + 0430 + 0431)

400 1. Reserves for cost within guarantee period 426

401 2. Reserves for restoration of natural resources 427

403 3. Reserves for restructuring costs 428

404 4. Provisions for retirement and other employee benefits 429 47,4849 120,660 125,836
405 5. Reserves for fitigations 430 47;48;49 83,819 80,496
402 & 409 6. Other long-term reserves 431

a 11 LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 432 686,503 701,909 o

{0433 + 0434 + 0435 + 0436 + 0437 + 0438 + 0439 + 0440}

410 1. Liabilities that may be converted into capital 433

411 2. tiabilities toward parentcompanies and subsidiaries 434

412 3. Liabilities toward otherrelated parties 435



FINANCIALSTATEMENTS June 30, 2017
BALANCE SHEET (continued) on June 30, 2017

JSC AIRPORT NIKOLA TESLA BELGRADE

on 30/06 2017

413 4. Liabilities from securities for a period longer than one year 436
414 5. Long-term credits and ioans in the country 437
415 6. Long-term credits and loans abroad 438 50;51 686,993 701,909
416 7. Liabilities based on financial leasing 439
419 8. Otherlong-term liabilities 440 0 0
498 V. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 441 27 407,656 370,283
42 to 49 G. SHORT-TERM LIABILITIES 212 1,173,400 1,985,321
(except498) (0443 + 0450 + 0451 + 0459 + 0460 + 0461 + 0462)
a2 | SHORT-TERM FINANCIAL GBLIGATIONS 413 7 50,366 v 102,919
(0444 + 0445 + 0446 + 0447 + 0448 + 0449)
420 1. Short-term loans from parent company and subsidiaries 444
421 2. Short-term loans from other related parties 445
422 3. Short-term credits and loans in the country 446
423 4. Short-term credits and loans abroad 447
227 S. Liabi‘litief on fixed assets and assets from discontinued 248
operations intended forsale
:ig' 425426 & 6. Other short-term financial obligations 449 52 50,366 102,919
430 {1 RECEIVED PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND BAILS 450 53 87,950 82,663
43 except 430 TI()ZS:JSS)INESS LEABILITIES (0452 + 0453 + 0454 + 0455 + 0456 + 0457 451 181,713 462,702
431 1. Suppliers - parent comp. and subsidiaries in the country 452
432 2. Suppliers - parent comp. and subsidiaries abroad 453
433 3. Suppliers -other related in the country 454
434 4. Suppliers -otherrelated abroad 455
435 5. Suppliers in the country 456 54 160,933 396,580
436 6. Suppliers abroad 457 55 1,884 51,240
439 7. Other tiabilities from operation 458 56 18,896 14,882
44,45 & 46 IV OTHER SHORT-TERM LIABILITIES 459 57 675,413 1,138,394
47 V LIABILITIES FROM VALUE ADDED TAX 460 58 42,462 57,398
48 Vi LIABILITIES FOR OTHER TAXES, CONTRIBUTIONS AND FEES 461 59;60 10,069 1,936
49 except 498 Vil ACCRUALS AND DEFERRED INCOME 462 61 125,436 139,309
D. LOSS OVER CAPITAL (0412 + 0416 + 0421 — 0420 ~ 0417 ~ 0415 ~ 463 0 0
0414 ~ 0413 - 0411 ~ 0402) 2 0 = (0441 + 0424 + 0442 - 0071) 20
B, TOTAL LIAﬁlLtTiES {0424 + 0442 + 0441 + 0401 - 0463} > 0 464 30,304,625 30,351,366
89 E. OFF-BALANCE SHEET LIABILITIES 465 62 525,693 524,556




JSC AIRPORT NIKOLA TESLA BELGRADE

FINANCIALSTATEMENTS June 30, 2017

REPORT ON OTHER RESULTS in the period from January 1 to June 30, 2017

for the period from 01/01/2017 until 30/06/2017
- in thousand RSD -
_ Gouw
acsounts,
scount

A. NET RESULTS FROM OPERATIONS
1. NET PROFIT (ADP 1064} 2001 28 876,993 1,387,231 876,859 1,374,062
i1, NET LOSS (ADP 1065} 2002
B. OTHER COMPREHENSIVE PROFITS AND LOSS
a} Items that will not be reclassified in income sheet n future periods

1. Changes inrevaluation of intangible assets, property, plantand equipment

330 . . .
a) increase inrevaluation reserves 2003
b) decrease in revaluation reserves 2004 0 8] 0
2. Actuarial gains and losses on defined benefit plans

331 a}gains 2005
b} losses 2006
3.Gains and losses on investment in equity capital instruments

332 a) gains 2007
b) losses 2008
4.Gains or losses on shares in other comprehensive profit or losses of
associated companies

333 a) gains 2009
b} losses 2010
a) [tems that can subsequently be reclassified in income sheet n future periods
1.Gains orlosses based on recalculation of financial statements of foreign
operations

334 a) gains 2011
b} losses 2012
2.Gains or losses on hedging instruments of net investmentin a foreign
Anarstian

335 a) gains 2013
b} losses 2014
3. Gains oriosses on risk hedging instruments of cash flow

336 a) gains 2015
b} losses 2016
4. Gains orlosses on securities available forsale

337 a) gains 2017
b} losses 2018
1. OTHER GROSS COMPREHENSIVE PROFIT
(2003 + 2005 + 2007 + 2009 + 2011 + 2013 + 2015 + 2017) - {2004 + 2006 + 2008 + 2010 2019 0 0 0

+7012 + 2014 + 201R + XMRI >0

11, OTHER GROSS COMPREHENSIVE LOSS

2020 ¢ 0 [ 0
(2004 + 2006 + 2008 + 2010 + 2012 + 2014 + 2016 + 2018) ~ (2003 + 2005 + 2007 + 2009
4+ 11 N4 MR A NITE S N
1il. TAX ON OTHER COMPREHENSIVE PROFIT OF LOSS FOR THE PERIOD 2021
V. NET OTHER COMPREHENSIVE PROFIT

2022 0 0 0
(2019 - 2020 - 2021) 2 0
V. NET OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS 2023 o 0 o o
(2020 - 2019 + 2021) 2 0
B. TOTAL NET COMPREHENSIVE RESULT OF THE PERIOD
|. TOTAL NET COMPREHENSIVE PROFIT

4

{2001 - 2002 + 2022 - 2023) 2 0 202 876,993 1,387,231 876,859 1,374,062
11. TOTAL NET COMPREHENSIVE LOSS

2025 0 0 0 0
{2002 - 2001 + 2023 - 2022) 2 0
G TOTAL NET COMPREHENSIVE PROFIT-OF LOSS {2027 + 2028) = ADP 2024 2 0 or ADF :
b (207 ) = ADP 2024 20 ¢ 202 876993 L3y sresse o 1avoe|
1. Afiributable to majority owners of capital 2027
2. Attributable to owners who do not hawe control 2028




01

8BO'ZLH2E ¥y @ gizr 0 8BEF © oBip THIY BEe'sE Friy REEER sTiv  eeveRt’d 80by T osoy ¢ 20v BeiveRe L 9LUr  GLB'EIO0R  HiG D{ug + 89 - QL) WNE20L 5O 2E|EQ REID (g
o piiAg 1244 &y o S o &Hy O 6y a1 g 2434 prai g o o a0y o e o e s 0 108 02{8—0g+ 17 RO JO aUeRY NGO ¢
ey
UO DA WUND 9] JO PUS A1 W Steey
o 2rZr =y o Ty o 8 O |y oy ¢ oy o ¥y SOEEBET Wty O ®|Oy O oy LS fazs 4 oy 0 g WN003R SHI JO AP UPSI S 1O JarouAL (g
] rers vy wey o By o 6ty O iy 5 0 Wi e W SEUSUT S O sy 0 ooy 0 373 oy 0 S WRCACE B JO IPIS IBP Y1 UO JOAOUIAY (&
LI07 JR2) Bt ) SoNEY)
0z (®+
(2293237 oY O ww 0 Wiy 0 v ¥ 06591 [o454 31 4 4 484 o ¥
90 85T 8108 WP SETSLLT Wy O S0F O ®or 650 [ 4 O OI9EISVT oY 29 g5} 1 0 papanes (g
0zl
d 2y ip 6Ty O Ty o a
144 &y 500¥ A g [0 ] Wy o ¥ 0 Wy O oo o B0 TEF O e —mpa s} 10 FouERg WEP PP ?
LI0Z T0/10 vo Boueng Suuado pRsesIo)
i 9 sy O oy 0 iy O ay *®iy O s 0 w0 iy 0 wor o S o b o o TI0F  JBNCOSE B 0 IPE NP3 B VO SUOIDBIKD {1
0 8¥EF T LA @y o oy o Wiy o €Lty sty O ;£ o 6ty O wr o s 0 90 o [ g 6oy o TI  WRODE B4 10 APIS WGSP 41 U0 SBOTDBLIS (e
sapsiod Bununonde jo selueyd
PUR 810455 WENIUBI A{RUBIRUL O LOTDRLOY
4 128'480°42 gw © ay o o6ty o uzy Wiy 06591 9Ty 28100 W SECRULY ooty 0 2¢O Or  esLueL'y S s OWESW oWk 0% {ab+ ey — 45} WNODE 3O 0ULIRY 1IPAD (4
0 wir ¢ Lixdd 5Tv O s ety o o 202 Sety o oy o w«or 0 Wy o ®0F 0 SV ooy 0 oo 0% {9y by 4 55} Junodoe Jo ueieq P (2
BIAT/IT/IE uo JueA-ABId J5 DU B 10 BoURRY
o L86'888") wew o My O |y O oLty THLY  Tivy VLY 181965 9Ity  TROIST'E 860y O |y O W G LTT Oy Sy 0 O TWRONE S IO IS UPESD SY) HO JAAOKNY (1
g FizA i wy 0 o o ®ir o &y IS W 5T WEER SITF  £6T'96SE oy 0 6oy O R i g S 0 i1 4 THRONE 243 O IPIS UISP LU0 JIROWIN (&
HTOT sPodad 3 vt safueyy
gzria+
& wr o Wy 1 4 900
o 816552 o 9|y 0 Y OST¥ BRI P OGEWYT VY BEUCIT 960F 0 wor o 0y OBTHWT % W OT9ESH 241} wneoe o [
ozar
o oy ¢ 182% wey o o o S O i1 oy 0 TEWY O F33: 4 S8 O qov o & 0 o fza Y SO0k —wz e 10 wouepm uGeD pODaIKO {2
STGZ 10/10 Ue souepeq Ruiuedo puepdn
o a oy O oy o Wiy O 9RHY oy o [1.72 208+ ] uaw 0 ¥ O w€pr o 80y O i s 4 oy o YOOV WRCOOE 241 O 3PS HPAD MY U0 SLOIDNO {q
o SeEE O fiead &Iy O wmy 6 |y 0 Sy iy o &y 0 w0 = 0 Sy 0 Lo (5224 Ty o Y JUNO0E 341 JO 3PS UGSP A} HOSUORIBLI0O {8
sapjod Bugunodde jo seBueid
PUR 530049 WRIGRIAS AHEUNEW JO UORDALOD
0 ¥BE 16092 LA ] oy o oy 0 iy S¥ty  SRLLT STy DEEBHL Oty 988RTT ww o wWo¥ O 90F  OIBTHT |EOY wDF 0TRSO aw WO LOULEG PID {9
wIE o 582 [irag (214 fiiid 29y iy a3 Lot g TV HHov S5% L850 GL0% HOF umoooR souegeq pgap (e

IAVHOTIE VISHL VIOMIN LHOddiv Osr

2102/90/0€ 03 10/10 wolj pokiad ayj ul TV.LIdVO NI SIONVHO NO INIWILVLS

1107 ‘0¢ sunf SINIWILVLISTIVIONVNIL




JSC AIRPORT NIKOLA TESLA BELGRADE
FINANCIALSTATEMENTS June 30, 2017

CASH FLOW STATEMENT
for the period from 01/01 until 30/06/2017

in the period from 01/01/2017 until 30/06/2017

-inthousand RSD -

A, CASH FLOW FROM BUSINESS ACTIVITY

1. Cash inflow from business activities (1 to 3) 3001 4,770,364 4,517,319
1.Sale and received advance payments 3002 4,221,140 4,047,784
2. Interestreceived from business activity 3003 22,955 8,600
3. Other inflows from regularoperations 3004 526,269 460,935
II. Cash outflow from business activities {1 to 5) 3005 2,835,943 2,749,180
1. Payments forsuppliers and given advance payments 3006 849,202 691,884
2.Salaries, salary compensations and other personal expenses 3007 1,493,455 1,312,357
3. Paid interest 3008 17,713 41,985
4. Income tax 3009 248,006 382,210
5. Payment from other public revenues 3010 227,567 320,744
IN. Net cash inflow from business activities (-1} 3011 1,934,421 1,768,139}
IV. Net cash outflow from business activities (li-1) 3012

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTMENT ACTIVITY

I. Cash inflow from investment activities (1 to 5) 3013 1,137,802 53,780
1.Sale of shares and portions {netinflows) 3014 0 0
2.Sale of intangible investments, properties, plants, equipment and 3015 0

biological agencies

3. Otherfinancial investments (netinflows) 3016 1,086,984 0
4. Interest received from investment activity 3017 50,778 53,780
5. Dividend received 3018 0 0
1l Cash outflow from investment activities (1 to 3) 3019 1,924,799 608,745
1. Purchase of shares and portions (net outflows) 3020 0 0
i}gror;?:as{eazfe;nctiz:gible investments, properties, plants, equipment and 3001 1624799 535,959
3. Otherfinancial investments (net outflows) 3022 0 72,786
11, Cash netinflow from investment activities {I-I1) 3023 0 0
IV. Cash net outflow from investment activities (l1-1) 3024 786,997 554,965
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JSC AIRPORT NIKOLA TESLA BELGRADE

FINANCIALSTATEMENTS June 30, 2017

CASH FLOW STATEMENT (cont'd)
for the period from 01/01 until 30/06/2017

in the period from 01/01/2017 until 30/06/2017

-in thousand RSD -

V. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITY

1. Cash inflow from financing activities (1 to 5) 3025 0 0
1. Core capital increase 3026 0 0
2. Long-term loans (netinflows) 3027 0 0
3. Short-term loans (netinflows) 3028 0 0
4. Otherlong-term liabilities 3029 0 0
5. Other short-term liabilities 3030 0 0
1. Cash outflow from financing activities (1 to 6) 3031 ’ 1,166,926 ’ 866,316
1. Redemption of own shares and portions 3032 0 0
2. Long-term loans (outflows) 3033 51,119 51,319
3. Short-term loans {outflows) 3034 0

4, Otherliabilities (outflows) 3035 0 0
5. Financial leasing 3036 0

6. Paid-up dividends 3037 1,115,807 814,997
{1, Cash net inflow from financing activities {I-II) 3038 0 0
1V, Cash net outflow from financing activities (I1-1) 3039 1,166,926 866,316
G. OVERALL CASH INFLOW {3001 + 3013 + 3025) 3040 5,908,166 4,571,099|
D. OVERALL CASH OUTFLOW (3005 + 3019 + 3031} 3041 5,927,668 4,224,241
D. OVERALL CASH INFLOW (3040 - 3041) 3042 0 346,358}
E. OVERALL CASH OUTFLOW (3041 - 3040) 3043 19,502 0
Z. CASH AT THE BEGINNING OF ACCOUNTING PERIOD 3044 740,102 704,127
Z. POSITIVE EXCHANGE RATE DIFFERENCES FROM CASH CONVERISON 3045 2,420 15,808
I. NEGATIVE EXCHANGE RATE DIFFERENCES FROM CASH CONVERISON 3046 16,781 8,999
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JSC AIRPORT NIKOLA TESLA BELGRADE

FINANCIALSTATEMENTS June 30, 2017

JSC AIRPORT NIKOLA TESLA BELGRADE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
30 June 2017
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JSC AIRPORT NIKOLA TESLA BELGRADE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS June 30, 2017
1. FOUNDING AND OPERATION OF THE COMPANY
1.1. General data of the Company:

The Joint Stock Company Airport Nikola Tesla Belgrade (hereinafter. the Company) has been established
for provision of airport services (aircraft landing, take-off, taxing and parking and aircraft, passenger and
cargo handling). Apart from the basic activity of rendering airport services, the Company, as side
activities, provides other services at airport complex, satisfying the needs of service users, domestic and
foreign air carriers.

Operation of the Airport dates back to March 25, 1928, at the location Bezanijska kosa, and operation on
the current location (Suréin) started in 1962.

By a Decision of the Government of the Republic of Serbia of 1992, the Airport was re-registered as
Javno preduzece (public company) Aerodrom ,Beograd” and in 2008, also by a decision of the
Government it got the name JP Aerodrom Nikola Tesla Beograd.

The Government of the Republic of Serbia on 17/06/2010 made the Decision No. 023-4432/2010 on
change of legal form of JP Aerodrom "Nikola Tesla" Beograd from a public company into closed joint
stock company. The change of legal form is registered with the Business Registers Agency on
22/06/2010 by the Rescript No.BD 68460/2010.

After the change of legal form the company continued its business under the full name Joint Stock
Company Airport Nikola Tesla Belgrade.

By the Rescript of the Registers Agency No: BD 7651/2011 dated on 24/01/2011, the Joint Stock
Company Airport Nikola Tesla Belgrade was registered in Business Registers Agency as an open joint
stock company.

Head-office 11180 Belgrade 59, Serbia
Register number: - 07036540 h
Tax identification number 100000539

Activity code and name - 5223 - Air-traffic services

According to the classification criteria from the Law on accounting and audit JSC Airport Nikola Tesla
Belgrade is classified as a large legal person.

1.2. Number of employees and engaged persons

On Balance Sheet date on 30 June, 2017 the Company had 2,014 engaged workers of which 1,348
employees of the Company including 1,089 permanent employees, 259 employees on a definite period of
time, 397 workers engaged through youth organizations and 269 engaged in temporary and occasional
jobs (on 31 December 2016 there were 1,994 engaged workers, of which 1,323 employees, out of which
501 permanent employees and 822 employed for a definite period of time, 425 workers engaged through
youth organizations, and 246 workers engaged in temporary and occasional jobs).

In I-V1 2017, the average number of employees engaged by the Company at the end of each month was
2,001 of which average number of employees of the Company is 1,338 (958 permanent employees, 380
employees for a definite period of time), 408 workers engaged through youth organizations, averagely 255
engaged in temporary and occasional jobs (during 2016 there were on average 1,916 employees: 1,294
employees, of which 496 permanent employees, 798 employees for a definite period of time, 422 workers
engaged through youth organizations and 201 engaged in temporary and occasional jobs).
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JSC AIRPORT NIKOLA TESLA BELGRADE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS June 30, 2017

1.

1.3.

1.4.

2,

21.

3.1

FOUNDING AND OPERATION OF THE COMPANY (cont'd)
Management structure

The Company has established two-tier corporate system. The Bodies of the Company are the Assembly,
the Supervisory Board and the Executive Board.

The Assembly comprises of the Company Shareholders entitled to participate in Assembly's work. The
Shareholder in possession of 1% of ordinary shares (34,289 shares) is entitled to participate in Assembly
work.

The Supervisory Board has 7 members assigned by the Assembly of the Company. The Supervisory Board
may form different experts committees with at least three members, whereof one has to be an independent
member of the Supervisory Board.

The Executive Board has 5 executive directors including the General Director. The Executive directors are
assigned by the Supervisory Board of the Company.

Ownership structure

After change of legal form into a closed joint stock company, the Central depositary and clearing house
registered on 07.07.2010, 34,289,350 shares; 100% in ownership of the Republic of Serbia.

On 098/12/2010 the Government of the Republic Serbia made the Decision No. 023-8103/2010-1, by which
citizens of the Republic of Serbia, the employees and former employees of the Company have acquired
the right to 16.85% of ownership of the Company. After transfer of the right to free of charge shares to
citizens, employees and former employees, the Republic of Serbia owns 28,511,988 ordinary shares,
which represents 83.15% of the total share capital of the Company.

By the Decision on admission of shares to Prime Listing 04/4 No. 478/11 dated on 28/01/2011, the shares

of the Company are accepted on 'A’ Listing of the Belgrade Exchange Market. Stock trade on the Belgrade
Exchange Market commenced on 07/02/2011.

2. BASIS FOR COMPOSITION AND PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
ACCOUNTING METHOD '

Basis for composition and presentation of financial statements
The financial statements for the period I-VI 2017 are prepared in a manner and in accordance with the
legislation, also applied for preparation of annual financial statements for 2016 and which is completely
stated in the Note 2 to the Financial statement for the year of 2016.
The financial statement for the period 1-VI 2017 are approved on the meeting of the Supervisory Board of
the Company on 14/08/2017.

PREVIEW OF IMPORTANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Incomes and outcomes

Sales revenue is recognized when the risks and benefits associated with the right of ownership is
transferred to the customer, and that includes the date of delivery to the customer.

Revenue from services is recognized when the service is rendered, or proportionately during the

performance of services if it lasts for more than one accounting period.
Revenue from lease based on operational leasing are recognized evenly over the leasing period.
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JSC AIRPORT NIKOLA TESLA BELGRADE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS June 30, 2017

3.

3.1.

3.2.

3.3.

PREVIEW OF IMPORTANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)
incomes and outcomes (cont'd)

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the funds received or receivable, in net amount after deduction
of discounts and value added tax.

Revenue from interest and dividends are recognized in accordance with the principle of the formation in
favour of the accounting period to which they relate, using the effective interest method.

With the date on which revenues are recognized there are also recognized corresponding expenditures
(principle of causality of revenue and expenditure).

Operating expenditures are recognized in the income statement according to utilization of acquired
services or as they are incurred.

Expenditures are accounted for on an accrual basis of revenue and expenditure.

Maintenance and repair of fixed assets are recorded in the income statement in the accounting period
when they arise.

Costs of borrowings

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, are included in the purchase value of the asset and until that period when all the activities are
essentially completed, necessary to prepare the asset for the intended use or sale. Assets being qualified
relate to the assets which required a significant period of time to get ready for its intended use.

Income from investments realized on the basis of the temporary investment of borrowed funds is deducted
from the borrowing costs incurred intended to finance assets that qualify.

All other borrowing costs are recognized in the income statement in the period to which they relate.

Conversion of assets and liabilities in foreign currencies

Transactions incurred in foreign currencies are converted into dinars at the middle exchange rates
established on the Interbank Exchange Market, valid at the transaction date.

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies on the date of the balance sheet are converted into dinars
at the middle exchange rates established on the Interbank Exchange Market, valid at that date.

Gains and losses arising from transactions in foreign currencies and from the recalculation of monetary
items in the balance sheet items denominated in foreign currencies are credited or charged to the income
statement as gains or losses from exchange rate differences.

Non-monetary items in the balance sheet are not recalculated at the balance sheet date but are carried at
historical cost, calcuiated at the exchange rate on the date of transaction, except for non-monetary items
that are measured at fair value, in which case they are recalculated at the exchange rate on the date of
determination of fair value. Revenues and Expenditures based on exchange rate differences and currency
clause effects are recorded in the income statement of the recorded period.
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JSC AIRPORT NIKOLA TESLA BELGRADE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS June 30, 2017

3.

3.3.

3.4.

PREVIEW OF IMPORTANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)
Conversion of foreign exchange amount (cont’d.)

Middle foreign exchange rates, determined at the interbank foreign exchange market, used in the
conversion of foreign currency baiance sheet positions into dinars, for the major currencies were as follows:

Description ' 30/06/2017 31/12/2016
Middle exchange rate of NBS: ‘ Value in RSD

EUR ; - 120.8486 123.4723
usb ; ; 105.6461 117.1353
CHF ; 110.3842 114.8473
GBP | o 137.4842 143.8065

Liabilities based on long-term loans from the EIB are converted into RSD counter value at an agreed selling
rate of the bank.

Selling rate of the bank on the date of financial statements preparation is presented in the following table:

Description - 30/06/2017 31/12/2016
Contracted exchange rate: - ValueinRSD
EUR - for EIB loan ; 121.2111 123.8427

Intangible investment

Intangible investment relate to purchased software and licenses and are carried at purchase cost less
accumulated amortization and are written-off by straight-line method over a period of two to ten years.

3.5. Property, plants, equipment, biological resources

Property, plant and equipment that meet the requirements for recognition of assets are carried at their
purchase price or cost. Purchase price represents the invoiced amount plus all expenses incurred to its

intended use.

After initial recognition, property, plant and equipment (except tools and inventory for which purchase price
model is implemented) are presented at revalued amount that reflects their fair value at the date of
revaluation, less the total amount of the value correction based on amortization and total amount of value
correction for impairment loss.

The fair value of real estate makes their market value, which is determined by the assessment. Revaluation
is carried out only when the fair value of a revalued asset differs materially from its carrying amount. Gains
from revaluation are recognized in other gains and losses in favour of the revaluation reserve in equity. Up
to the amounts of previously recognized losses from the revaluation or impairment recognized in the
income statement, gains from revaluation are recognized in the income statement, and the rest of gains
are recognized in other gains and losses. Losses on revaluation are recognized after valuation or testing
for impairment, and are recognized in other gains and losses up to the amount of previously recognized
revaluation reserve in equity and the remainder of losses are recognized in the income statement. At
expenditure or disposal of assets related revaluation reserve is transferred directly to undistributed profit.

The last assessment of the value of property, plant and equipment was made on 31/12/2016.
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JSC AIRPORT NIKOLA TESLA BELGRADE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS June 30, 2017

3.

3.5.

3.6.

3.7.

PREVIEW OF IMPORTANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)
Property, plants, equipment, biological resources (cont'd)

Tools and supplies, whose useful life is longer than one year are from 01/01/2016 recognized as fixed
assets notwithstanding their individual purchase cost. These assets are amortized according fo the
estimated useful life.

Gains or losses arising from write-off or alienation are recognized as revenue or expenditure in the income
statement.

Amortisation

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated using straight-line method over the estimated
useful life. The depreciation rates that were used in the relevant period of the current year (2017), as well
as the rate of amortization calculated based on the useful life of the assets applied in 2016 are given in the
following table:

DESCRIPTION 2017 2016
Buﬂdmgs ; % %
Water and e!ectncstyfacmttes 2 27 7,69 227 -7.14
Roads airports and parking lots 2 22 10 k 2 22 - 33,33
Other bundmg facmtles 2,50 25,00 k 5,00 25,00
Flats given to employees for use 143 1.49
Equipment % %
New specific equnpment 6,37 - 50,00 6,67 - 50,00
Equipmentfor road traffic 6.67- 50,00 5. 50,00
Equipment for PTT and TV 14,3 - 50,00 7,14 - 50,00
Equipment for air-trafic 6,67 - 50,00 4 - 50,00
Measuring and control devices and specific devices 5,00 - 50 00 4,00 - 33,33
Labor. equ1pment teachmg aids and med. devices 12,50 - 20 20 OO 25
Electronic, calculating machines and computers 10 50,00 10- 50 00
Furniture and equipment for general purpose 5- 50, 00 4- 50 00
Equ1pment for road traffic under financial Ieasn‘ng 10 - 50,00 8,33 - 33,33
Equipment and plants ‘ o  8,33-20,00 10,00 - 25,00

Tools and inventory
Intangible investments
Software and licences

Investment property

20,00 - 100,00

10,00 - 50,00

20,00 - 100,00

%
10,00 - 50,00

Investment properties are properties that the Company, as the owner, holds to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation or for both of them, and not for use in the provision of services or for administrative purpose
or sale in the ordinary course of business. Initial measurement of investment property during the acquisition
is carried at purchase value or cost price. After initial recognition, valuation of investment property is carried
at fair value at the end of each business year. Positive and negative effects from changes in fair value of
investment property are recognized through the income statement.

The Company has engaged a certified appraiser, to assess the value of investment property as on
31.12.2016. In the report on assessment, the fair value of the investment property is determined by the
weight of probability of estimated value using the replacement cost method and the yield method.
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JSC AIRPORT NIKOLA TESLA BELGRADE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS June 30, 2017

3.

3.8.

3.9.

PREVIEW OF IMPORTANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)
Impairment

At each balance sheet date the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible assets to determine
whether there is any indication that there has been a loss due to the impairment of such assets. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of assets is estimated so that the extent of the impairment loss
could be determined. If it is not possible 1o estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the
Company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit, to which the asset belongs.

The recoverable amount is net selling price or value in use, whichever is higher. For the purposes of
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using the
discount rate before tax that refiects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset.

If the estimated recoverable amount of the asset (or cash generating unit) is less than its carrying amount,
the carrying amount of the asset (or cash generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. Losses
from impairment are recognized as an expense immediately, unless the relevant asset is land or buiidings
that are not used as investment property carried at a revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss
is treated as a reduction in the value of revaluation.

With the subsequent reversal of the impairment, the carrying amount of the asset (cash generating unit) is
increased to the revised estimated recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined in previous years if there were no losses
recognized in this asset (cash generating unit) due to impairment. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognized immediately in income, unless the relevant asset is carried at appraised value, in which case
the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as an increase due to revaluation.

On 30 June, 2017, based on the Company's management estimates there are no indications that the value
of the assets is impaired.

Stocks
Stocks are disclosed per purchase value, i.e. cost value or net sale value, whichever is lower.

Net sale value is price for sale of stocks in nominal operation conditions after price decrease by sale costs.
Costincludes the invoiced value, transport and acquisition costs.

Calculation of stock output is determined by the method of average weighed purchase price.

inventories are recorded at the sales price. At the end of the accounting period, their value is adjusted to
cost by allocation of price differences, calculated on an average basis between the purchase cost of
realized goods and supplies in stock at the end of the year.

Charging to other expenses inventory value correction is done in cases where it is determined that it is
necessary to resume the value to their net estimated realizable vaiue (including inventories with slow
turnover, excess and obsolete inventories). Damaged inveniory and inventory that does not meet the
standards are written off.
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JSC AIRPORT NIKOLA TESLA BELGRADE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS June 30, 2017

3.

PREVIEW OF IMPORTANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

3.10. Taxes and contributions

Income tax

Income tax expense in the income statement represents the sum of current income tax expense and
deferred income tax expense not recognized within other gains and losses or directly in equity.

Receivables and liabilities in respect of current income tax or deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset
only when the Company has a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and if it intends
to settle on a net basis or simultaneously realize the asset and settle the liability.

Current income tax

Assets and liabilities arising from current income taxes represent liabilities or receivables from the fiscal
authorities in connection with the current or prior periods that are not implemented on the date of these
financial statements.

Current income tax represents an amount calculated by applying the statutory income tax rate of 15% on
the tax base determined in the tax balance, which represents the amount of profit before tax after deduction
of the effects of adjusting income and expenses, in accordance with the tax regulations of the Republic of
Serbia, with the decrease in the statutory tax credits.

The Law on Corporate Income Tax of the Republic of Serbia does not envisage that any tax losses of the
current period may be used to recover taxes paid in previous years. However, losses which are included
in the tax balance until 2009, can be used to reduce the tax base in future periods over the next ten years
from the vesting date, and the losses realized and recognized in the tax statement for 2010 and beyond,
can be used to reduce the tax base in future periods, but not longer than five years.

The Law on Corporate Income Tax of the Republic of Serbia in the part relating to tax credit provides that
taxpayers who have until December 31, 2013 acquired the right fo a tax incentive under Art. 48. of the
previous law and expressed information in Tax balance and Tax return for 2013 may exercise that right up
to the deadline and in the manner provided by that previous law. According to Art. 48 Paragraph 5 of the
previous law, "unused tax credits can be offset against income tax in future periods up to the prescribed
limit of 33% (for large and medium-sized enterprises), but not longer than ten (10) years that you apply as
of the tax balance sheet for the year 2003". In determining the income tax for 2017, the earliest previous
tax period from which they can use unused tax credit is the tax account or PK form in 2007. Transferred
tax credit is used in the order of investment.

Deferred income tax

Deferred tax effects arise as a consequence of difference between basis for amortization calculation
according to accounting and tax regulations. Also, this difference accrues on basis of existence of
equipment with purchase value in the moment of purchase lower than average gross salary in RS, on basis
of non-used tax loan and in other cases when there is time difference between tax liability arising and tax
payment due date. Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all chargeable temporary differences, while
deferred tax resources are recognized in extent in which it is possible for chargeabie profits to be available
for usage of deducting temporary differences. The carrying value of deferred tax assets is examined on
the financial statement date and adjusted if necessary to comply with the current assessment of the taxable
profits of future periods.

Deferred tax resources and liabilities are calculated at the tax rate of 15% whose use is expected in the
period when the asset is realized or the liability settled.
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JSC AIRPORT NIKOLA TESLA BELGRADE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS June 30, 2017

3. PREVIEW OF IMPORTANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)
3.10. Taxes and contributions {cont'd)

Deferred income tax (cont'd)

Deferred tax is accounted in balance sheet, except when it refers to the positions accounted directly in the
equity, in which case deferred tax is allocated within equity.

Taxes and contributions independent of results

Taxes and contributions independent of results include real estate and other taxes and contributions in line
with republic, tax and general regulations. These taxes and contributions are disclosed within other
business expenditures.

Tax risks

The tax laws of the Republic of Serbia are often differently interpreted and are subject to frequent changes.
The interpretation of tax legislation by tax authorities as applied to the transactions and activities of the
Company may differ from the management interpretations. As a result of the foregoing, transactions may
be challenged by tax authorities and the Company could be assessed additional taxes, penalties and
interest. Period of obsolescence of tax liability is five years. This practically means that tax authorities could
determine payment of outstanding liabilities within five years from the origination of the liability.

3.11. Benefits for employees
Taxes and contributions to funds for social security of employees

In line with regulations applicative in the Republic of Serbia, the Company pays contributions to state funds
which provide social security of employees. Such obligations include contributions for employees at cost
of employer in amounts calculated at rates proscribed by relevant regulations. The company is, also
obliged to suspend contributions from gross salaries of employees and pay that, in name of employees, to
those funds. Contributions at cost of employer and contributions at cost of employees are booked as
expenditures of related period.

Reserving for terminal wages and jubilee bonuses
Based on the Collective Bargaining Agreement adopted on 12.02.2015 the Company is obliged to pay to
the employees:

o Terminal wage for retirement in amount of 4 average month salaries without tax and contributions paid
at the employer’s in the very month before payment of terminal wage

« Jubilee awards for total time spent in employment with the employer in the amount of the average monthly
salary without tax and contributions paid by the employer for the month preceding the month in which the
employee is entitled to jubilee awards as follows:

» 10 years — one average month salary

» 20 years — two average month salaries

» 30 years - three average month salaries

» 35 years for women and men - four average month salaries.

Because of the obligations regulated by the Collective Bargaining Agreement, the Company at the end of
each business year assesses reserving for terminal wages and jubilee bonuses in accordance with the
requirements of standard IAS 19- Employee Benefits.

The Company has engaged an authorized actuary to assess provisions for retirement benefits and jubilee
awards on 31 December 2016. The assumptions used for the actuarial calculation and changes in
provisions in the current period are disclosed in Note 49.
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JSC AIRPORT NIKOLA TESLA BELGRADE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS June 30, 2017
3. PREVIEW OF IMPORTANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

3.12. Leasing

Leasing is classified as financial leasing whenever all the risks and benefits arising from ownership of assets
are transferred to the fullest extent to the lessee by lease. All other ieases are classified as operating leases.

The Company as lessor

Revenues based on operating leases (income from rents) are recognized using the straight-line method
over the lease period. Indirect costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to
the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Company as lessee

Assets held by financial leasing contracts are initially recognized as assets of the Company at the present
value of the minimum lease payments determined at the beginning of the lease period. The corresponding
liability to the lessor is included in the balance sheet as a liability from financial leasing.

Payment of lease instalments is allocated between financial expenses and reduction of the lease liability in
order to achieve a constant rate of participation in the outstanding amount of the obligation. Financial
expenses are recognized immediately in the income statement, except if directly attributable to assets being
qualified for use, in which case they are capitalized in accordance with the general policy of the Company's
borrowing costs.

Instalments of operating leases are recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis during the lease
term, unless there is another systematic basis that better reflects the time pattern of consumption economic
benefits from the leased asset.

In the event that lease incentives are granted, those are included in the operational leasing and are
recognized as a liability. The total benefit of incentives is recognized as a reduction in expenses for rent
on a straight-line basis, unless there is another systematic basis that better reflects the time structure of
consumption of economic benefits from the leased asset.

3.13. Information on business segments

The Company performs business activity as single business segment, provision of airport services.
Accordingly, information relating to sales income per products and services, geographical information on
income from sales, represent disclosure at company level.

3.14. Financial instruments

Any contractual right from which arises a financial asset and a financial liability or equity instrument is
recognized as a financial instrument on the settlement date.

Upon initial recognition, financial assets and financial liabilities are measured at cost, being the fair value
of compensation given (in the case of assets) or received (in the case of liabilities).

De-recognition of financial assets is when the contractual rights to the cash flows arising from the financial
asset expire or when substantially all the risks and rewards are transferred. De-recognition of financial
liabilities is when the obligation is extinguished, settled, cancelled or expired.

Long term investments
Long-term investments after initial recognition are measured by:
- Fair values, if held for trading,

- Amortized cost, if you have a fixed maturity date,
- Cost, if they do not have a fixed maturity date.
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3.

PREVIEW OF IMPORTANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

3.14. Financial instruments (cont’d)

Long-term investments held for trading and for which, due to the lack of an active market, it is not possible
to determine a market value, are carried at purchase cost.

Long-term loans granted to employees are measured at fair value discounted by applying market interest
rates.

Short-term receivables and investments

Short-term receivables and investments inciude receivables from sales and other receivables, as well as
short-term loans to employees.

Receivables from sales of goods and services are measured by the cost of the original invoice. Invoiced
interest related to the sale of goods and services are recognized as other receivables and are recorded in
income in the period in which they arise.

Other receivables and investments originated by the company are measured at amortized cost.

Any difference between the carrying amount and subsequent measurement is recognized as a gain or loss
in the period in which incurred.

Devaluation of funds

At each balance date, objective evidences of the value of assets are evaluated, by analysis of expected
net cash inflows.

For all receivables for which there is reasonable doubt that they will not be collected in a nominal amount,
corrections shall be made. Direct write-off shall be made only after the end of the litigation or by decision
of the management body.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on current accounts at banks and in hand and highly liquid
investments with maturity up to three months after the acquisition, which can be quickly converted to known
amounts of cash, and which is not subject to significant risk of changes in value.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities include long-term liabilities (long-term loans and other long-term liabilities), short-term
financial liabilities (short-term loans and other short-term liabilities), short-term operating liabilities and other
liabilities.

Financial liabilities are initially recognized at the proceeds received. After initial recognition, financial
liabilities are measured at the amount of initially recognized liabilities, reduced by repayments of principal,
increased by the amount of capitalized interest and reduced by any write-off approved by the creditor.
Interest payable on financial liabilities is charged to financial expenses in the related period, and presented
within other short-term liabilities and accruals and deferred income.
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3.

3.16.

3.16.

3.17.

PREVIEW OF IMPORTANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)
The capital, reserves and payment of profits (dividends)
The basic capital consists of the nominal value of the issued shares.

Other components of the capital include:

+ Revaluation reserves based on the revaluation of property, plant and equipment
» Actuarial gains and losses on defined benefit plans

+ Other reserves

All retained gains and accumulated losses in this and prior periods are recognized in undistributed profit
and loss.

Distributed profits (dividends) are recognized under liabilities when the Assembly of the Company adopts
a decision on profit distribution.

Provisions, contingent assets and contingent liabilities

Provision for legal disputes, harmful contracts or other requirements towards the Company is recognized
when for the Company's performance arise a legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events,
when there is a certain outflow of economic benefits from the Company and when amounts of these
outflows can be reliably estimated. Time or the exact amount of the outflow may still be uncertain.

Restructuring costs are recognized only when there is a detailed formal plan for the restructuring and the
management has announced the main features of the plan to everyone a plan has influence to or the
execution of the plan has aiready begun. Provisions are not recognized for future operating losses.

Provisions are measured at the estimated expenditure required to settle the present obligation, based on
the most reliable evidence available on the date of adoption of the report, including the risks and
uncertainties associated with the present obligation. For a number of similar obligations, the likelihood of
outflow for settling is determined at the level of obligations class. Provisions are discounted to present
value, in the event that the amount of discounting is materially significant.

Any remuneration in connection with the obligations for which it is certain that the Company will realize from
third parties are recognized as a separate asset. However, this asset cannot be a larger amount than the
related provision.

No obligation, that is, no provision is recognized if there is not a certain outflow of economic benefits arising
from present obligations. Such situations are disclosed as a contingent liability, except in cases where the
possibility of outflow is smail.

Preview of important accounting estimates

Presentation of financial statements requires the Company management to use the best possible estimates
and reasonable assumptions that have effect to the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure
of contingent receivables and liabilities at the financial statements date, as well as revenues and
expenditures during the reporting period. These estimates and assumptions are based on information
available at the date of the financial statements. Actual results may differ from the estimated.

Shown below are the key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimating
uncertainty at the balance sheet date, which represent a significant risk for material adjustments to the
balance sheet items in the following financial year.
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3. PREVIEW OF IMPORTANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

3.17. Preview of important accounting estimates (cont'd)

3.17.1. Amortisation and amortisation rate

Calculation of amortization and amortization rates are based on projected economic useful life of property,
plant and equipment. Once a year, the Company assesses the economic useful life based on current
forecasts.

In addition, due to the significance of fixed assets in the total assets of the Company, any change in the
aforementioned assumptions may lead to material effects on the financial position of the Company as well
as the financial result. As an example, if the Company shorten the average useful life by 10%, this would
result in additional amortization charges for the relevant period ended on 30 June, 2017 in the amount of
about RSD 36.640 thousand (and for the period ended on 30 June 2016: RSD 41.689 thousand).

3.17.2. Correction of values of uncollectable receivables

We calculated value correction for receivables older than 60 days, based on the estimated losses due to
customer inability to fulfil the obligations. Our estimate is based on the ageing analysis of receivables,
historical write-offs, credit worthiness of our customers and changes in the conditions of sale, in determining
the adequacy of the value correction of doubtful and disputed receivables. This also includes assumptions
about future customer behaviour and the resulting future collections. The management believes that no
additional value correction of receivables is necessary, with the exception of value correction already
reported in the financial statements.

3.17.3. Litigations

Overall, provisions have largely been subject to estimates. The Company assesses the likelihood of
adverse cases may occur as a result of past events and assesses the amount required to settle the
obligation. Assessment of potential liabilities arising from legal disputes is carried out by internal expert
services or external advisers.

Although the Company respects the precautionary principle when evaluating, considering that there is a
large dose of uncertainty, in some cases actual results may differ from these estimates.

3.17.4. Fair value

The fair value for the purposes of disclosure under the requirements of IFRS 13 is defined as the price that
would be received for the sale of assets, or paid to transfer obligations in a regular transaction between
market participants on the measurement date.

Business policy of the Company is to disclose information about the fair (fair) value of assets and liabilities
for which official market information exist and when fair value is materially different from the carrying value.
in the Republic of Serbia there is no sufficient market experience, stability and liquidity for the purchase
and sale of receivables and other financial assets or liabilities, given that published market information is
not readily available. Hence, fair value can not be reliably determined in the absence of an active market.
The Company's management assesses risk and when it estimates that the value of assets stated in its
books may not be realized, it makes value corrections. In the opinion of the company management, the
amounts in these financial statements reflect the value that is, in the circumstances, the most valid and
useful for reporting purposes.

The Company measures the fair value of assets and liabilities using assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their best economic
interest. The fair value is the price that would be charged or paid for the transfer of responsibilities in a
regular transaction at the primary or most favourable market on the date of measurement, the current
market conditions, and regardiess of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using other
valuation techniques.
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3.

PREVIEW OF IMPORTANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

3.17. Preview of important accounting estimates (cont'd)

3.17.4. Fair value (cont’d)
Valuation techniques that are applied for measuring fair value, should make maximum use of relevant
observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs.

To increase consistency and comparability in fair value measurements and related disclosures the fair
value hierarchy shall be determined, which classifies into three levels inputs for valuation techniques that
are used in determining the fair value according to the structure below:

Inputs Level 1 - quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets and liabilities to which the
entity has access at the date of weighing. Assumptions of level 1 inputs relate to the existence of the
primary market for the asset or liability or, in the absence of the primary market, the most advantageous
market for the asset or liability; and whether the entity can realize the transaction for the asset or liability
based on market price at the date of measurement.

inputs Level 2 - inputs that are not quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly or indirectly. These inputs include the following: quoted prices for similar assets or
liabilities in active markets, quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not
active, inputs that are not quoted prices, if they are visible for assets or liabilities and inputs supported by
market.

Inputs Level 3 - unobservable inputs for the asset or liability that entity develops using the best information
available in the circumstances. So, all reasonably available information about the market participants
assumptions are considered. Unobservable inputs are considered market participant assumptions and
meet the objective of fair value measurement.

SEPARATION OF REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE OF THE GROUND HANDLING ACTIVITY FROM
THE REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE OF AIRPORT OPERATOR'S ACTIVITIES

Art 4 of the Rule book on the provision of ground handling services at airports - Official Gazette of RS No.
61/2015, stipulates that the airport operator and provider of ground handling services separate accounts
(accounts) for the provision of ground handling services from the accounts for other activities, in
accordance with applicable accounting standards. In the annual financial statements of the airport operator
shall be visible absence of any related financial flows between provision of ground handling services and
its activities as airport operator.

From 01/07/2016 started separate billing of ground handling services from other services of the airport
operator, then determining attributable direct expenditures on the accounting documents of the airport
operator and ground handling activities, as well as allocation of indirect expenditures on airport operators
and ground handling activities on the basis of the adopted keys for allocation of indirect expenditures.
Based on the above, the separation of business results of ground handling activities from airport operator's
activities will in the future be made on the basis of recorded exact data on revenues and expenditures.

Separation of business operations, i.e. realized revenues and expenditures of the Airport for the period I-
V12017, to business activities of the airport operator and the business activities of ground handiing services
was carried out on the basis of the adopted Amended Business Plan for 2016 by the Supervisory Board
{Decision N0.33 -179/1 dated 24/06/2016), that is on the basis of by plan adopted parameters for
separation of ground handling services from the airport operator's activities and defined planned
participation of related expenditures, and according to the Rule book on the provision of ground handling
services at airports. Based on the above and on the realised business results is compiled Income Sheet
for the period I-VI 2017 in which financial results of the airport operator's activities and activities of ground
handling services are shown separately, alongside the same period of the last year as follows:
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3.

JSC AIRPORT NIKOLA TESLA BELGRADE

SEPARATION OF REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE OF THE GROUND HANDLING ACTIVITY FROM THE REVENUE AND
EXPENDITURE OF AIRPORT OPERATOR'S ACTIVITIES (cont'd)
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for the period from 01/01/2017 until 30/06/2017

A. OPERATING REVENUES (1002 + 1009 + 1016 +

1001
1017)
| REVENUES FROM SALE OF GOQDS {1003 + 1002
1004 + 1005 + 1006 + 1007+ 1008}
5. Revenues from sale of goods in domestic 1007
market
6. Revenues from sale of goods in foreign 1008
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If REVENUES FROM SALE OF PRODUCTS AND
SERVICES 1009
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Hi REVENUES FROM PREMIUMS, SUBSIDIES, 1016
GRANTS, DONATIONS ETQ.

1V OTHER QPERATING REVENUES 1017

B. OPERATING EXPENDITURES

(1019~ 10201021 + 1022 + 1023 + 1024 + 1018
1025 + 1026 + 1027 + 1028+ 1029) 2 0

I PURCHASE VALUE OF SOLD GOODS 1019
V. COSTS OF MATERIALS 1023
V1. COSTS OF FUEL AND ENERGY 1024
Vil COSTS OF SALARIES, SALARY

COMPENSATIONS AND OTHER PERSONAL 1025
EXPENSES

Vil1. COSTS OF PRODUCTION SERVICES 1026
IX. AMORTISATION COSTS 1027
X. COSTS OF LONG-TERM RESERVING 1028
XI. INTANGIBLE COSTS 1029
V. OPERATING PROFIT {1001 - 1018) 2 0 1030

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

3,555,500

10,421

10,421

3,097,648

1,284,413

1,813,235

0

447,431

1,874,124

14,259
48,633

98,605

1,006,879

185,211
300,286

5,370
214,881

1,681,376

774,502

774,902

356,650
418,252

0

0

701,734

0
47,148

41,870
498,356

18,532
66,112

0
29,716

73,168

4,330,402

10,421

10,421

3,872,550

1,641,063

2,231,487

0

447,431

2,575,858

14,259
95,781

140,475,

1,505,235

203,743
366,398
5,370

244,597

1,754,544

3,187,837

56,054

998

55,056

2,724,119

1,183,406

1,540,713

230

407,434

1,669,467

51,234
52,296

94,326

885,143

136,107
332,726

19872
115,663

1,518,370

732,520

732,520

294,111

438,409

719,705

0
23,883

32,960

534,170

32,290
84,167

23
12,207

12,815

-in thousand RSD -

3,920,357

56,054

998

55,056

3,456,639

1,477,517

1,979,122

230

407,434

2,389,172

51,234
76,179

127,286

1,419,313

168,397
416,893
2,000

127,870

1,531,185
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4. SEPARATION OF REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE OF THE GROUND HANDLING ACTIVITY FROM
THE REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE OF AIRPORT OPERATOR'S ACTIVITIES (cont'd)

JSC AIRPORT NIKOLA TESLA BELGRADE
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47,424
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641
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0
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164,203}

19,001
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215,647

37,373
0

1,387,231
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53,406
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¥
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21,640
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71,818
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15,934
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1,610,779
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0

1,364,184

3,350,681
1,739,902

18

1,169

11,664

11,664

1,786

9,878

732,538
720,874

-inthousand RSD -

126,312

53,406,

72,906

54,494

21,640

32,854

71,818,

285

36,265

17,103

1,622,443

1,622,443

171,552
76,828
0

1,374,062

4,083,219
2,460,776
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5. REVENUES FROM SALE OF GOODS

Revenues from sale of beverages in catering facilities
Revenues from sale of fuel in domestic market
Revenues from sale of crude oil

Revenues from sale of goods in domestic market
Revenues from sale of goods - kerosene (re-export)
Revenues from sale of fuel in foreign market

Revenues from sale of goods in foreign market

JSC AIRPORT NIKOLA TESLA BELGRADE

1-Vi 2017 I-VI 2016
in 000 RSD  in 000 RSD
663 422

0 ‘ 576

9,758 0
10,421 998

0 55,056

0 0

0 55,056

10,421 56,054

REVENUES FROM THE SALE OF SERVICES of the Airport in domestic and foreign markets totaily in the period |-
VI 2017 were separated on revenues from services provided by the airport operator's activities and
revenues made by the activity of ground handling services on the basis of real income and by the plan
adopted parameters for the separation of ground handling services from the airport operator’s activities, as

shown in the following table:

1V 2017 1-VI 2016
6. REVENUES FROM SALE OF Total Revenues = Revenues Total Revenues
SERVICES IN DOMESTIC Revenues of | Revenues Ereve.nues of from w ithout Revenues @ Revenues revo‘nues Revenue.s without
MARKETWITHREVENUESOF  siport  of ground-  "PO™  foreign  foreign || ofairport of ground. O aurport fromforeign o o)
GROUND HANDLING SERVICES operator handling {with for. buyer buyer operator . handiing {with for. buyer buyer
| buyer o nches  branches ; buyer — branches  nches
. branches) : . branches)
i - [ 2 - Y ¥ ¢ 5 6 (4:5) 78 9 (748) 107777 11(8-10)
in 000 RSD in 000 RSD
Passenger service * 591,758 25333 617,091 48006 569,085 577,136, 24,447 601,583 44751 556,832
Security fee 266,426 0 28e426 12413 254013|] 197780 0 497,780 8800 188,890
Landing 105517 0 105,517 17190  88327|| 102,887, 0 102,887 18606 84,281
Aircraft handing * ' o 1124020 112,402 19527 92875 UL 84700 11e170 24946, 91224
Infrastructure ‘ 64,975 o 64,975 13528 51,447 64,340 0. 64,340 14,116 50,224
Air-bridges * 3810, 401 4011 4001 10)f 5022, 0 5,022 5,022 -
Lighting 28206 0 28,266 658 27,808 28335 0 28335 724 27611
Aircraft abode tax T 2 o 22 28 2103 23130 2,313 T 2313
Aircraft de-icing services * 0 70654 70654 3839 66815 "o 31908 31,908 2068 29,840
Commercial use of apron 20473 o 29473 - 20473 25212 0 25,272 - 25272
Usage of the CUTE system 35,353 0 35,383 2421 32932 34178 ) 34,178 2216 31,962
Services on special request * 3055 65370 68,425 361 68,064|] 7314 48,948 56,262 383 55879
Renting of advertisement space = 34,838 0 34838 - 34838 30806 0 30,806 - 30806
Public services 83118 0 83,18 498 82,619 79430 0 79430 426 79,004
Cargo-customservices * 0 80702 80702 341 80,361 0 1447 71,447 Tart 11078
g Soapanackiae . e e U ' ; e ’ Lo nem
Lost and found services * ‘ To sz ss2 B2 0 o 4o 406 w0 -
Use of parkinglots 131,208 0 34,208 308 30,900 24,368 0 24,388 77300 24,068
Other services * 4595, 1236 5831 286 5575 4225 785 5,010 2300 4781
:“:‘:;‘::""""” indomestic . 5,413 356650 1,641,083 123928 1,517,135 1183406 204111 1471617 123455 1354063

Revenue from services realized by foreign companies that were registered in the Republic of Serbia as a
"branch", are recorded in the books in line with legislation as income from domestic customers. Since the
physical scope of services of specified branches is recorded in the Company as a physical volume of
services of foreign companies, said revenue are shown in Note 6 and 7 in the way they are recorded in
accounting, and also in a separate column as revenues from sales of goods and services from registered
branches, for insight in the amount and participation of these revenues, which are recorded as revenues
generated in the domestic market, but the essence is that the origin of these revenues is the foreign market.
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7. REVENUES FROM SALEOF
SERVICES IN DOMESTIC
MARKET WITH REVENUES OF
GROUND HANDLING SERVICES

Passenger service *
Security fee
Landing

Aircraft hand!ing *
hirastructure
Air-bridges 0
Lighting

Aircraft abode tax

Aircraft de-icing services *

Commercial use of apfon

Usage of the CUTE system
Services on special request *
Renting of advertisement space

Public services
Cargo-custom services *
Consuking seryices

DCS services * )

Lost and found services *

Use of parking lots
Other services *

il Total services in foreign

‘market

#l Total revenues from the

sale of products and
services (IH)

JSC AIRPORT NIKOLA TESLA BELGRADE

2017
1-Vi 2017 I-Vi2616
Total Revenues Revenues Total
Revenues of Revenues revenues of from with Revenues Revenues reve.nues Revenugs R.evenuc.as
airport of ground- Airport (wlo foreign foreign of airport  of ground- of Airport  fromforeign with foreign
operator handling for. buyer buyer buyer operator handiing (wio for. buyer buyer
branches)  branches branches buyer branches branches
branches)
2 3 4 (2+3) 5 6 (4+5) 7 8 9 (7+8) 10 11(9-10)
in 000 RSD in 000 RSD
835,545 27,298 862,843 48006 910,849 705,596 22,671 728,267 44,751 773,018
239,829 0 239,829 12,413 252,242 156,394 0 156,394 8,890 165,284
332,145 o 332,145 17,190 349,335 305,346 0 305,346 18,606 323,952
0 301,807 301,807 19,527 321,334 ' 0 338408 338,408 24,946 363,354
215,499 0 215,499 13,528 229,0271] 201,041 0 201,041 14116 215157
86,964 9,663 96,627 4001 100,628 81,363 9,041 90,404 5,022 95,426
35,162 0 35,162 658 35820 31,847 0 31,847 724 32,571
13,746 0 13,746 28 13774 12,286 0 12,286 - 12,286
0 45318 45318 3830 49,157 0 26,468 26,468 2,068 28,536
o B Rt ' 5 . S ’ °
46,732 0 46,732 2,421 49,153 39,500 0 39,500 2216 41,716
2,71 9,824 12,595 361 12,056 811 12,061 12,872 383 13,255
o 0 0 o - 734 0 734 - 734
544 0 544 499 1,043 643 0 643 426 1,069
0 6,089 6,089 341 6,430 o 6,189 6,189 37 6,560
0 o ) - - 0 0 o - 0
0 7,036 7,936 - 7,936 0 13,265 13,265 - 13,265
0 7,077 7,077, 552 7,629 0 6,888 6,888 406 7,294
5 0 5 308 313 0 0 o 300 300
4,293 3,240 7,533 256 7,789{| 867,142 26,089 893,231 230 9,007
1813235 418262 2231487 123928 2355415 4 uooie gapane 1079122 123455 2.102576
3,097,648 774902 3,872,550 - 3,872,550|| 2,724,119 732,520 3,456,639 - 3,456,639
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8. Revenues from sale of services per geograph.region 1-Vi 2017 1-V1 2016
in 000 RSD in 000 RSD

Serbia k 1,517,135 1,354,063
Germany (Lufthansa+Germanwings +Europi.+Air Berlin+Eurojet) 342,587 306,712
Montenegro (Montenegro-+other buyers in MN) ‘ 247,426 241,464
Austria (branch of Austrian Airlines +Niki) 122,948 123,241
Switzerland (Swis Air) ' 163,878 155,465
Russia (Aeroflot) o 188,511 166,359
Turkey (Turkish +Pegasus+Atlas Global) 339,191 237,859
Spain (Swift Air) - 20,151 20,100
taly (Al italia) - ‘ - 81,289 76,781
Abu Dhabi (branch Etihad Air+Etihad Air) ' ‘ o 82,590 74,832
Hungary (Wiz Air) ‘ 320,264 321,293
Romania (Tarom) - 27,146 . 22493
Tunisia (Tunis Air) - - 16,712 14,113
Greece (Aegean) S ‘ 40,204 54,459
England (Easyjet) ‘ - 38,198 34,187
Norway (Norwegian) - ‘ ‘ 48484 . 47973
Poland (Polskie linie LOT) ‘ - 50,199 33474
Dubai (Fly Dubai) - - o 53,959 36,751
Qatar (Qatar Airways) ‘ o ” 45636 49,081
Israel (EI Al Israel + Israir Airlines +Arkia) ' - 78,054 o 0
Other foreign buyers ‘ ‘ o 47,988 85,939
‘ . R - 3,872,550 3,456,639

Revenues from sale of services per buyers I-VI1 2017 1-V1 2016
- ‘ ' in 000 RSD in 000 RSD

Air Serbia - Serbia . o ‘ 1,219,191 1,091,903
Deutche Lufthansa - Germany ‘ ' ' 298,949 274,921
Montenegro Airfines - Montenegro - 243,066 241,021
Branch of Austrian Airlines - Austria : © 122948 122631
Swiss International Airlines - Switzerland o ; 163,878 155465
Turkish Airlines - Turkey - - ; - - 193,696 ; - 190817
Aeroflot - Russna 188,511 166,359
Polskie linie LOT - Poland - - 50,199 33474
Alitalia Societa Aerea ltaliana SR.L.-ltaly ; 81,289 - 76,781
Swift Air Aviation - Spain 20,151 20,100
European Ar-Germany 23754 11211
‘Norwegian Air - Norway , N - 48,484 ; 47 973
Easyjet - England , ; 38,198 34187
Wizz Air+branch (Hungary) ; ; , 320,264 321,293
Tarom Romanian Air Transport - Romama - ; 27,146 22493
Pegasus Alrllnes - Turkey - 49,516 B 46,362
Tunis Ar-Tunisia a2 14113
Fly Dubai - Dubai 563,959 36,751
Aegean airlines - Greece - 40204 = 54459
Iran Air - Iran . o i D 3,003
Qatar Airways Q.C.S. - Qatar 45636 - 49,081
Etihad Airways PJSC + branch Etnhad Auways PJSC Abu Dhabi ) - 82,590 74832
'NIS AD - Serbia 26,324 21,871
JAT Technica - Serbia - 9,460 11,600
Parking service - Serbia o o o 1a382 14254
Alma Quatro - Serbia - - ; ; ~ 10,600 ; ~ 10,657
Dufrydoo Belgrade - Serbia - ; ; 27,296 27,510
Israir Airlines - Israel 53,301 0
Other domestic buyers - Serbia - 209882 176,268
Other foreign buyers ; 192,964 105,389
o ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ 3,872,550 3,456,639
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9. OTHER BUSINESS REVENUES

Revenues from lease to domestic legal persons
Revenues from lease to foreign legal persons

JSC AIRPORT NIKOLA TESLA BELGRADE

10. PURCHASE VALUE OF SOLD GOODS

Purchase value of sold retail goods
Purchase value of sold kerosene - re-export
Purchase value of sold crude oil

Purchase value of sold fuel

11. COSTS OF MATERIALS

Costs of production material (basic materials, tools and
inventory, working and official clothing and footwear)
Overhead costs of material (office material)

Costs ofspare parts
~Costs oftoo!s and mventory

12. COSTS OF FUEL AND ENERGY

Costs ofgasolme and diesel fuel
Costs of oil fuel for heating
Costs of electnc energy

13. COSTS OF SALARIES, SALARY COMPENSATIONS AND
OTHER PERSONAL EXPENSES

Gross salaries and salary reimbursements - employees
tGross salaries and salary reimbursements - management
Taxes and contributions at cost of employer

Costs of reimburs. per service contract and royalties “
Costs of reimbursement for youth organisations etc.

Costs of reimburs. for mem ber of SB SA, rev. commlttee
Transport of em p|oyees

Cots of busmess trip

Terminal wages and jubilee bonuses

Difference for paymentto the bUdget of RS, based on the Law on
-reduction of public sector wages

Premiums for voluntary pension insurance

New Year presents for children of em ployees - not subject to taxa ‘

Compensation on Contracts for professional development
Solldantyallowance (newborns treatment natural disasters etc.)
Other personal expendltures

1-VI 2017 1-V1 2016

in 000 RSD in 000 RSD

443639 404,057

3,792 3,377

447 431 407,434
1-V1 2017 V12016

in 000 RSD in 000 RSD
477 361

- 50,873

13,782 -
14,259 51,234

B 1-V1 2017 1-VI2016
~in 000 RSD in 000 RSD
75,411 49137
11,374 3,969
8,996 14434

- 8,639
95,781 76,179

; “ VI 2017 ) V12016
in 000 RSD in 000 RSD
34,853 29,892

18,697 11,289
86,925 86,105
140,475 127,286
1-Vi 2017 -V1 2016

- in0DORSD  in000 RSD.
835,322 811,152

18,469 13,056
152,828 147,533

208 ‘ 319
316,161 277,213
4,378 4,192

‘ 35,931 133,209
7,362 - 2636
1,707 751
77,229 74,092

44,813 42,407
2,209 3,683
8,618 8,101

- ‘ 969

1,505,235 1,419,313
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14. COSTS OF PRODUCTION SERVICES

IT services on passenger and baggage check-in
Costs of phone and other PTT senvices

Costs of maintenance services

Lease costs -

Advertising costs

Costs of catering services oftenants - (re-invoiced to airlines)

Costs of utilities
Costs of production services

15. AMORTISATION COSTS

Arnortisation costs for intangible investments
Amortisation costs for property
Arnortisation costs for egivipment

16. COSTS OF LONG-TERM RESERVING

Costs of reserving for terminal wages
,Costs ofresenving forjubllee awards
Costs ofreserving for htlgatlons

17. INTANGIBLE COSTS

Costs of health services

Costs of cleaning services

Costs of consulting services

Costs of different kinds ofassessments ‘
Costs ofprofessmnal development

Costs of services for the current accountlng soﬁware

kCosts of other non-productlon services
Costs of representatlon

Costs of insurance

Costs of payment system

Members hips

Property taxand other relm bursements
Cther intangible costs

JSC AIRPORT NIKOLA TESLA BELGRADE

I-VI 2017 I-V1 2016
in 000 RSD in 000 RSD
19,183 24,919
10,635 11,927
87,908 68,137
17,514 23,007
48,282 21,173
699 989
17,096 13,394
2426 4,851
203,743 168,397
I-V1 2017 V12016
~in 000 RSD in 000 RSD
21,390 10,808
162,959 215,844
182,049 190,241
366,398 416,893
1V12017 I-V12016
“in 000 RSD |in 000 RSD
5,370 2,000

5,370 2,000
I-V1 2017 1-V12016
in 000 RSD in 000 RSD
8372 6,233
29,804 24831
57,645 -
34,348 5010
10,376 5,105
6,483 7,106
10,809 8,093
1,688 1,953
17,303 12,109
2,953 2,709
1,381 5964
40,218 39,619
23,217 9,138
244597 127,870




JSC AIRPORT NIKOLA TESLA BELGRADE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS June 30, 2017

18. INTEREST INCOME V12017 -Vl 2016
in 000 RSD in 000 RSD

Interestin term deposits in RSD 15,705 17,921
Interest for RSD deposits in current accounts 809 1,583
Interest in term deposits in foreign currency 29,736 26,548
Interest for foreign currency deposits in current accounts 678 2,808
Interest on housing loans k k 447 425 -
Interests upon court decisions k 49 4121,
' . ‘ ‘ - 47,424 53,406
19. POSITIVE EXCHANGE RATE DIFFERENCES AND POSITIVE 1-V1 2017 I-VI 2016
EFFECTS OF CURRENCY CLAUSE TOWARD THIRD PARTIES) ﬁ
- ‘ o - o in 000 RSD in 000 RSD
Revenues from reahzed exchange rate differences - 14,775 53,418
Revenues from non- reallzed exchange rate dlfferences 16',697' 16,753
Revenues from effects of contracted currency clause (reahzed) ; , 9 37
Revenues from effects ofcontracted ‘currency clause (non- reahzed) 89 2 698;
31,570 72 906;
'20. INTEREST EXPENDITURES V12017 I-V1 2016
L - B B in000RSD  in 000 RSD
Interests for Iong—term EIB Ioan - ‘ » kk k - - ’ 17,251 “ . 19,755
Interest for financial Ieasmg ' k k - ' - N
'Default interestin the country ‘ ' ‘ “ ‘, ‘k - 1,746 164
flnterestfor untimely paid publlc revenues 4 1,721
\ ‘ v 19,001 21,640
'21. NEGATIVE EXCHANGE RATE DIFFERENCES AND NEGTIVE I-VI 2017 I-VI 2016
'EFFECTS OF CURRENCY CLAUSE ~,
- ‘ B ~ in 000 RSD in 000 RSD
Negatwe exchange rate differences- reahzed 42,608' - o 20,926
Negative exchange rate differences - non-realized 98,412 11,912
Expend;tures from effects of contr. currency clause - realised - 96 16
Expenditures from effects ofcontr currency clause - non- -realised - 4,086 -
‘ 145,202 32,854
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS June 30, 2017

22. INCOME FROM VALUE ADJUSTMENT OF OTHER ASSETS

Value adjustment of receivables:

- from natural persons for housing loans (cancellation of
impairment on collection basis and fair value basis)
Other non-mentioned revenues '

23. EXPENDITURES FROM VALUE ADJUSTMENT OF OTHER
ASSETS

klmpalrmentof receivables from housmg loans
Value adjustment of receivables from buyers

24. OTHER REVENUES

Revenues from sale ofequment and materials ;
Revenues of collected corrected receivables from buyers

Revenues from cancel.of reserv. for I|t|gat|ons and empl. beneftsk

Revenues from mdemmtyfrom legal and natural persons
Revenues from charged court costs

Revenues of previous years

Positive eﬁects of contracted revaluatlon o

Other non- mentloned revenues B

25. OTHER EXPENDITURES

Loss from sale and write-off of basic resources ;

Litigation costs

Costs for humamtanan health and smentlﬁc purposes o
Expendltures of previous years

Other non-mentioned expendﬂufes

Expendltures from trade unions

JSC AIRPORT NIKOLA TESLA BELGRADE

1-VI 2017 I-V1 2016

in 000 RSD in 000 RSD.
963 285

963 285

I-VI 2017 I-VI 2016

in 000 RSD in 000 RSD
869 -

24,169 7
25,038 7

v 2017 I-VI 2016

in 000 RSD in 000 RSD.

845 181

45 199

- 32,573

4,356 2,273
401 96

- 925

10 14

13,623 4
9,080 36,265

; VI 2017 -Vl 2016

in 000 RSD in 000 RSD.

2652 15

1537 202

7.607 7522

429 5,782

2,505 3,000

14,730 17,103




JSC AIRPORT NIKOLA TESLA BELGRADE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS June 30, 2017

26. PROFIT TAX

a) Components of profit tax I-VI1 2017 1-V1 2016
‘ ‘ - in000RSD  in 000 RSD
Period tax expenditure ; 215,647 171,552
Correction of period tax expenditure ; ; - ‘ -
Period tax expenditure after correction , 215,647 171,552
Deferred perioq tax expenditure , ; ; 37,373 76,829
Deferred income tax N ; N , ’ ; - -
Correction of defer(ed income tax ; ; - -
; e 253,020 248,381
Effective taxrate , ; 15.43% 1 5.31%
b) Recenc:lla tion of profit tax am_:l product of result from V1 2017 1-V1 2016
operation before tax and prescribed tax rate
o o | ~ in00ORSD  in000RSD
Profit before tax 1,640,251 1,622,443
Profittaxcalculated atrate of 15% - 246,038 243,366
Tax effect ofexpenditures not acknowledged in taxbalance 2,196 12,683
.Correction in tax effect of amortisation expenditures not acknowledged in tax
balance B R ; oo essy -
Taxcredit for investment in fixed assets of previous years ; (22,736) (84,497)
Correction of using tax credits from previous years ; o - B -
Period tax expenditure - , ; 7 215647 v 171,552
v) Achieved, unused and unrecognised tax credit (TC) in 000 RSD
Year of tAmo;Jnt °; Correction of Used TC Outstanding
expiry ranergrre TC TC for transfer
kYear of fecognition of tax credit k from 2016 N kin 2017 30/06/2017 .
2012 o 2022 - o - -
2013 2023 - 22,736 0 22,736 -
* Balance of tax credit - 22,736 0 . 22736 -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS June 30, 2017
27. DEFERRED PERIOD TAX REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES

Changes on account of deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax assets as of 31/12/2016 and as of
30/06/2017 are shown in the following tables:

Recognised .
in other Recognised
a) Deferred tax assets (deferred tax liabilities) 01/01/2016  gains & in income 31/12/2016
2016 sheet I-Xli
E— losses I-XlI 2016
- 2016

Long-term assets

Intangible assets, property plant, equment and

267,075 80,517 79,326 426,918
investment property ( ) ) ) ( )

Long-term liabilities

Prowvisions for retirement and other employee 16,536 ©671) 3,682 195 47‘

benefits ;
Provisions for litigations 17,312 - (5237) 12,075
Shortterm liabilities - ) o ;
Liabilities for taxes, contnbut:ons and fees 186 - 12 198
Calculated, but not paid employee earnings, art 9, ‘ - ‘ ‘
paragraph 2 of the Law - - 2,079 2,079
Unused tax credits 144733 - (121,997) 22736
(88,308)  (81,188) (200,787) (370,283)
» R o
b) Deferred tax assets (deferred tax liabilities) 01/01/2017  gains & in income 30/06/2017
2017 sheet I-Vi ;
- losses |-V 2017 ~
2017
Long-term assets
Intangible assets, property, plant equupment and
(426,918) - (13,131)  (440,049)
investment property
Shortterm assets o o |
Receivables from sale o - - -
Short-term financial investments - - e
Long-term liabilities ' ‘ ‘ -
Provisions for retirement and other employee 19,547 i ( 1 448) 18,009
benefits B ; ; ‘
Provisions for litigations o 12,075 - 498 12,573
Short-term liabilities - ' - - -
Liabilities for taxes, contributions and fees - 198 - P 195
Calculated, but not paid employee eamings, art 9, ' ‘ ‘
paragraph 2 of the Law o - 2,079 - (553) - 1,526
Other ; ;
Unused tax losses ) ‘ - - - -
Unused tax credits ‘ - 22,736 - (22,736) ‘-‘
(370,283) - (37,373) (407,656)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS June 30, 2017

DEFERRED PERIOD TAX REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES (cont'd)

Balance of recognized deferred tax assets as of 30/06/2017 amounts RSD 32.393 thousand and all
refers to deferred tax assets on 30/06/2017 calculated with the applicable corporate income tax rate of
15% on the balance of the provisions for retirement provisions for jubilee benefits, provisions for litigation
and on the balance of unpaid public revenues, as well as for the amount of unpaid and recognized
expenditures for employees' salaries from article 9, paragraph 2 of the Law on corporate income tax, as
the same relate to temporary differences that will be recognized in tax period in which the same are
paid. The balance of recognized deferred tax liabilities as of 30/06/2017 amounts to RSD 440.049
thousand.

After application of the requirements of IAS 12 that is offsetting of deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities on the balancing date, the balance of deferred tax liabilities as of 30/06/2017 amounts to RSD
407.656 thousand (on 31/12/2016 RSD 370.283 thousand).

Effects from changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities in relation to the initial balance, in the amount
of RSD 37.373 thousand, are recorded at the cost of the deferred period tax expenditures.

28. PROFIT PER SHARE ‘ ‘ V12017 V12016
- B ; ‘ ~ inOOORSD  in000RSD
kNe,t prqﬁtfor owners - o B - 1,38,7,231‘ ‘1@374’062
Net profit correction - -
‘Net‘ proﬁtéftercorrection , ' ; o - 1,387,231 N 1,374,062
Averaggd weighted number ofsﬁhares ; , - ; ’ 34,289{350, 34,289,350
Basic earnings per share in RSD 40.46 40.07

29.a. INTANGIBLE INVESTMENTS

; i in 000 RSD

DESCRIPTION 30/06/2017 31/12/2016
‘Purch‘ayks'.é value | | . ; : : S
Initialybalance, ‘ ) , N 187,042 ; ,102'871 ;
Procurements during the year ; - k34,788 . 84,171
‘Nienatiyon, removal from inventory and sale ; ; , , (516) -
Other ; ; ; o . 6.276) )
Fnalbalance o 215038 187,042
Value correction N S |
‘Initial balance - - 51,312 ; 22,348
Amdrtisatipn in current year ’ ’ 21,390 o 28,964
Alienation, removal from inventory and sale o ~ (516) -
Final balance ; 72,186 51,312
Net present value , 142,852 135,730

Total investment into intangible assets amounts RSD 34.788 thousand.
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JSC AIRPORT NIKOLA TESLA BELGRADE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS June 30, 2017

30. SHARES IN CAPITAL OF OTHER LEGAL ENTITIES AND OTHER
SECURITIES

Privredna banka a.d. Belgrade
Minus: value correc.of partic. in capital of banks in bankruptcy

Part:c:patlon m capltal of banks in liquidation
Union banka a.d. Belgrade in liquidation
Beogradska banka a.d. Belgrade - in liquidation
Beobanka a.d. Belgrade in llqmdatlon

Minus: value cor’reo.of‘p‘artylc. in oapitel of banks in llquld:a\tion'

Partlc:pa tion in capltal of forelgn Iegal entities
‘Mondial Bodrum - Turkey
Societe lnternatlonal de Telecomunic. Aeronauthues Swisse (SlTA)

Mmus value corr ofpammp in capltal of Mondial Bodrum - Turkey

31.a. OTHER LONG-TERM FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS

Membership in Societe International de Telecomunications
Aeronautiques Swisse (SITA)

Long-term loans to employees

Receivables for sold socially owed housing

Recelvables for purchase ofsolldanty housing

Total gross

Current maturities oflong-term mvestments in SITA
Current maturities oflong-term loans to employees
Adjustment offalr value oflong—term loans to ‘employees

30/06/2017 31/12/2016

in 000 RSD in 000 RSD

392 392

(392) (392)
667 667 -

18,988 18,988
38 - 38

19,693 19,693

(19, 693) (19,693)
358,598 358,598

1 1
(358,598) (358,598)

1 1.

1 1
30/06/2017 311212016
in 000 RSD in 000 RSD
5,736 6,360
273,846 284,552
1,160 1,168
2,226 2,196
282,968 294,276

~ (629) (698)
(8,845) (14,233)
(137,697) (138,400)

135,797 140,945

Receivables from employees for long-term loans for purchase and tenant purchaser of apartments as
of 30/06/2017 amount to RSD 277.232 thousand ((including long-term receivables in the amount of
RSD 268.387 thousand and current maturities in the amount of RSD 8,845 thousand). Effects of
adjustment to fair value amount to total of RSD 137.997 thousand (RSD 137.697 thousand for the part
of long-term receivables from empioyees and RSD 300 thousand for the part referring to current
maturities of long-term receivables). The aforementioned relates to loans {o employees for meeting
the housing needs granted for a period of 20-40 years. The estimate of the fair value of housing loans
as of 31/12/2016 is performed by a certified assessor by projection of future cash flows from collection
of receivables for housing loans using discount rates (built-up method). from 5,5% to 20%, depending
on whether and in what intervals housing loans are revalued or contracted with currency clause,
whether they have contracted interest rate or are contracted without interest rate.

31 b. OTHER LONG-TERM RECEIVABLES - ADP 0041

R‘e‘ceivables from ‘buyer's‘based on anyk/-\kgreement on deblrescheduling

30/06/2017

311122016

'in 000 RSD in 000 RSD
83,819 83,819
83,819 83,819
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JSC AIRPORT NIKOLA TESLA BELGRADE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS June 30, 2017

32. MATERIAL, SPARE PARTS, TOOLS AND SUPPLIES - ADP 0045

Basic material

Spare parts

Tools and supplles ;

Value correction of material and spafe parts stock

33. GOODS-ADP 0048

‘Goods in warehouse- kerosene
Goods in retah trade

'34. ADVANCES FOR SUPPLIES AND SERVICES ADP 0050

‘Advances for services in the country
‘Advances forfore|gn semces
Advance va!ue correctlon ‘ ‘

35. BUYERS IN THE COUNTRY

Total balance of recelvables from buyers m the country-gross k
-Value correction of the previous period
~Value correction ofthe current period

Total balance of value correction

30/06/2017 31/12/2016
in 000 RSD in 000 RSD
74,978 46,906
23,890 10,502
8,767 4,926
(62) (62)
107,573 62,272
30/06/2017 3112/2016
in 000 RSD in 000 RSD
4,786 4,786
26 30
4812 4,816
30/06/2017 3111212016
~ in000RSD in 000§ RSD:
27,087 17,603
1,224 946
28,311 18,549
30/06/2017 311212016
in 000 RSD | in 000 RSD
662,805 638,795
(278,284) (116,263)
(20,056) (162,021)
(298,340) (278,284)
364,465 360,511

Receivables from the buyers in the country on 30/06/2017 amount RSD 662.805 thousand, of which
to undue receivables refer RSD 307.444 thousand, due receivables up to 30 days RSD 20.577

thousand and due receivables over 30 days RSD 334.784 thousand.

Total value correction of receivables from buyers in the country in the amount of RSD 298.340
thousand mainly relates to value correction of receivables from sued domestic buyers in the amount
of RSD 176.529 thousand and other domestic buyers RSD 121.811 thousand.

36. BUYERS ABROAD

Total balance of receivables from forelgn buyers-gross
-Value correction of the previous penod
~-Value correctlon ofthe previous period

_Total balance of value correction

30/06/2017 311 2/2016

|n 000 RSD in 000 RSD
884, 336 672 826
(12,326) (12,411)

- (689)  (400)

{(13,015) (12,901)
871,321 659,925

Receivables from foreign buyers on 30/06/2017 amount RSD 884.336 thousand (undue receivables
RSD 592.749 thousand, due receivables up to 30 days RSD 143.624 thousand and due receivables
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JSC AIRPORT NIKOLA TESLA BELGRADE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS June 30, 2017

over 30 days RSD 147.963 thousand). Total value correction of receivables from foreign buyers in the
amount of RSD 13.015 thousand relates to value correction of receivables from sued domestic buyers

in the amount of RSD 6.328 thousand and other foreign buyers RSD 6.687 thousand.

37. OTHER RECEIVABLES

Receivables from buyers in the country for default mterest
Receivables for interest on term deposit

Receivables from employees ;

Other rece;vables o

Recelvables for overpaid i income tax

Total receivables - - gross

- Value corr.from buyers for defaultinterest of previous years
- Value corr.from buyers for defau!t mterest ofthe current year
Value correction of the earlier penod

-Value correction of the current period

- Va!uecorr.of other reck:etvableysk ;

Total balance of value correction

38. SHORT-TERM CREDITS AND LOANS IN THE COUNTRY

Short-term loans to employees (wint stores, heating means - 6 mor

39, OTHER SHORT-TERM FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS |

‘Short-term tsme deposnts
Current matuntxes oflong—term housmg loans to employees

Current maturities oflong-term investmentin SITA

Adjustment of 1alr value ot cufrent maturiies of housing ioans 10
employees

© 30/06/2017 3111212016
in 000 RSD in 000 RSD
5,296 24,905
39,815 42,136
1,699 1,347
44257 84,518
310,626 238,912
401,693 391,818
(385) " (385)
(3,425) -
(570) (570)
(2,452) (2,452)
(6,832) (3,407)
394,861 388,411
30/06/2017 31/12/2016
in000RSD __ in 000 RSD
70,466 50,953
70,466 . 50,953
30/06/2017 311212016
in000ORSD ~ in0OOORSD
2,725,591 3,920,027
8,845 14,233
629 698
2,735,065 - 3,934,958
(300) (464)
2734,765 3,934,494

Short-term time deposits with balance on 30/06/2017 are disclosed in the amount of RSD 2,725,591
thousand, and relate to foreign currency and dinar deposits, for the period of six months. Time

deposits are deposited in several business banks.
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JSC AIRPORT NIKOLA TESLA BELGRADE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS June 30, 2017

41. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 30/06/2017 31/12/2016
‘ in 000 RSD in 000 RSD
Current account - m RSD 148,147 158,629
Current account - in foreign currency 555,275 - 578,893
Treasury 151 13
Other funds ‘ 2,666 2,567
Total cash-balance 706,239 740,102
42. PREPAYMENTS AND ACCRUED INCOME 30/06/2017 31/12/2016
- ' - - in000RSD ~ in000RSD
Prepaid VAT + overpaid VAT ‘ 1174 33,856
Prepaid insurance costs for the future penod 110,864 21,680
Prepaid other costs for the future penod Consult. servrces for the future | k 46,841 ' 93,682
Prepaid other costs for the future period : 22,098 34,286
Calculated and non- mvorced revenues fot the current penod ‘ 101 51,957?
Pre- calculated costs 2,507 170
83,585 235,631
43.CAPITAL 30/06/2017 311212016
o o in 000 RSD in 000 RSD'
Share capital 20,573,610 20,573,610
Reserves 5,254,126 4,120,259
Revaluatlon resewes 599 364 601,827
Actuarial gains 16,590 16,590
Non-distributed profit ofprewous years 1,167 303
Non-distributed profit of the current year 1,387,231 1,774,932
27,832,088 27,087,521

44. SHARE CAPITAL

On the basis of the Law on amendments and supplements to the Law on right {o free shares and
financial compensation realized by the citizens in the privatization process, the Company was obliged
to carry out a change of legal form until 30 September 2010 and disclose its capital in shares of a
certain nominal value of the based on the adjusted carrying value of equity. in 2010, on the basis of
Resolution of the Government of the Republic of Serbia N0.023-448/2010-1, recommendations were
made to the Company, to make a selection of the best consultant who will assess the market value
of equity and provide assistance in preparing and carrying out the legal changes of the form from a
public company into a stock company.

The Government of the Republic of Serbia on 17 June 2010 adopted the Decision No.023-4432/2010
on the legal form of the Company from a public company into a closed joint stock company.

The change is registered at the Business Registers Agency by Decision No. BD 68460/2010 dated
22 June 2010, subscribing capital in total amount of EUR 214,556,965, which on the date of entry
was RSD 20,573,610 thousand.

45



JSC AIRPORT NIKOLA TESLA BEL.GRADE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS June 30, 2017

44. SHARE CAPITAL (cont’d)

In the Central Securities Depository, on 7 July 2010, was registered 34,289,350 shares with a nominal
value of RSD 600 per share, which were on 31.12.2010 in the property of the Republic of Serbia.

in accordance with the Law on right to free shares and financial compensation realized by the citizens
in the privatization procedure ("Official Gazette" no. 123/07 and 30/10) on 09 December 2010 based
on the Decision of the Government of the Republic of Serbia No. 023- 9103/2010-1, right to transfer
16.85% of the Company ownership acquired citizens of the Republic of Serbia, employees and ex-
employees of the Company.

On 21 January 2011, the Company's Assembly adopted the Decision No. 21-2/1 on the conversion
of the Company from closed into open joint stock company. The change was registered at the
Business Registers Agency by Decision No. BD 765/2011 dated 24 January 2011.

The capital structure after the transfer of ownership of the data from the Central Securities Depository
and Clearing House on 25 January 2011, was as follows:

‘Share capital 25/01/2011 (transition to open joint Value in thousand % of

stock company) RSD Number of shares particip.
RepublicofSerbia T 17107193 28511988  83.15%
'Emplpyees and ex—empkl‘oyees ofthe Company - 574,004 956673 2.79%
CitiZens of the Republkickpkaerbia - 2,892,413 4,820,689 14.06%
20,573,610 34,289,350 100.00%

The capital structure on 30/06/2017 and 31/12/2016 was as following:

sowezot7 311212016

Shareholder Value in Numberof  %of  Auein Numberof % of
thousand shares articip. thousand shares artici

RSD parucip. RSD partcip.

Republic of Serbia 17106322 28510537 83.15% 17,106,321 28,510,535 83.15%

Domestic and foreigh

2,004,283 3,340,472 9.74% 2,040,253 3,400,421 992%
naturalypersons ; :

Domestic and foreign 676,385 1,127,308 3.29% 716,733  1,194555 3.48%
legal persons L , ) » o ,
Custody entities 786,620 1311033 382% 710303 11183839 3.45%

20,573,610 34,289,350 100.00% 20,573,610 34,289,350 100.00%
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JSC AIRPORT NIKOLA TESLA BELGRADE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS June 30, 2017

45. OTHER COMPONENTS OF THE CAPITAL

Balance on 01/01/2016

Legal reserves

Statutoryreserves

Revaluation reserves for land
‘Revaluation reserves for buildings

Revaluation reserves for equipment

Decrease of revaluation reserves based on estimation
Decrease of revaluation reserves based on alienation

of supplies

Actuarial gains on reserves for retirement benefits

Recognition of DTL (deferred taxliabilities) charged to

krevaluation reserves
kBaIance on 31/12/2016

Legél reserves

Statutory reserves 3
Revaluation reserves for land
‘Reva!uatidn yreseﬁ(eé fokr buildikngsk k
Revaluation reserves for equipment

Decrease of revaiuation reserves based on estimation
Decrease of revaluation reserves based on alienation

ofsupplies B
Actuarial gains on reserves for retirement benefits

Recognition of DTL (deferred tax liabilities) charged to

revaluation reserves

‘Balance on 30/06/2017

Revaluation
reserves based on Actuarial
Reserves the revaluation of ains
property, plant and g

' equipment
2,842,810 148,390 12,788
1,277,449 - -
- 278,348 -
- 59,46‘8 -
- 198,964 -
: 2.170) :

(656)

- - 4473
| 80§17 (671)
4,120,259 601,827 16,590
1,133,867 - -
(2,463) -
5,254,126 599,364 16,590

Reserves are created in accordance with the Company Articles of Association.
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JSC AIRPORT NIKOLA TESLA BELGRADE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS June 30, 2017

46. NON-DISTRIBUTED PROAT 30/06/2017 31/12/2016
| ; - in 000 RSD in 000 RSD
Initial balance 01/01 1,775,235 2,120,386
Correction of initial balance - -
Corrected initial balance 01/01 k 1,775,235 2,120,386
Distribution of undistributed profit for dl\ndend (503,368) (750,937)
Transfer to statutory reserves V ‘ (1,133,867) (1,277 ,449)
Partlcnpatlon of employees in proﬁtdlstrlbunon - k (138,000) (92,000)'
Net profit of the current perlod ‘ - ‘ 1,387,231 3,190,739
Netproﬁt correction - : k k I .-
Total net profit of the current period | - " 1,387,231 @ 3,190,739
Decrsmn on dlstnbut:on ofmtenm dmdend k - 0 1,415,807
Undlstrlbuted proﬂt of the current perlod - 1 ,337;23i 1,77 4’932
Profit of the previous years, resulting from transfer of revaluation ;
reserves into profit at selling ﬁxed assets in the current year 1,167 303
Correction of undistributed profit of earlier perlod | 0 o
Total undlstrlbuted proflt of earlier years 1167 303 ;
Undistributed proﬂt 1,388,398 1,775,235

Total balance of undistributed profit on 30/06/2017 in the amount of RSD 1.388.398 thousand is a
result of the realized net profit from the current period, i.e. I-VI 2017 in the amount of RSD 1.387.231
thousand, increased for RSD 1,167 thousand on the bases of transfer of revaluation reserves into

revenue for alienated fixed assets.

47. LONG-TERM RESERVES 30/06/2017  31/12/2016
e - : , : S ST . 7000RSD n 000 RSD
Reserves for terminal wages - I N 42794 42,946
Reserves forjubllee awards ' ' ’ k ; ' ; 77,866 82 890j
Reserves for litigations I 83819 80,496

204,479 206,332
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS June 30, 2017

48. CHANGES ON LONG-TERM RESERVES

JSC AIRPORT NIKOLA TESLA BELGRADE

Changes in long-term provisions for retirement benefits, jubilee awards and litigations in the period I-
VI of 2017, compared to 31/12/2016 are shown in the following table:

B in 000 RSD
CHANGES ON LONG-TERM RESERVES T:';";L":' ;o‘::j'::s Total Litigations
Balance on 01/01/2016 41,934 68,305 110,239 114,781
Reserves during the year A3 2138 28517 8300
Actuarial gains ‘ (4/473) - 4473 -
Cancellation during the year (340) (364) (704) (32,824)
Pay-off during the year (1,308) (6,435) (7,743) (9,761)
Balance on 3111212016 42,946 82,890 125,836 80,496
Balance on 01/01/2017 42946 82890 125836 80,496
Reserves during the year - , 0 o 0 5,370
Actuarialgains I : - :
Cancellation during the year - - - - -
Pay-off during the year - (152) (5,024) (5,176) (2,047)
Balance on 30/06/2017 42,794 77,866 120,660 83,819

49. THE ASSUMPTIONS USED WHEN MAKING CALCULATION OF RESERVES FOR
RETIREMENT BENEFITS AND JUBILEE BONUSES AND CALCULATION OF RESERVES
= LIREMENT BENERL bt , =9 ARD L2 po LT NS -

a) The assumptions used when making calculation of reserves for

retirement benefits and jubilee bonuses

Discountrate ’
Estimated growth rate of average earnings
Fluctuation percentage ‘
Amount of the net eaming Xil......... ,k ,

Total number of employees on 31/12

Number of,rektired workers who receiyed\terminkakl wage kat retirement

b} The calculation of the reserves for employee benefits on 31/12/2016

1 . Reserves on 31/1 2/201 5

2. Interestexpense

3. Costof current work
4. Costofpastwork

5. Actuarial (gain)floss

6. Cancellation of provisions during 2015 in the business books of the

Company

7. Total net change in the amount reserved in 2016 (1+2+3+4+5+86)

8. Balance of reserving on 31/12/ 2016 (1+7)

2016 2015
4.50% 550%
1.00%  2.00%
1.50% 3.00%
73,724 76,360
1323 1253

5 11
~in000 RSD

Retirement Jubilee

bonuses

bonuses

in 000 RSD _in 000 RSD.
41,934 68,305
2307 3,757
4826 11,521
(4,473) 6,106
(1,648) (6,799)
1,012 14,585
42,946 82,890
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JSC AIRPORT NIKOLA TESLA BELGRADE

50. LONG-TERM LOANS 30/06/2017 3112/2016
in 000 RSD in 000 RSD
Abroad | 737,359 804,828
Current maturities (50,366) (1 02,919)
686,993 701,908
Annual Remaihing
. Date of amount 30/06/2017 31112/2016
51. LONG-TERM LOANS interest maturity  30/06/2017  in000RSD  in 000 RSD
rates
(EUR)
Long-term credits abroad
; , Ll , .
European lnvestm‘ent Bank 4,07—5,16% ; 2025, ; 6,083,266.18 737,359 804,828
Total long-term credits (a+b) - 6,083,266.18 737,359 804,828
Current maturities of long-term credits: -415524.18  -50,366 -102,919
: 5,667,742.00 686,993 701,909

Long-term loans abroad reported on 30/06/2017 in the amount of RSD 737.359 thousand (EUR
6.083.266,18, of which in 2017 it is due for payment EUR 415.524,18 or RSD 50.366 thousand), relate
to the remaining obligations under the Agreement on financing the project of urgent rehabilitation of
transport concluded on 13.12.2001 between the EIB and the Republic of Serbia. Under the said
contract, the Company was granted a loan in the amount of EUR 13.000.000 for investment and
rehabilitation of the Airport infrastructure. The loan was granted with a repayment period up to 2025,
with an interest rate of 5.16% for the first tranche of 3,000,000.00 EUR, 4.85% for the second tranche
of EUR 3,000,000.00 and 4.07% for the third tranche of 7,000,000.00 EUR. Repayment of the first
tranche of the loan shall be made in 31 equal semi-annual instalments starting from 05/12/2007; the
second tranche is repayable in 30 equal semi-annual instalments starting from 20/02/2009, while the
third tranche began to be repaid from 20/06/2010 in 32 instaiments.

, ; ; ~ Principle Non-booked interest
Receivable maturity from long-term laons ~ 30/06/2017 311212016  30/06/2017  31/12/2016
- - - iNnOOORSD inOOORSD in00ORSD  in 000 RSD
up to one year 50,366 102,919 16,318 34506
one to two years 100,732 102,919 29,229 29,864
two fo three years 100,732 102,919 24,686 25222
three to four years 100,732 102,919 20,142 20,580
four to five years 100,732 102,919 15,599 15,937
five to ten years 284,065 290,233 23,263 - 23,767
over ten years R - - -

737,359 804,828 129,237 149,876
52, OTHER SHORT-TERM FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 30/06/2017 311272016

o ’ ‘ ' S in 000 RSD in 000 RSD

Current maturities of long-term loan EIN 50,366 102,919
- ‘ 50,366 102,919
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS June 30, 2017
53. RECEIVED ADVANCES, DEPOSITS AND BAILS
Advances received from domestic buyers

Advances received from foreign buyers

Subscriptions from domestic buyers
Subscriptions from foreign buyers

54. SUPPLIERS IN THE COUNTRY
Supplie‘krys m the CountrnyofséMCes k

Suppliers in the country- forinvestments in progress
Suppliers in the country-for equipment

55. SUPPLIERS ABROAD

Suppliers abroad-for skefvices“ k ;
Suppliers abroad-for equipment

56. OTHER LIABILITIES FROM OPERATION

Liéb“iliti:es‘ for chargéd puri;hése on‘behalf ofothe“rtcdm;‘)a'nies
‘Other liabilities from operakti‘on

57. OTHER SHORT-TERM LIABILITIES
Liabilities from salaries k

Lkiakbilitieskfromk partikc;ipatibn iry\ithke proﬁts-‘grkos'sk ’ ;
Liabilities from dividend - interim dividend of RS for 2016

Liabilities kfrom dividehd - inteﬁm dividend of other shéréholdérs kk

for206
Other short—termk liabilities B

58. Liabilities for VAT

Liabilities for VAT

30/06/2017 311272016
in 000 RSD in 000 RSD
50,244 44216
12,686 14,669
6,766 5774
18,254 18,004
87,950 82,663
30/06/2017 31/12/2016
in 000 RSD in 000 RSD
64,087 132,618
19,824 94,596
- 77,022 169,366
160,933 396,580
30/06/2017 31/12/2016
in 000 RSD in 000 RSD
) 1,884 2278
- 48,962
1,884 51,240
30/06/2017 31/112/2016
in 000 RSD in 000 RSD
16,244 14,219
2652 663
18,896 14,882
30/06/2017 31/12/2016
in 000 RSD in 000 RSD
SRR e
138,000 3
418535 877,200
84,833 238,607
33,960 22,268
675,413 1,138,394
30/06/2017 31/112/2016
in 000 RSD in 000 RSD
42462 57398
42,462 57,398
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59. LIABILITIES FOR OTHER TAXES, CONTRIBUTIONS AND FEES 30/06/2017 311272016
in 000 RSD in 000 RSD
Liabilities for income tax 0 ‘ 0
Correction of liabilities for income tax from prev.years 0 0
Liabilities for taxes, custom duties and other levies 681 721
Taxes, contributions and other levies 9,388 1,215
10,069 1,936
60. LIABILITIES FOR INCOME TAX - structure 30/06/2017 3112/2016
- | in 000 RSD in 000 RSD
Balénce on 01/01 of the current year k 0 94,850
Correction ofincome tax ' 0 0
Corrected initial balance 0 94 850
‘Speciﬁed income taxliabilities for the current year 215,647 393,279
Correction ofincome taxhabrlrtres - -
Specrﬁed income taxliabilities for the current year—total 215,647 393,279
Paid income taxhablhtles - - (94,850)
Pre payment ofincome tax 310,626 2"38,912
Advance paymentofmcome tax until the report day of the current - .
year ; - (526,273) (632,191)
‘Liability for payment of income tax or overpaid tax - -
61. ACCRUALS AND DEFERRED INCOME 30/06/2017 311212016
] o - ‘ in 000 RSD in 000 RSD'
Accrued expenses for the reportlng penod K 07,204 h 71 446,
Accrued acqursrtlon ofsoﬁware and equrpmentfor Wthh invoice is 0 47 885:
Calculated revenues for the future period 18,232 17241
Other accruals and deferred income 0 2,503
Taxes contrlbutrons and other Ievres ; - 234
125,436 139,309
62. OFF-BALANCE REGISER 30/06/2017 31/112/2016:
S in 000 RSD in 000 RSD
Recelved blank brlls prece k 1,974 k 1 922 k
Given blank bills domestic - preces 13 13
Received guarantees RSD 440,142 357,885
Received guarantees - forelgn currency 77,425 158,544
Given guarantees - RSD 7,500 ’ ;7,500
‘Given guarantees - foreign currency - -
Solidarity funds from employee salaries 624 625
Total off-balance assets and liabilities 525,693 524,556

Received guarantees in Dinars in the amount of RSD 440.142 thousand mainly relate to guarantees
received from suppliers for good performance or guarantee for fault repair within the warranty period.
Received foreign currency guarantees in the amount of RSD 77.425 thousand mainly relate to
guarantees received from foreign suppliers for good performance, for fault repair within the warranty
period or for recovery of advance payments as well as to guarantees received from foreign buyers for
payment security.
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63. FAIR VALUE OF ASSETS

Accounting value  Fair value in  Accounting value Fair value in - Hierarchy of
ASSETS in 000 RSD 000 RSD in 000 RSD 000 RSD fair value- Valuation techniques and inputs
30/06/2017 30/06/2017 31/12/2016 31/12/2016 Levels

A R A - 4 4 Y5 s ‘ 7

Assessment was carried out by
certified assessor with balance on
31/12/2016 (the Institute for economic
research-Belgrade). During
assessment of the property the
following methodology were used: for
apartments - methodology of direct
price comparison; for properties of
specific purpose, functionally
connected and used for business
activity - cost method, i.e. substitution
method, for the objects built in recent
years-construction costs; for older
buildings-experience method depending
.on construction type and lewel of
equipment. Equipment is assessed by
market method and by a method of
substitution of amortised value. For the -
equipment of with reliably indicated
‘market value by direct comparison with
:achieved sale prices in the market,
assessment is made by market
method, i.e. by a method of direct price
comparison;

Fixed assets 23,255,920 23,255,920 . 22,199,928 22,199,928 lLewl 3

! Assessment of a certified assessor
26,525 26,525 26,525 26,525 lewel 3 31/12/2016 (the Institure for economic
; research-Belgrade)

Investment
property
Participation
in capital of
‘other legal
‘persons.

Estimation the management is that
1 1 1 1 Lewl 2 they are not refundable-banks in
: : bankruptcy

Assessment of a certified actuary with
‘a balance on 31/12/2016 - Discounting
of cash flows as follows: 20% for
housing loans which are not being

Long-term and revalued ; 7% for housing loans with

‘short-term lue adjusted fiy and with
financial 139,235 139,235 149,052 149,052 Lewel 3 '2ueadusted annually and with

. interest rate 0,5%, 5,5% for housing
investments - ;

housing loans loans with currency clause and interest ;
TIoUBINg foans : ! rate 0,5%; 7,25% for housing loans with
: value adjusted semi-annually and 7,5%
for housing loans with value adjusted

‘annually
Other idng- N N
term 83,819 83,819 83,819 83,819 Lewl3 CStimation of collectibility by
) : : management according to IAS 39

receivables :
Recehables 1,235786 1,235,786 1,020,436 1,020,436 Lewl 3 CStimation of collectibility by
frkom’buyer’s ’ ; ’ } . management ac;cordmg to klAS ;39
Other 84,235 84,235 149,499 149,499 Lewel3 Estimation of collectibility by
recexvables 5 management according to IAS 39

The above table includes only financial resources, because the Company has no financial liabilities that are
disclosed after initial recognition at fair value.
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JSC AIRPORT NIKOLA TESLA BEL.GRADE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS June 30, 2017
64. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND AIMS OF FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont’d)
Financial risk management objectives

Financial risks include market risk (foreign exchange, interest rate and price change risk), credit risk
and liquidity risk. Financial risks are reviewed on a timely basis and are preferably avoided by reducing
the Company's exposure to these risks. The Company does not use any financial instruments to avoid
the impact of financial risk to the business operations because such instruments are not widely used,
and there is no organized market for such instruments in the the Republic of Serbia.

I - MARKET RISK

In its operations, the Company is exposed to financial risks from changes in foreign exchange rates
and changes in interest rates. Market risk exposures are examined through sensitivity analysis. There
were no significant changes in the Company's exposure to market risk, or in the manner in which the
Company operates or measure this risk.

a) Currency risk (foreign exchange risk)

The Company is exposed to foreign currency risk primarily through cash and cash equivalents, short-
term financial investments, accounts receivable from buyers, liabilities from long-term loans and
liabilities to foreign suppliers.

The Company does not use special financial instruments to protect against risk, considering that in
Serbia such instruments are not in common use.

The stability of the economic environment in which the Company operates, largely depends on the
measures of government in the economy, including the establishment of appropriate legal and
regulatory framework.

Accounting values of financial resources and liabilities in RSD thousand, disclosed in foreign currency
on date of reporting in the Company are the following:

o , rpemeremeeenrn. i 000 RSD

: Total assets ; Total liabilities
Currency description 30/06/2017 : 311212016 ;
o ‘ - o e 1 30/06/2017  31/112/2016
‘ ; . gross net gross net L N o
‘EUR , 73,079,157; 2,921,314 3,979,299 3,827,535 737,737 854,799
:USD : 507,093 ; 507,093 626,857 626,857 ’ 152 160
CHF 349 349 363 363 o 0
GBP 1 180 180 9 9 0 66

Total dinar counter-val.of ; :
assets and liab. statedin = 3,586,779 3,428,936. 4,606,528 4,454,764 737,889 855,025
for.currency

Value of assets and liab.

L 2299196 1622172 2325860 1665485 181,183 412,505
stated in dinars L L . : - o :

Total 5,885,975 6,932,388

5,051,108 6,120,248 919072 1,267,530

By analysis of the currency structure of financial assets and liabilities as of 30/06/2017, along with the
balance as of 31/12/2018, it can be conciuded that

64. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND AIMS OF FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont’d)
55



JSC AIRPORT NIKOLA TESLA BELGRADE
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a) Currency risk (foreign exchange risk) (cont'd)

currency clause are higher than the contracted financial liabilities in foreign currencies Financial
liabilities contracted in foreign currency are generally of long-term nature.

The Company is sensitive mainly to changes in the exchange rate of the Euro {EUR) and U.S. Dollar
(USD).

The following table presents a sensitivity analysis of the Company to increase and decrease in RSD
rate of 10%, in comparison to the foreign currency. The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding
receivables and liabilities in foreign currency and shows their change of 10% at the end of the
reporting period in exchange rates. A positive number in the table indicates an increase of the result
in the current period when RSD strengthens against the currency

in question. In the case of weakening of RSD by 10% compared to the foreign currency, the effect on
the current period would be negative.

in 000 RSD
- ; ’ ; 30/06/2017
EUR influence USD influence CHF influence GBP influence
Changes 1000% -10.00% 10.00% -10.00% 10.00% -10.00% 10.00% -10.00%
218,358 50,694 - 3 18
Gain/loss -218,358 -50,694 -35 -18:
in 000 RSD
EUR influence USD influence - CHFinfluence GBP influence
Changes 10.00% ~-10.00% 10.00% ' -10.00% 10.00% ' -10.00% 10.00%  -10.00%
ST BT T T R s - %
‘Gainfloss -297,274 -62,670 ‘ -36 6

b) Risk of interest rate change

The Company is exposed to interest rate risk on assets and liabilities with floating interest rate.

The Company has placed cash and cash equivalents in the group of interest-bearing financial assets
with variable interest rates, because it contracted with banks "a vista" interest of variable character,
depending on the amount in current accounts and the reference interest rate.

The risk of changes in interest rates on the Company does not represent a significant risk, because
the categories of financial instruments that have contractual interest are generally defined with fixed
interest rate.

Financial instruments classified by categories of interest and non-interest resources are disclosed in
the following summary:
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64. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND AIMS OF FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont’'d)

b) Risk of interest rate change (cont'd)

; ’ in 000 RSD
] 30/06/2017 31/12/2016

F'manclal assets-net

Total val.correction netamount Total val.correction netamount
Nonfinterest
Share in capital of 378,684 (378,683) 1 378,684 (378,683) 1
oth.leg.entities N ; . — ; e
[Other long-term 83,819 - 83,819 83,819 - 83,819
recewablesﬂ ’ ‘

1,547,141 (311,355) 1,235,786 1,311,621 (291,185) 1,020,436
Receivables from buyers ~

Receivables for interests 91,067 (6,832) 84,235 152,006 (3407) 149,499
and oth receiv. R o e R o

70,466 - 70466 50,953 - 50,953
Short-term fin. invest.

Non-interest-total 2471477  (696,870) 1,474,307 1,977,983  (673.275) 1,304,708

~Fixed interest rate

Long term 273494  (137,697) 135797 279345  (138.400) 140,945
fin.investments , ; ; ; o o R
Shortterm 2,735,065 (300) 2734765 3934958 (464) 3,934,494
ﬁn.mvestments ‘ : ;
Fixed-total 3,008559  (137,997) 2,870,562 4,214303  (138,864) 4,075,439
Floating interest rate e o o e
‘ . 706,239 ; 706239 740,102 ; 740,102
Cash and cash equiv. o B o N , o
Floating-total 706,239 0 706239 740,102 0 740,102

5,885,975 (834,867) 5,051,108 6,932,388 (812,139) 6,120,249

Financial liabilities
Non-interest

Liabiliies from operation 181,713 ; 0 181,713 462,702 0 462,702

‘Non-interest-total 181,713 0 181,713 462,702 0 462,702
Fixed interest rate k

Long-term loans 686,993 0  ggeges 701909 0 701,909
f:;;';"t maturities oflong- 54 366 0 50,366 102,919 0 102919
Fixed-total 737,389 0 737,359 804,828 0 8043828
Floating interest rate ; ;

f:.:;rbe.nt maturities oflong- 0 0 0 0 0 0
Floating-total ‘ 0 0 0 0 0 0
N | 919,072 0 919,072 1,267,530 0 1,267,530
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64. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND AIMS OF FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont’d)
v) Risk of price change

The Company estimates that there is no risk of price change, because financial instruments of the
Company are not subject to price change on the market.

The Company does not operate with securities that are subject to price change in securities market.
Furthermore, the Company has no turnover of goods subject to price change. The greatest item in
turnover of goods is kerosene which has a transit goods treatment.

Il - CREDIT RISK
The Company estimates that the greatest of the risks affecting financial instruments is credit risk,
representing the risk that debtors will not be in position to settle their debts in full and in due time,
which would resuit in the financial loss for the Company. The Company's exposure to this risk is limited
to the amount of receivables from buyers at the balance sheet date.
The Company performs the reconciliation of assets and liabilities annually, with balance as of 30/11 of
the current year, or more times during the year for specific clients, if the need arises.

Structure of receivables from buyers 30/06/2017 participa a———-—--m-31”2I2016 participat

~ inOOORSD  ten  in000RSD ion

Air Serbia - ' ‘ . 193,799 1253% 147,816 11.27%
JatTehnika - 126516 818% 157,448 12.00%
Dufrydoo I 90,320 584% 65347 4.98%
International CG h S 41492 268% = 41492 3.16%
Air Serbia-Catering Itd - 32487 210% 45561  3.47%
Aviogenexltd. 50820 328% 50820 387%
Austrian-branch : 24013  1.55% 14,172 1.08%
Other domest:c buyers ; ; , o ‘103 358 668% ; ' kk1k16,1k39 8.85%
Total domestic buyers 662, 805~ 42. 84% 638,795 48.70%
Montenegro Airlines - 190,334 12.30% 193,036 14.72%
WizAr - 125582 8.12% 87,603  6.68%
Deutche Lufthansa 76856 497% 59,160 451%
Turkish Airlines - - 4254 299% 34,942  2.66%
R B T Iy
perofot ] 35300 228% 33341 254%
Alltalia N ) 40841  264% 20599  157%
QatarAlrways - B e 9,269 0.60% 10,703 0.82%
Swiss Ar ; , ‘ o 75042  4.85% 29,004  222%
FlyDubai - . 165%  1.07% 23,440  1.79%
Pegasus f 13665 0.88% 20125 1.53%
LOT Polskie Linie o S 16,368 1.06% 16,363 1.25%
Other foreign buyers e 178,948 1157%% 99753 761%
Total forengn buyers 884, 336 57. 16% 672,826 51 .30%
Totalgross receivables from domestlc and forelgn buy 1,547,141 100.00% 1,311,621 100.00%
Total value correctcon ‘ 31 1 355 ; 291 ,1 85 k

‘Total net recelvables ; 1,235,786 : 1,020,436

Receivables from domestic and foreign buyers on 30/06/2017 amount RSD 1.547.141 thousand (RSD

1.311.621 thousand on 31/12/2016), so the credit risk remains constant. To reduce this risk, the
Company regularly monitors the realisation of the collection, analyses the value of the collection
achieved within the contracted period, collection with exceeded contracted period, the balance and
age structure of outstanding receivables as per buyers.
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64. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND AIMS OF FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont’d)

Il - CREDIT RISK (cont'd)
The greater the percentage share of individual buyers in total receivables the higher credit risk,
especially if the buyers with great share in the balance of receivables aiso have unstable liquidity and
on that basis, exceeded contracted payment deadline.
Receivables from _domestic buyers for goods and services on 30/06/2017 in the amount of RSD
662.805 thousand, accounted for 42,84% of total receivables from buyers for goods and services.
Total balance of value adjustment of receivables from domestic buyers was RSD 298.340 thousand
(accounted to results of previous years RSD 278.284 thousand and charged to resuit of the current
year RSD 20.056 thousand), so the net value of receivables from domestic buyers amounts to RSD
364.465 thousand.
Receivables from foreign buyers for goods and services amounted to RSD 884.336 thousand, which
makes 57,16% of total receivables for goods and services. Total balance of value adjustment of
receivables from foreign buyers was RSD 13.015 thousand (accounted to resuits of previous years
RSD 12.326 thousand and charged to result of the current year RSD 689 thousand), so the net value
of receivables from foreign buyers amounts to RSD 871.321 thousand.

Age structure of receivables 30/06/2017 participati 3411272016 participat

o | | | [ MO0ORSD ~  on  TTiO0ORSD lon
'U;",‘d;”e; ’receki\(ableskfrom buyers-uncorrected ; 900,193“ 58.18% ; ;723'52‘4 55,‘.54%1
Undue receivables from buyers-corrected - 0 000% 0 0.00%
Totalundue receivables 900,193 58.18% 728,524 55.54%
Duek receivables up to 60 days-uncorrected - B 234,348 ’ ;;1 5{.15% 144,110 1 0.99‘%
Due receivables up to 69 days-corrected ; ; o 0 000% 0 0.00%
‘Total due receivables up to 60 days N ; 234,348 15.15% - 144,110 10.99%
Duek reyceivables over G‘Okday‘sk-uncorrected ; ; 101,245 B 6.54% 147,802 1 1.27%
Dugreceivables over60 days-corrected ; - , 311,355 ‘20“.12% 291,185 ’22.20%5'
Total due receivables over 60 days - 412,600 26.67% 438,987 33.47%
:Total receivables-gross 1,547,141 100.00% 1,311,621 100.00%’
Total value correction 311,355 291,185 k
Total receivables - net (gross-correction) 1,235,786 1,020,436

Undue receivables from domestic and foreign buyers for goods and services, on 30/06/2017,
amounted to RSD 900.193 thousand (and on 31/12/2016 they amounted to RSD 728.524 thousand).
Due receivables from domestic and foreign buyers for goods and services, on 30/06/2017 not older
than 60 days, amounted to RSD 234.348 thousand (and on 31/12/2016 they amounted to RSD
144.110 thousand).

Due receivables from domestic and foreign buyers for goods and services, on 30/06/2017 older than
60 days, amounted to RSD 412.600 thousand (and on 31/12/2016 they amounted to RSD 438.987
thousand).

Due corrected receivables from domestic and foreign buyers for goods and services older than 60
days as at 30/06/2017 amounted to RSD 311.355 thousand, of which for value correction of
receivables of the current period was placed RSD 20.745 thousand, and at the cost of the results of
previous years RSD 290.610 thousand (due corrected receivables from domestic and foreign buyers
for goods and services older than 60 days on 31/12/2016 amounted to RSD 291,185 thousand).

Due uncorrected receivables from domestic and foreign buyers for goods and services older than 60
days, on 30/06/2017, amounted to RSD 101.245 thousand (and on 31/12/2016 they amounted to RSD
147.802 thousand). These receivables are not corrected due to the assessment of certainty of
collection of those receivables.
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64. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND AIMS OF FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont’d)
lif - LIQUIDITY AND CASH FLOW RISK

Liquidity is the ability of the Company to settle its liabilities on the terms of their maturity.

The ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management is on the management of the company, which
has established appropriate management system for short-term, medium-term and long-term financing
of the Company as well as liquidity management. By continuous monitoring of planned and actual cash
flows, the Company maintains adequate cash reserves, and also maintains adequate maturities of
financial assets and liabilities.

The following tables present details of outstanding contractual maturities of financial resources. The
amounts shown are based on the undiscounted cash flows arising on the basis of financial resources
based on the earliest date on which the Company will be able to collect receivables.

Maturity of financial assets - ‘  30/06/2017 31/12/2016
‘ ‘ - in 000 RSD in 000 RSD ,

Less than 30days - - 4830889 1,754,695
1-3months ‘ - 101,710 2,224243
3-12 months - - 98892 1897689
1-5years ‘ - . “ ‘ - 93966 130,547
oorteyears e O
' ‘ ‘ - 5,051,108 6,120,249

The average time to collect receivables from customers in the period |-Vl 2017 amounted to 55 days
(2016: 62 days).

Maturity of receivables for interests ‘ , 30/06/2017 31/12/2016

R ; B ; in00ORSD ~ ~ in00ORSD
Lessthan30days B - 1544 30983
1-3months S o sers 30464
3-12 months - ; ; ; 0 32,209

41,301 66,656

The stated maturity of interest receivables are contained within disclosure of maturity of financial
assets.

The following tables present details of outstanding contractual maturities of the Company. The
amounts shown are based on the undiscounted cash flows arising on the basis of financial liabilities
based on the earliest date on which the Company will be required to settle such obligations.

Maturity of financial liabilities - 30/06/2017 311212016
in 000 RSD in 000 RSD

Less than 30 days ‘ B ' - - 181,713 462,702
LIRS 18 R o ‘ | B i
3-12 months ' . 38245 90,535
1-5years B - 402929 411677
over five years k ' k 284,064 o k 290,232,

‘ - ‘ ‘ 919,072 1,267,530
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64. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND AIMS OF FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont’d)
il - LIQUIDITY AND CASH FLOW RISK (cont'd)

In the total liabilities of the Company the largest share have liabilities based on long-term loans in the
amount of RSD 737.359 thousand, of which in 2017 becomes due RSD 50.366 thousand.

Liabilities towards suppliers on June 30, 2017 are disclosed in the amount of RSD 181.713. (on
December 31, 2016: RSD 462,702 thousand). Suppliers do not charge interest on arrears to due
liabilities, whereby the Company, in accordance with the policy of financial risk management, settles
due liabilities to suppliers within the agreed period. Average time of settlement of liabilities towards
suppliers for services in the period |- V1 2017 is 19 days (in 2016 it was 46 days).

Maturity of liabilities for interests (for loans) ' 30/06/2017 31/12/2016
B ‘ in 000 RSD ~ in000 RSD
Less than 30 days k - - -
e ‘ e e s
3-12months ‘ - - 12,497 30,302
1-5years - 89,656 91,603
over five years - ‘ . ‘ ‘ 23,263 . 23,768
h - ‘ - o 129,237 149,877

Capital risk management

The aim of capital risk management is provision of such a structure of capital that will secure safety in
operating, liquidity and solvency, at the same time maximizing profit increase of the owner, through
the optimization of debt and equity. In addition to its own capital, which consists of core capital,
reserves and undistributed profit, the Company uses the borrowed funds in the form of long-term loans.
Free cash flow from current accounts, the Company invests in the form of short-term deposits.

Indicators of indebtedness of the Company as at the end of the reporting current period of 2017 and
the end of 2016 were as follows:

30/06/2017 31/12/2016

o | _ in000RSD —in000 RSD
1 Indebtedness (ADP 432 + ADP 443) - 737,359 804,828
2 Cash and cash equivalents (ADP 068) 706,239 740,102

I GROSS INDEBTEDNESS (1-2) 31,120 64,726
.3 Ratio indebtedness/capital (1/5) 0.0011 0.0024
4 Shortterm financial investment (ADP 062) ‘ 2,805,231 3,985,447

I NETINDEBTEDNESS (1-4) k (2,774,111) (3,920,721)
Capital (ADP 401) B 27,832,088 27,087,521
Ratio indebtedness/capital (I/5) ; - -0.0997 -0.1447

65. MANAGEMENT EARNINGS

The Company paid remuneration (salaries and contributions) to key management, including members
of the Supervisory Board, members of the Audit Commission and the General Assembly of
Shareholders and Executive directors and Department directors (on 30/06/2017: 23 members; on
30/06/2016: 20 members). In the period | - VI 2017 it was paid in the gross amount RSD 22.847
thousand (in the period I- VI 2016: RSD 17,248 thousand).

65. MANAGEMENT EARNINGS (cont'd)
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JSC AIRPORT NIKOLA TESLA BELGRADE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS June 30, 2017

Management earnings 30/06/2017 I-vi2017  30/06/2016 I-vi 2016

Management Number A‘Ogg"ggg] Number Amm;wst‘ijn 000
Earnings , 14 18,469 1;1, ; 13,056
Participation in profit distribution ; ; 0 | - | 0]
Total management 14 18,469 11 13,056
Corhpéhsations ‘to members ofthekSubke‘rvi"sc 7 N , 3,304 k‘7 | 3,149
kCombensaktkion’s to nﬁembersk ofthe Commiss 1‘ o | ; | 470 | 1 ;’ B 455
‘Compensation,skto members ofthe Sharehol: 1 604 1 588
Total for members of the Supenisory Board,

the Commission for Revision and the 9 4,378 9 4,192
Shareholders Assembly.

TOTAL: 23 22,847 20 17,248

66. TAX RISKS

The tax laws of the Republic of Serbia are often differently interpreted and are subject to frequent
changes. The interpretation of tax legislation by tax authorities as applied to the transactions and
activities of the Company may differ from the management interpretations. The management believes
that tax liabilities are adequately calculated and recorded.

67. LITIGATIONS

On June 30, 2017, there are litigations against the Company in the amount of RSD 120.402 thousand
(excluding the effects of default interest). Amounts of final losses on litigations can be increased on
the basis of default interest up to the completion of the settlement, or until the date of final payment by
disputes. On June 30 2017 the Company has made provisions for potential losses on these litigations
in the amount of RSD 83.819 thousand (on 31/12/2016 it was RSD 80,496 thousand) (Notes 47 and
48). According to the assessment of the Company's management on this basis additional significant
losses in the future period are not expected.

68. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

In accordance with I1AS 10 "Events after the reporting period", we found no existence of other events
that may influence or affect the truthfulness and impartiality of the financial statements for the period
that ended on June 30 2017, or would require adjustment of the financial statements.

in Belgrade, 08 August 2017

' / '/

i v e .
#egtive direcsgr, Rasa Ristivojevic Yo
7 ,
er power of attorney no. UOP-I-3510-2017

dated 08/08/2017 N 12
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Head office and address

Belgrade, 11180 Belgrade 59

Register no.

07036540

TIN

100000539

web site and e-mail address

www.beg.aero; kabinet@beg.aero

Number and date of the Rescript on Company
registration

Registration number: BD 4874/2005
Date of registration: 15/06/2005

Registration number: BD 91540/2012
Date of registration: 09/07/2012

Registration number: BD 100187/2012
Date of registration: 20/07/2012

Activity (code and description)

5223 - Air- traffic services

Number of employees

1348 employees on 30/06/2017,

Core capital value

R8D 20.573.610.000
{on 30/06/2017)

Name, head office of auditor who revised the last
financial statement for 2016

,PKF” d.o.0. Palmira Toljatija 5/3,
Belgrade

Number of issued shares, ISIN number and CFl COD

Number of ordinary shares 34.289.350
(on 30/06/2017)
CFl code ESVUFR
ISIN number RSANTBE 11080

Organised-exchange market on which the shares
are exchanged

Beogradska berza ad Beograd,
Omiadinskih brigada 1, 11070 Novi
Beograd
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No. Name of shareholder Number of shares % of share
1) REPUBLIC OF SERBIA 28,510,537 83.15
2) KJIK-FUND #l SICAV SIF 441.137 1.29
B P CUSTODY ACCOUNT kS 375314 1.09
4) SOCiET(E) L()SSE_]?J(;E[?;&;% g/}f;PéSERB!A 260,238 076
5) EAST CAPITAL — EAST CAPITAL BALK 145,038 0.42
6) SOCIETE C?LSESNTE(?SJ{*/E\ géf:u;/gSRBlJA - 107,428 031
7) CONVEST AD. X]gg/(l)g/:ﬁ_ - AGGREGATE 99.311 0.29
RN D
0 VUTESEY B o
10) POLUNIN DISCOVERY FUNDS 70,518 0.21
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Management members on 30/06/2017

Name, surname and place of

residence

Education, current employment
(business name of the company and work position)

Viadimir Dimitrijevi¢, Belgrade

Master of Economic Sciences, Director of Legal Affairs
and real estate management of Public Enterprise ,Posta
Srbije”

Name, surname and place of
residence

Education; current employment
(business name of the company and work position)

Vesna Stankovi¢ Jevdevic,
Belgrade

Bachelor of Economics, Assistant Director General of
the Procurement Directorate at the National Bank of
Serbia

Mirko Manojlovi¢, Belgrade

Bachelor of Economics, Director — Paracentar d.o.o.
Belgrade

Ljubiga Dejkovi¢, Cuprija

Master of Electrical Engineering and
Telecommunications, Head of telecommunication
projects in the Sector of Investments ~ PE Elektromreza
Srbije

Srdan Mini¢, Belgrade

Bachelor of Economics, Technical support and
documentation Engineer, Telekom Srbija

Goran Mirkovi¢, Belgrade

Master of Economy, Senior Associate for completion of
documentation and coordination of monitoring of
contract implementation, Institute for Manufacture of
Banknotes and Coins of the National Bank of Serbia

Petar Jari¢, Belgrade

Bachelor of Economics, Director of "PE Office Space
Zemun”

Dragoslav Stankovi¢, Doljevac

Professional manager, Officer for customer care in
Elektro distribucija Ni§, office in Doljevac

Narme, surname and place of
residence

Education, current employment
{business name of the company and work position)

Sasa Viaisavijevi¢, Belgrade

Bachelor of Science, Engineering, Chief Executive, Acting
Director General of JSC Airport Nikola Tesla Belgrade

Senka Jelenkovi¢, Belgrade

Professor of ltalian language and literature, Master
Engineer of Organizational Sciences, Executive Director
in J8C Airport Nikola Tesla Belgrade

Dejan Milovanovi¢, Prokuplje

Specialist Professional Engineer of Agriculture, Executive
Director,
JSC Belgrade Nikola Tesla Airport

Rada Ristivojevi¢, Belgrade

Bachelor of Economy, Executive Director, JSC Belgrade
Nikola Tesla Airport

Zoran Stojkovi¢, Belgrade

Bachelor of Law, Executive Director, JSC Belgrade Nikola
Tesla Airport
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2.1. REVIEW OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE RULES

JSC Belgrade Nikola Tesla Airport, as a member of the Chamber of Commerce of Serbia
adopted the Code of Corporate Governance that was published in the Official Gazette of the
Republic of Serbia, No. 99/2012, as well as on the Company's website www.beg.aero

The rules of this Code are supplement to the current legislation, so that no provision
of the Code abolishes the legal rule that governs the same question differently. Also, the
Code does not in any way change the meaning, or proper interpretation of the legal
provisions. The Code is within the limits of the law, because it covers matters that are not
regulated by law (the so-called Legal vacuum), or is regulated by dispositive legal norms.

The Code contains two types of rules:

1) Recommendations - rules that a for-profit corporation has to accept and act
upon them, and which can be recognized in the Code by the use of the word
"should";

2) Proposals - rules that are considered desirable practice in corporate
governance, which in the Code can be identified by use of the words "may," "should,"
and so on.

The recommendations contained in this Code outline minimum standards which
public joint stock companies (members of the Serbian Chamber of Commerce) should
accept and act on them, and if they do not do so or do not do so in the manner prescribed
by this Code, it is necessary that they provide an explanation for discrepancy done within
the statement on implementation of the code of corporate governance in accordance with
the Law on companies.
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In the period I-VI 2017 it was achieved total air traffic turnover, as follows:

- 27,258 air movements;
- 2,311,893 passengers and
- 10,408 tons of cargo and mail.

In the period 1-VI 2017 it was achieved total air traffic turnover, as follows:

- 15,147 air movements;
- 1,355,905 passengers and
- 5,583 tons of cargo and mail.

3.1. AIR MOVEMENT TURNOVER

Achieved number of air movements per traffic types in the period I-Vi 2017 is shown in
the following table:

Number of air movements per air-traffic types I-Vl 2017

. Achievement Rebalancing Achievement P_articipa Pgrticipa
Air-traffic types 1V1 2016 Plan i 1VI 2017 index Index | tion |-Vl | tion I-VI
1-Vi 2017 2016 2017
1 2 3 4 5(4/2) 6(4/3) 7 8
Domestic air-traffic 34 34 27 79 79 0.13 0.10
International air-traffic-
domestic carriers 15,226 15,550 14,748 97 95 56.07 54.11
International air-traffic-
foreign carriers 11,896 13,046 12,483 105 96 43.81 45.80
TOTAL: 27,156 28,630 27,258 100 95 100.00 100.00

; The data from the table indicate total number of air movements in the period from I-VI
2017, which.is at the same level as last year in the same period and 5% lower than the one
prescribed in the Rebalancing plan Il for the period 1-V1 2017.

Within carrier pattern of the total traffic in the period -Vl 2017 the targest share is of
domestic carriers in internationgl air traffic with 54.11%, followed by foreign carriers in
international air traffic with 45.80% and:at the end domestic carriers in domestic air traffic with
0.10% share. ‘ ,

In compar,isgnw:to the last year, there was fall in the share of domestic carrier in
international air traffic and growth in share of foreign carriers in international air traffic.

In international air traffic of domestic carriers total turnover of 14,748 air
movements is achieved which is by 3% lower compared to the same period of the previous year
and by 5% lower in comparison to the Rebalancing Plan Il for the period I-VI 2017. The
domestic carriers in international air traffic are the following: Air Serbia, Avio Sluzba, Princ
Aviation and Air Pink.
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NUMBER OF AIR MOVEMENTS I-VI 2017/2016
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Number of air-movements in international air-traffic of foreign carriers

. Achievement Rebalancing Achievement P‘articipa P.articipa
Carriers 1VI 2016 Plan li VI 2017 index Index tion {-Vi | tion |-VI
1-vi 2017 2016 2017
1 2 3 4 5(4/2) 6(4/3) 7 8
Montenegro Airlines 1,452 1,452 1,408 97 g7 12.21 11.28
Lufthansa 1,316 1,373 1,359 103 99 11.06 10.89
Wizz Air 1,278 1,576 1,448 113 92 10.74 11.60
Austrian Airlines 904 930 877 97 94 7.60 7.03
Turkish Airlines 799 798 768 96 96 6.72 6.15
Aerofiot 730 728 721 99 99 6.14 578
Swiss International 602 608 607 101 100 5.06 4.86
Swift Air 494 494 492 100 100 4.15 3.94
Swiftair Hellas S.A 261 261 246 94 94 2.18 1.97
Alitalia 338 362 356 105 98 2.84 2.85
Etihad Airways 365 365 362 99 99 3.07 2.90
Tarom 330 364 370 112 102 277 2.96
Transavia 0 156 78 0 50 0.00 0.62
Poiskie Linie LOT 281 281 382 129 129 2.38 2.90
Raf Avia 310 310 0 0 0 2.61 0.00
Aegean Airlines 272 271 214 79 79 2.29 1.71
Qatar Airways 272 270 206 78 76 2.29 1.65
Easy Jet 144 148 148 103 100 1.21 1.19
European Air 0 254 254 0 100 0.00 2.03
Pegasus Airlines 212 212 206 97 97 1.78 1.65
Flydubai 160 180 196 123 109 1.34 1.57
Norwegian Air 168 168 156 a3 93 1.41 1.25
Belavia 108 108 112 104 104 0.91 0.90
Tunis Air 72 76 74 103 97 0.61 0.59
Ural Airlines JSC 78 76 0 0 6] 0.64 0.00
Aircairo Company 24 36 741 308 206 0.20 0.59
Arka 0 108 83 0 77 0.00 0.66
Israir Airlines 0 156 184 0 118 0.00 1.47
Croatia Airlines 34 42 43 126 102 0.29 0.34
Vueling Airlines 22 22 24 109 109 0.18 0.19
Ellinair 6 6 16 . 267 267 0.05 0.13
Gazprom 7 0 4 57 0 0.06 0.03
Atlas.Jet 2 0 0 0 0 0.02 0.00
Atlasglobal Airlines 0 0 220 0 0 0.00 1.76
Air Horizont Ltd. 0 ¢ 1 0 0 0.00 0.01
Corendon Airlines 0 O 4 0 0 0.00 0.03
Adria Airways 1 0 41400 0 0.01 0.03
Freebird Airlines 0 0 2 0 0 0.00 0.02
Niki Luftfahrt 3 0 0 0 0 0.03 0.00
Sun Express G 0 2 0 0 0.00 0.02
Bora Jet 0 0 2 0 0 0.00 0.02
Other . . 853 853 800 94 94 7.7 6.41
TOTAL: 11,896 13,046 12,483 108 96 100.00 100.00

In the period I-Vi of 2017 we present the
air carrier)

In international air traffic of foreign carriers in the period 1-VI 2017 total turnover of
12,483 air movements is achieved which is by 5% higher compared to the same period of the
previous year and by 4% lower in-comparison to the Rebalancing Plan Il for the period |-VI
2017.

most significant foreign air carriers (37 foreign

In the pattern of foreign carriers in the period 1-Vl 2017 the most significant roles are of:
Wizz Air with 11.60% of share, then Montenegro Airlines with 11.28% and Lufthansa with

9
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10.89% of share. These three air carriers achieve 33.77% in international air traffic of foreign
carriers.

With the share ranging from 7.03% to 3.94% in this type of air traffic there are: Austrian
Airlines (7.03%), Turkish Airlines (6.15%), Aeroflot (5.78%), Swiss International (4.86%), Swift
Air (3.94%), with total share of 27.76%.

Scheduled Cargo transport of express mail in the period -V 2017 was carried out by 4
(four) foreign carriers: Turkish Airlines, Swiftair, European Air Trransporter Leipzig GmbH and
Swiftair Hellas.

The most important Low cost carriers in the period |-Vi 2017 are: Easyjet, Flydubai,
Norwegian Air Shuttle, Wizz Air, Vueling, Transavia and Pegasus Airlines.

il quarter

The achieved number of air movements per air traffic type in the second quarter of 2017
is disclosed in the table.

Number of air movements per airtraffic types |-Vl 2017

Rebalancing Participa |Participa

Achievement Achievement

Airtraffic type Plan ii Index Index [tion IV-Viition IV-VI]
WVI2018 |y yiger7 | VY120V 2016 | 2017
1 2 3 4 5(4/2) 6(4/3) 7 8
Domestic air-traffic 9 9 14 156 156 0.06 0.09

International air-traffic-
domestic carriers 8,749 8,948 8,311 g5 93 57.91 54.87
International air-traffic-

foreign carriers 6,349 6,925 6,822 107 99 42.03 45.04
TOTAL: 15,107 15,882 15,147 100 95 100,00 100.00

Data from the table show that total achieved number of air movements in the second
quarter of 2017 amounts to 15,147 and that it is at the same level in comparison to the same
period of 2016 and by 5% lower in comparison to the Rebalancing Business Plan Il in the
second quarter of 2017.

Within carrier pattern of the total traffic in the second quarter 2017 the largest share is
of domestic carriers in international air traffic with 54.87%, followed by foreign carriers in
international air traffic with 45.04% and at the end domestic carriers in domestic air traffic with
0.09% share.

In international air traffic of domestic carriers in the second quarter of 2017
turnover of 8,311 air movements is achieved which is by 5% lower compared to achievement of
the same period of the previous year and by 7% lower in comparison to the Rebalancing Plan |l
for the second quarter of 2017.

In international air traffic of foreign carriers in the second quarter of 2017 total
turnover of 6,822 air movements is achieved, which is by 7% higher compared to the same
period of the previous year and by 1% lower in comparison to the Rebalancing Plan i for the
second quarter of 2017.

Foreign carrier that started operating in the second quarter of 2017 are the following:
Croatia Airlines, Ellinair, Vueling Airlines, Transavia Airlines, Freebird Airlines and Sun Express.

10
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3.2. PASSENGER TURNOVER

In the period I-VI 2017 a total passenger turnover of 2,311,893 passengers was
achieved, which led to 9% increase in comparison to the same period in 2016 and it is 2%
higher than in the Rebalancing Plan Il for the period I-V] 2017.

Passenger turnover per air-traffic types

. Achievement Rebalancing Achievement Pgr’acrpa P'artlcxpa
Airraffic type 1-V] 2016 Plan li 1-V1 2017 Index Index | tion I-VI | tion [-VI
1-VI 2017 2016 2017
1 2 3 4 5(4/2) 6(4/3) 7 8
Domestic air-traffic 42 42 64 152 152 0.00 0.00
International air-traffic-
domestic carriers 1,111,248 1,156,579 1,148,705 103 99 52.62 49.69
International air-traffic-
foreign carriers 1,000,400 1,110,439 1,163,124 116 105 47.38 50.31
TOTAL: 2,111,690 2,267,060 2,311,893 109 102 100.00 100.00

The greatest participation in passenger turnover per air traffic types for the period I-VI
2017 is of foreign carriers in international air traffic with 50.31%, then domestic carriers in
international air traffic with 49.69%.

The number of passengers transported by foreign carriers in the period -V 2017 is by
16% higher compared to the same period last year and by 5% higher compared to the
Rebalancing Plan |l for [-V1 2017,

The number of the passengers transported by domestic carriers in international air traffic
is by 3% higher compared to the same period last year, and by 1% lower compared to the
Rebalancing Plan Il for i-V] 2017.

11
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Il quarter

The planned and realized passenger turnover in the second quarter of 2017, as well as
comparative data on the realized turnover in the same period of 2016, is presented in a table

review.

Passenger turnover per air-traffic types

Achievement Rebalancing Achievement Participa |Participa
Air-traffic type IV-VI 2016 Plan il IV-VI 2017 Index Index (tion [V-Vijtion IV-VI
V-Vl 2017 2016 2017
1 2 3 4 5(d/2) 6(4/3) 7 3

Domestic air-traffic 8 8 31 388 388 0.00 0.00
International air-traffic-
domestic carriers 679,784 713,489 682,976 100 96 54.75 50.37
International air-traffic-
foreign carriers 561,884 663,806 672,898 120 101 45.25 49.63
TOTAL: 1,241,676 1,377,303 1,355,905 109 98 100.00 100.00

Based on the data presented, it can be concluded that the passenger utrnover in the Il
quarter of 2017 is by 9% higher than in the same period in 2016 and amounis to 1,355,905
passengers, which is 2% less compared to Rebalancing Plan Il for the same period of 2017.

The greatest participation in passenger turnover per air traffic types for the second
quarter of 2017 is of domestic carriers in international air traffic with 50.37%, then foreign
carriers in international air traffic with 49.63%.

The number of the passengers transported by domestic carriers in international air traffic
is at the same level compared to the same period last year and by 4% lower compared to the
Rebalancing Plan 1l for the second quarter of 2017.

The number of the passengers transported by foreign carriers in international air traffic in
the second quarter of 2017 is by 20% higher compared to the same period last year, and by 1%

higher compared to the Rebalancing Plan Il for the same period 2017.

Business report for the period [-V1 2017
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3.3. CARGO AND MAIL TURNOVER

In the period 1-VI 2017 total cargo turnover of 10,408 tons is achieved which is by 24%
higher compared to the same period of the previous year and is at the same level in comparison
to the Rebalancing Plan Il for the period I-VI 2017.

In international air traffic of domestic carriers, cargo and mail turnover in the period 1-V|
2017 was 68% higher than the turnover for the same period of 2016 and by 36% higher than in
the Rebalancing Plan Il for the period I-VI 2017, while in international air traffic of foreign
carriers, achievement in the period |-Vl 2017 was 11% higher than in the same period of the
previous year and by 10% lower than in the Rebalancing Plan Il for the period I-VI 2017.

Cargo and mail turnover in tons

Rebalancing Participa | Participa

Achievement Achievement

Air-traffic type Plan il Index index | tion |-Vi | tion [-Vi
I-Vi 2016 1-Vi 2017 1-Vi 2017 2016 2017
1 2 3 4 5(4/2) 6(4/3) 7 8
Domestic air-traffic 4 4 0 0 0 0.05 0.00

International air-traffic-
domestic carriers 1,902 2,350 3,203 168 136 22.69 30.77
International air-traffic-

foreign carriers 6,477 8,021 7,205 111 90 77.26 69.23
TOTAL: 8,383 10,375 10,408 124 100 100.00 100.00

CARGO AND MAIL TURNOVER I-VI
2017/2016
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Il quarter

In the second quarter of 2017 total cargo and mail turnover of 5,583 tons is achieved
which is by 23% higher compared to the subject period of the previous year and is at by 1%
lower in comparison to the Rebalancing Plan Il for the second quarter of 2017.

Cargo and mail turnover in tons

Rebalancing Participa | Participa

Achievement Achievement

Airtraffic type Plan Il Index Index [tion IV-Vi|tion IV-Vi
IV-Vi 2016 IVVI 2017 V-Vl 2017 2016 2017
1 2 3 4 5(4/2) 6{(4/3) 7 8
Domestic.air-traffic 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

International air-traffic- .
domestic carriers 999 1,234 1,620 162 131 21.98 29.02
International air-traffic-

foreign carriers 3546| 4385 3,963 112 90 | 7802 | 7098
TOTAL: 4,545] 5,619 5583 123 99| 100.00 | 100.00

in intemationnkai: air traffic of domestic carriers, cargo and mail turnover in the second
quarter of 2017 was 62% higher than the achieved turnover for the same period of previous
year and by 31% higher than in the Rebalancing Plan 1l for the second quarter of 2017.

In international air traffic of foreign carriers, cargo and mail turnover in the second

quarter of 2017 was 12% higher than the achievement for the same period of previous year and
by 10% lower than in the Rebalancing Plan Il for the second quarter of 2017.
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PHYSICAL VOLUME OF AIR TRAFFIC

A s Achievement Ret;allannlclmg Achievement
|-VI 2016 V0 V1 2017 Index
Participation  Participation  Participat

1 2 3 4 5(412) | 6(473)
Domestic air-raffic
Alr movements o0 M0 a0 0 19
Passengers 2 0 80 o4 0 152 182
Cargo and mail air (t 40 40 o0 4 0 0
International air-traffic - domestic
carriers
Alr movements 19,06 56| 15950 S4 14748 54 91 %
Passengers 111,248 931,196,579 o) 1148705 50| 103 99
Cargo and mal air+truck ({) EV B R R R
International air-raffic - foreign
carriers
Alrmovements 109 44 13046 46| 12483 46| 105 9%
Passengers 1,000400] 47} 1110439 490 1163124 50 116] 105
Cargo and mail air+truck ({ 64770 T 80 TN Ta5 B9 11 W
Tofal
Air movements 27,1569 100 28,630§ 1000 27,28 100{ 100[ 95
Passengers 214,690 100[ 2267060 100] 231,803 400 109] 102
Cargo and njail airstruck (f 8,383 1001 10375 100 10.408] 100, 124| 100
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The Company performs business activity as single business segment. Accordingly,
revenues and expenditures are disclosed at company level.

4.1. REVENUES

In the period |-Vl 2017 JSC Belgrade Nikola Tesla Airport achieved the total revenue in
amount of RSD 4,420,936,919. Thus achieved total revenue is 8% higher in comparison to the
achieved revenues in the same period of the previous year and 7% lower in relation to the
Rebalancing Plan for the same period.

The pattern of the achieved revenues for I-VI 2017 is shown in the table Revenue
pattern by service types.

In the pattern of achieved revenues for the period I-VI 2017 business revenues have
the greatest participation amounting to RSD 4,330,402,235 which is 98% of the total revenues.
Thus achieved business revenues are 10% higher than the same in the same period of the
previous year and 6% lower in relation to Rebalancing Plan I for the period I-VI 2017.

Part of business generated by providing air services in the amount of RSD
1,312,377,559 makes 30% of the total revenues.These revenues are 1% higher than in the
same period of the previous year and by 3% lower than it is predicted in the Rebalancing Plan Ii
for the period I-VI 2017.

Revenues from passenger service and security fees were RSD 1,986,188,405 for the
period I-VI 2017 which makes 45% of totally realised revenues, were 18% higher than revenues
achieved on this basis in the same period of the previous year and 3% h|gher than in the
Rebalancing Plan Il for the period I-VI 2017.

In the period I-VI 2017 the revenues from services in cargo-customs warehouse are
achieved in the amount of RSD 86,790,957 and they are 12% higher than revenues achieved
on this basis i in the same period of 2016, while they are 15% lower than in the Rebalancing Plan
Il for the same period of 2017.

in the period I-VI 2017 the revenues from other services are by 23% higher than in the
same period last year and by 6% lower than in the Rebalancing Plan 1l for the period 1-VI 2017,
They amount RSD 487,193,245. Increase of revenues from other services in the period 1-VI
2017 in comparison to the same period of the previous year mainly relates to: revenues from
de-icing services, revenues from utilities, revenues from CUTE services, revenues from services
on special request-work order and other.

The revenues from sales of goods mainly refer to the revenues from the sale of
kerosene in the amount of RSD 9,757,731. In the period I-VI 2017 it was sold 285 tons of
kerosene.

In the period |-Vl 2017 revenue from lease of business facilities amounts RSD

447,431,076 and it is 10% higher than in the same period 2016. The most part of these
revenues refers to lease of business facilities to Dufry Itd.

Business report for the period I-VI 2017



Financial revenues (group 66) in the period I-VI 2017 amount RSD 78,994,498 and
they are significantly lower then in the same period of 2016.

The fall in financial revenues in the period I-VI of 2017 was due to the decline in interest
rates, mostly due to the decline in the exchange rate of the dinar against the euro (the euro
exchange rate on June 30, 2016 amounted to 123.3115 dinars, while the exchange rate of EUR
on June 30, 2017 amounted to 120.38486 RSD).

In the pattern of financial revenues for I-VI 2017, the most part refers to interests in the
amount of RSD 47,424,278, then to exchange rate differences - non-realised in the amount of
RSD 16,785,927 and realised exchange rate differences in the amount of RSD 14,784,293.

Other revenues (group 67, 68 and 69) in the period |-VI of 2017 were realized in the
amount of 11,640,186 RSD and were three times lower compared to the same period in 2016,
mainly due to revenues from the cancellation of long-term provisions we had in 2016, and in the
period |-V of 2017 there were no revenues on this basis.

Major foreign buyers from the point of their participation in revenues from sale in the

period I-VI 2017 are: Wizz Air RSD 319,778 thousand (8.24%), Deutche Lufthansa RSD
298,949 thousand (7.70%) n Montenegro Airlines RSD 243,065 thousand (6.26%).

Business report for the period I-VI 2017
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Achievement

Rebalancing

Achievement

Business report for the period 1-VI 2017

No. Service type Service description \VI 2016 Plan i Vi 2017 indexes
V12017
1 2 3 4 5 8 7 (6/4) 8 (6/5)
Air services of domastic carrier
614000+614004+614300+614302+614303+614304 Landing 84,281,872 94,455,909 88,326,562 105 94
614010+614014+614310+614312+614313+614314 Lighting 27,610,948 30,228,547 27,607,957 100 91
614030+614034+614330+614332+614333+614334 GH 91,224,510 102,396,078 92,875,352 102 91
614040+614042+614043+614044 infrastructure 50,223,539 56,444,182 51,446,738 102 91
614050 Air-bridges 0 0 10,388 0 0
614020+614024+614320+614323+614324 Aircraft abode revenue 2,313,184 2,207 177 2,192,656 95 99
] Total gir services (domestic carrier): 255,654,084 285,731,853 262,459,652 103 92
Air services of foreign carrier
615010+615011+615012+615013+615014 Landing 323,951,835 336,697,041 348,335,245 108 104
615020+616021+615022+615023+615024 GH 363,353,424 354,634,151 321,333,370 88 91
615030+615031+615032+615033+615034 Lighting 32,571,304 34,245,664 35,819,613 110 105
615040+615042+615043+615044 Infrastructure 215,157,278 223,165,161 229,027,379 106 103
§16060+616062 Air-bridges 95,426,236 98,831,862 100,627,747 105 102
615000+616001+815002+615003+615004 Aircraft abode revenue 12,286,442 13,142,086 13,774,555 112 105
i Total air services {international carrier): 1,042,748,518 1,060,715,966 1,049,917,907 101 99
1+ Total alr services 1,298,400,672 1,346,447 859 1,312,377,658 101 97
Passenger service
614400+614404 - domestic carriers - domastic air-traffic | Passenger service d.cli.c. 13,971 8.001 872 3 11
614181+614182+614183+614190+614192(BRS and
PRM)+614410+614412+614413+614414 Passenger service d.ati.at. 556,817,669 599,934,102 569,084,044 102 95
615160+815162+615200+616210+615212+6156213+615214+
815215+6158682+615864+615896-PRM nger service international c4 773,018,404 828,518,381 910,848,579 118 110
614420+614430+614432+614433+614434+615230+615232+
£616233+815234 Security fee 354,174,385 496,796.914 506,254,911 143, 102
[ Total passenger service 1,684,024.428 1,926,267 398 1,886,188,405 118 103
T+ Total 2ir services and passenger service 2,982,425,000 3,271,708,257 3,298,685,965 111 101
CCM service
614500+614510 CCM service dom.market 71,076,101 93,730,404 80,361,488 113 86
615300 +6186310 (foreign) M service international mark 6,560,037 8.238,057 6,429,469 98 78
v Total CCM serviges 77,636,138 101,968,461 86,790,867 112 85
A Totat services related to air traffic {l to IV} 3,060,081,138 3,373,673,718 3,385,356,922 111 100
Other services
1 [614360+615100+615102 DCS senices 13,265,223 12,219,854 7,935,789 60 65
614110+614112+614115+614116+614170+614173+614180+
2 |614184+614391+615872+615873+615874+615875+ 615876+ Work order 69,134,665 78,283 188 £1,820,180
615877+615891+615892+615895 117 103
3 |614130+614131+615071+6815072 VIP lotinge 2,689,815 3:176,330 3,692,085 137 16
4 1614140+614142+615090+615092 CUTE (dom.+intl) 73,677,993 91,387,373 82,085.273 111 90
5 |614380+615080 Lost and found 7204408 9,425,053 7,629,351 105 81
6 |6146+615120+615400+615401 Public sendces 80,072,354 82,163 5321 83,662,561 104 102
7.::1614820+615170 Catering senvices business clag 0 D 725 0 0
8  |614B70+615810 Adwertising space 31,539,483 35,453,878 34,838,527 110 98
9 1614883 - Commercial usage of the apron 25,271,568 31,275 427 29,472,441 17 94
10 [614160+614163+614164+815110+615112+615113+615114 Aircraft de-icing seraces 58,376,597 73,358 538 115,972,405 199 158
11 |Other non-mentioned services dom+intt 35,254,692 94,403,202 40,883,928 116 41
Vi Other services (110 11): 396,577,396 £16.143,453 487,193,245 123 94
Vi Total 81 - Revenues from sale of services (V+V1) 3,466,638,634 3,889.817,171 3,872,550,186 112 100
Revenues from sale of goods
Vil 60 - Revenues from sale of kerosene + goods 66,053,663 202,986,196 10,420,992 19 5
X Total (60+61) REVENUES FROM SALE {VIl+Viii) 3,512,692,187 4,092,803,367 3,882,971,159 114 95
X 84 & 65 - Loase of business premises 407,664,474 §30,308,309 447,431,076 110 84
X1 OPERATING REVENUES (IX+X) 60+61+62+64+85 3.920,366,661 4.623,111,678) 4,330,402,235 110 94
XH 68 - FINANCIAL REVENUES 126,312,301 86,822,934 78,994,498 63 91
1 interest 53,405,668 51,237,513 47.424.278 89 93
2 exchange rate differences - realised 53,455,110 35,585,421 14,784,293 28 42
3 exchange rate differences - non-realised 19,451,524 0 16,788,927 86 Q
Xilt €7, 68 and 69 OTHER REVENUES 36,650.490 23,548,516 11,540,186 32 49
XV Total revenues (XI+X1I+XI1H) 4,083,219, 452 4,733,481,12¢ 4,420,936,919 108 93
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il quarter

In the period IV-VI 2017 JSC Belgrade Nikola Tesla Airport achieved the total revenue
in the amount of RSD 2,418,921,515. Thus achieved total revenue is 7% higher in comparison
to the achieved revenues in the same period of the previous year and 13% lower in relation to
the Rebalancing Plan Il for the period IV-VI 2017.

In the structure of realized revenues for the period 1V-VI of 2017, the highest share was
of business revenues in the amount of RSD 2,371,316,979 which is 10% higher than in the
same period of the previous year, while they are 13% less than the Rebalans I Plan for IV-VI in
2017.

Within business revenues to revenues generated from the provision of air services in the period
IV-VI of 2017, refers RSD 715,204,246. These revenues are 1% higher than in the same period
of the previous year and by 4% lower than foreseen in the Rebalancing Plan Il for the period IV-
VI 2017.

Revenues from passenger service and security fees were RSD 1,156,479,662 for the
period IV-VI 2017 and they were 20% higher than revenues achieved on this basis in the same
period of the previous year and at the same level as it was in the Rebalancing Plan i for the
period IV-VI 2017.

In the period IV-VI 2017 the revenues from services in cargo-customs warehouse

were achieved in the amount of RSD 44,535,552 and they are 10% higher than revenues
achieved on this basis in the same period of the previous year and they were 19% lower than in
the Rebalancing Plan Il for the period IV-VI 2017.
In the period IV-VI 2017 the revenues from other services are by 6% higher than in the same
period last year and they were achieved in the amount of RSD 196,021,935. Greatest
participation in these revenues is of: revenues from CUTE service, revenues from services on
special request-work order, utilities and other.

The revenues from sales of goods are realized in the amount of RSD 10,114,949 and
mainly refer to the revenues from the sale of kerosene in the amount of RSD 9,757,731. in the
period V-V 2017 it was sold 285 tons of kerosene.

In the period IV-VI 2017 revenue from lease of business facilities amounts RSD
248,960,636 which is 8% higher than in the period IV-VI 2016 while it is by 6% lower compared
to-Rebalancing Plan Il for IV-VI 2017. The most part of these revenues refers to lease of
business facilities to Dufry Itd.

Financial revenues (group 66) in the period IV-VI of 2017 were reported in the amount
of RSD 41,033,421 and are lower by 37% compared to the same period last year. The fall in
financial revenues in the period IV-VI of 2017 occurred due to the decline in interest rates and,
to a large extent, due to the fall in the exchange rate of the dinar against euro (the euro
exchange rate on June 30, 2016 amounted to 123.3115 RSD, while the euro exchange rate on
June 30, 2017 amounted to 120.38486 RSD.

In the pattern of financial revenues for IV-VI 2017, the most part refers to interests in the
amount of RSD 25,690,354, then to non-realised exchange rate differences-realised in the
amount of RSD 8,807,140 and realised exchange rate differences in the amount of RSD
6,535,927.

Other revenues (group 67, 68 and 69) in the period IV-VI of 2017 were realized in the amount
of RSD 6,571,115 and were significantly lower compared to the same period last year, mostly
due to revenues from cancellation of long-term provisions that we had in 2016, and in the period
IV-VI of 2017 there were no revenues on that basis.
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REVENUE STRUCTURE V-V 2017

Business report for the period [-VI 2017

Achisvement Rebaiancing Achievement
No. Service type Service description Plan il Hraexocn
V-V 2016 V-Vi 2017
V-V 2017
1 2 3 4 5 6 7(6M) | 8 (6/5)
Air services of domestic carrier
£14000+614004+614300+614302+614303+614304 Landing 50,455,458 52,390,361 49,421,183 98 94
614010+614014+614310+614312+614313+614314 Lighting 14,405,618 16,766,389 13,109,807 91 78
614030+614034+614330+614332+814333+614334 GH 53,596,816 56,794,409 51,822,784 97 a1
614040+614042+614043+814044 Infrastructure 29,586,680 31,306,999 28,712,798 97 92
614050 Air-bridges 0 0 8,918 0 0
614020+614024+614320+614323+614324 Aircraft abode revenue 1,413,578 1,224,220 1,561,084 110 128
i Total air services (domestic carrier): 149,468,160 158,482,378 144,634,664 97, 91
Air services of foreign carrier
615010+815011+616012+615013+615014 Landing 174,462,190 186,750,408 192,654,044 110 103
615020+615021+615022+616023+615024 GH 193,285,468 196,699,301 173,927,858 90 88
615030+615031+6165032+616033+616034 Lighting 13,816,628 18,994,500 14,910,434 108 78
615040+615042+615043+615044 infrastructure 115,715,516 123,779,481 125,873,550 109 102
615060+615062 Air-bridges 51,524,019 54,817,502 55,172,347 107 101
6156000+615001+616002+615003+616004 Aircraft abode revenue 6,809,835 7,289,312 8,031,358 118 110
i Total air services {(international carrier): 666,613,757 688,330,604 570,569,692 103 97
[l Total air services 706,071,906 746,812,882 715,204,246 101 96
Passenger service
614400+614404 - domestic carriers - domestic airtraffic | Passenger service d.c/i.c. 5,264 4,764 872 17 18
814181+614182+614183+614190+614192(BRS and
PRM)+6144104614412+614413+814414 Passenger service d.ati.at 330,247,823 357,183,767 331,563,775 100 93
816150+615152+6165200+6156210+616212+615213+615214+
816215+615862+615864+615896-PRM nger service internaticnal ¢4 428,696,261 506,170,295 519,735,814 121 103
614420+614430+614432+614433+614434+615230+616232+
615233+616234 Security fee 206,670,857 295,778,808 305,179,201 148 103
it Total passenger service 965,620,206 1,168,137,634 1,156,479,662 120 100;
I Total air services and passenger sorvice 1,670,882, 111 1,906,960,516 1,871,883,908 112 98
CCM service
614500+614510 CCM service dom.market 37,274,467 50,761,944 41,155,837 110 81
615300 +815310 (foreign) M service international mark 3,236,288 4,461,517 3,379,715 104 78
v Total CCM services 40,510,705 66,223,461 44,535,852 110 81
v Total services related to air traffic (i to IV): 1,711,202,817 1,961,173,977 1,916,219,460 112 98
Other services
1 |614360+615100+615102 DCS senvices 7,818,136 6.109.827 4,845,758 64 79
614110+614112+614115+614116+614170+614173+614 {80+
2 |614184+614391+615872+615873+615874+615875+615876+ Work order 41,182,289 35,141,594 43,204,584
615877+615891+615892+615895 108 110
3 |614130+614131+615071+615072 VIR lounge 1,365,225 1,588,185 1,967,143 144 124
4 1614140+614142+615090+615092 CUTE (dom.+intl) 42,764,283 45,693,686 47,386,855 111 104
5 1614380+615080 Lost and found 4,318,306 4,712,518 3,841,312 91 84
61 16146+615120+615400+615401 Public senices 41,083,121 47,081, 768! 39,091,644 95 95
7 1614820+615170 Catering senices business glas! 0 4] 725 O [t
8  iB14870+615815 5 Advertising space 15,821,806 17,726,588 18,224,874 114 103
9 1614883 S y Commercial usage ofthe apron 13,537,018 15,637,713 15,258,668 113 98
10 1614160+614163+614164+615110+515112+615113+615114 Alrcrafl deicing senices 97,357 55,179,269 0 0 0
11 |Other non-mentioned senices dam-+inti 16,842,327 79,760, 101 22,100,373 133 28
Vi Other serviges (1 to 11): 184,529,968 308,671,727 196,021,936 106 €4
Vi Totai 61 - Revenues from sale of services (V+Vi} 1,896,732,786 2,267,745,703 2,112,241,385 111 83
Revenuas from sale of goods :
Vil 60 - Revenues from sale of kerosene + goods 34,304,031 201,376,088 10,114,949 28 §
X Total {60+61) REVENUES FROM SALE (VII+VIil) 1,930,036,816 2,469,121,801 2,122,356.343 10 86,
X 64 & 65 - Lease of business premises 230,626,544 265,154,156 248,960,636 108 94
Xi OPERATING REVENUES {(IX+X) 60+61+62+64+65 2,180,663,360 2,734,276,956 2,371,316,978 110 87
xH 66 - FINANCIAL REVENUES 64,713,817 43,411,467 41,033,421 63 95|
1 interest 27,938,196 25,618,757 25,690,354 92 100
2 exchange rate differences - realised 20,418,336 17,792.711 6,535,927 32 37
3 exchange rate differences - non-realised 16,357,285 0 8,807,140 54 Y
X 67, 68 and 63 OTHER REVENUES 34,856,981 11,773,258 6,671,115 19 86
XV Total revenues (XI+X1i+Xili) 2,260,234,158 2,789,460,681 2,418,921,515 107 87
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4.2. EXPENDITURES

In the period IV-VI 2017 total expenditures were achieved in the amount of RSD
2,780,685,716. Thus achieved expenditures are 13% higher than in the same period of the
previous year and 13% lower in relation to Rebalancing Plan Il for the period I-VI 2017.

The costs of material and energy (group 51) for the period I-V! 2017 amount to RSD
236,255,545 They participate in total expenditure with 8% and mostly refer to: costs of
electricity, spent basic material, spent fuel for cargo vehicles, costs of heating oil, spent
stationary and other.

Hugest amount within total expenditures refers to the costs of salaries,
reimbursements and other personal expenditures (group 52) amounting for the period -VI
2017 RSD 1,505,234,859 and they are 6% higher than in the same period last year. Change of
the employment manner pattern of employees in the Company on the account of permanently
employees affected on increase of the costs of salaries and reimbursements.

The costs of salaries of employees (gross Il - groups 520 and 521) in Airport Nikola Tesla
amount RSD 1,006,619,048, while costs of persons engaged through youth organisations
(account 524000) amount RSD 192,749,818 (youth organisations Fan, Beograd, Knez,
Medijator and Europa).

Apart from salaries, the group 52 also includes reimbursements per temporary and
occasional jobs, other personal expenditures (transportation costs for employees, costs of
business trips, joint assistance and jubilee bonuses, etc.), reimbursements for members of
governing and supervisory bodies, reimbursements by contracts (service contracts).

The costs of production services (group 53) in the period -Vl 2017 amount RSD
203,742,589 and they are 21% higher then in the same period of the previous year.

The pattern of cost of production services consists of:

- costs of transportation services which in the period I-VI 2017 amount RSD 29,845,021 and
they mostly refer to costs of information and passenger check-in, monthly ITT support for
passenger and baggage registration and other.

- costs of maintenance services which in the period |-Vl 2017 amount RSD 87,908,124 and
they are 29% higher than in the same period 2016 mostly because increase of the costs of
maintenance of other fixed assets.

- costs of renting which in the period 1-V1 2017 amount RSD 17,513,882 and mostly refer to
renting of business facilities of legal persons, licence leasing and leasing of web structures and
servers. The costs of rentmg in the period 1-VI 2017 are 24% lower than in the same period |ast
year.

- costs of advertising amount RSD 48,281,804.

- costs of other services mostly refers to costs of watering, sewage, achieved in the amount of
RSD 20,193,757 and they are 5% higher than in the same period in 2018.
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The costs of amortization and reserving (group 54) for the period I-VI 2017 amounted
to RSD 371,768,581 and they are 11% lower than in the same period of the previous year, due
to decreased principle for amortisation calculation, which was formed after value assessment for
fixed assets dated 31.12.2016.

Intangible costs (group 55) for the period I-VI 2017 amount to RSD 244,597,210 and
are higher in relation to intangible costs realized in the same period last year mostly due to the
costs of consulting services.

The pattern of intangible costs (group 55) consists of:

- costs of non-production services are the most significant in the group of intangible costs
and are achieved in the amount RSD 157,836,477 mostly referring to accrued costs of
consulting services in the amount of RSD 48,736,188.

- costs of taxes (RSD 40,217,925)

- other intangible costs (RSD 23,217,304)

- costs of insurance premiums(RSD 17,302,995)

- costs of money transfers (RSD 2,953,361)

- costs of representations (RSD 1,688,184)

- costs of membership fees (RSD 1,380,964)

Financial expenditures (group 56) in the period I-VI 2017 are disclosed in the amount
of RSD 164,202,502 and they are significantly higher than in the same period of 2016.
Increase of financial expenditures in the period I-VI 2017 resulted mostly from increase of
negative exchange rate differences, i.e. from fall of RSD exchange rate for Euro (1EUR on
30.06.2016 equalled RSD 123.3115, while on 30.06.2017 it was RSD 120.384886).

Non-realised negative exchange rate differences in the first quarter of 2017 are achieved
in the amount of RSD 102,497,984 and participate with 62% in the pattern of total financial
expenditures.

Realised negative exchange rate differences are achieved in the amount of RSD
42,703,404 and participate with 26% in the pattern of total financial expenditures.

In the pattern of the financial expenditures, expenditures realised from interests
participate with 12%, amount RSD 19,001,114 and are lower 12% than in the same period last
year. The noted expenditures from interest mostly refer to interest from long-term loans liabilities
(EIB - reconstruction of the Termlnal building).

Other expendltures (group 57, 58 and 59) in the period I-VI 2017 are achieved in the
amount of RSD 40,625,587, while in the same period of the last year they amounted to RSD
17,110,155,

It is necessary to notice that the increase in realised other expenditures in the period I-VI
2017 in comparison to the same period of 2016, results mostly from the fact that the greatest
part of Other expenditures in the period I-VI 2017 refers to value correction of domestic buyers,
(Jat Tehnika, Air Serbia-Ketering etc.).

Business report for the period 1-VI 2017



EXPENDITURE STRUCTURE VI 2017
Rebalancin .
Acc:un Account name AT:V;QTGGM Plan i ? AC:X:'V;OT; ot INDEXES
V1 2047
1 2 3 4 5 6(5/3) 7(5/4)

50 PURCHASE VALUE OF SOLD GOODS 61,233,875 191,100,000 14,258,842 28 7
501 |PURCHASE VALUE OF SOLD GOODS 51,233,875 191,100,000 14,258,842 28 7
51 COSTS OF MATERIAL AND ENERGY 203,486,192 269,442,855 236,266,545 118 88
911 COSTS OF MAKING MATERIAL 49,136,783 101,130,684 75,410,681 153 75
512 [COSTS OF OVERHEAD MATERIALS 3,969,713 5,628,469 11373936 287 202
513 |COSTS OF FUEL AND ENERGY 127,285,773 120,500,000 140474624 110 17
514 [COSTS OF SPARE PARTS 14,434,196 39,260,664 8,996,304 62 2
515 |COSTS OF SINGLE WRITE-OFF OF TOOLS AND INVENTORY 8,638,728 2,923,038 0 0 0
52 COSTS OF SALARIES, COMPENSATIONS AND OTHER PERSONAL EXPENSES 1,419,313,162)  1,.448173,438]  1605.234858] 106 104
520 |COSTS OF SALARIES, SALARY COMPENSATIONS (GROSS) 824,207,688 844,460,624 853,700,528 104 101
521 |COSTS OF SALARY TAXES, CONTRIBUTIONS AND COMPENSATIONS - EMPLOYER 147,533,176 151,158,451 152,808 519 104 101
522 |COSTS OF COMPENSATIONS FOR SERVICE CONTRACTS - GROSS 319,532 191,719 207,889 65 108
524 |COSTS OF COMPENSATIONS FOR TEMPORARY AND OCCASIONAL JOBS - GROSS 277,212,911 276,949,034 316,160,712] 114 114
525 |COMPENSATION TO NATURAL PERSONS FOR OTHER CONTRACTS - GROSS 0 100,000 0 0 0
526 |COMPENSATION TO DIRECTOR, LE. MEMBERS OF MANAGEMENT AND SUPERVISORY BODIES 4,192,192 4,061,206 4378211 104 108
520 |OTHER PERSONAL EXPENDITURES AND COMPENSATIONS 165,847,664 171,262,404 177868999 107 104
53 |COSTS OF PRODUCTION SERVICES 188,397,724 367,037,528 203,742,589) 121 56
531 |COSTS OF TRANSPORTATION SERVICES 36,846,693 38,161,281 29,845,021 81 78
532 [COSTS OF MAINTENANCE SERVICES 68,137,138 183 541,243 87,008,124 129 48
533 |COSTOF LEASE 23,006,626 39,280,076 17,513,862 76 45
535  |ADVERTISING COSTS 21,172,883 47,035,000 48281804 228 103
539 COSTS OF OTHER SERVICES 19,234,383 53,015,928 20,193,757 105 34
54 |COSTS OF AMORTISATION AND RESERVES 419,892,589 426,500,000 371,768,561 89 87
540 |AMORTISATION COSTS 416,892,589 422,500,000 366,398,581 86 87,
545 |RESERVES FOR EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION 0 0 0 0 0
549 |OTHER LONG-TERM RESERVES 2,000,000 4,000,000 5370000 269 134
55 INTANGIBLE COSTS 127,870,041 467,903,404 244.597,2100 191 52
550 |COSTS OF NON-PRODUCTION SERVICES 56,377,743 384,937,417 157,836.477) 280 41
551 |COSTS OF REPRESENTATION 1,953,283 3,946,277 1,668,184 8| 43
552 COSTS OF INSURANCE PREMIUMS 12,109,378 17,577,371 17,302,995, 143 38
553 ICOSTS OF PAYMENT SYSTEM 2,708,855 2,621,275 2,953,361 109 113
554 |COSTS OF MEMBERSHIPS 5,963,466 5,007,723 1,380,964 2 27
555 |COSTS OF TAXES 39,618,842 41,518,152 247950 102 g7
550  |OTHER INTANGIBLE COSTS 9,138,478 12,275,189 23,217,304 264 189
I OPERATING EXPENDITURES 2389172583 3170157224 2675857627 108 81
56 FINANCIAL EXPENDITURES 54,433,709 27,935,912 164,202,502) 301 588
562 |INTEREST EXPENDITURES 21,639,840 17,960,015 19,001,114 88 106
563 INEGATIVE EXCHANGE RATE DIFFERENCES 32,836,023 9,964,129 141,019,425 429 1415
564 |EXPENDITURES FOR EFFECTS.OF CURRENCY CLAUSE 15,845 11,768 4181963 26303 35535
i FINANCIAL EXPENDITURES 54,493,708 27,936,912 164,202,502 301 538
57 OTHER EXPENDITURES 17,103,267 11,069,355 14,730,256 86 133
570 |LOSSES FROM EXPENDITURES AND SALE OF INTANGIBLE INVESTMENT IN REAL ESTATES AN 9 50,000 2,571,612 0 5143
571 1LOSS FROM WRITE-OFF AND SALE OF BIOLOGICAL RESOURCES 15,000 0 80,000] 533 0
574 {DEFICIT 9 0 581 0 0
575 |CONTRACTED RISK PROTECTION NOT PRESENTED AS REVRESERVE ] 347 0 0 0 0
576 |EXPENDITURES FROM DIRECT WRITE-OFF OF RECEWABLES 0 0 0 0 0
577 |WRITE-OFF S 0 0 0 0 0
579 |OTHER NON-MENTIONED EXPENDITURES. 17,087,920 11,009,355 12,078,062 71 110
58 EXPENDITURES FROM PROPERTY IMPAIRMENT 6,388 0 25,038,422) 363489 9
582 |IMPAIRMENT OF PROPERTY. PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 0 0 0 0 o
583 |IMPAIRMENT.OF LONG-T. FINJNVST AND OTHER SECURITIES FOR SALE 0 0 868,778 0 0
585 |IMPAIRMENT OF RECENABLES OF SHORT-T. FIN. INVEST i 6,888 [) 24,169,644) 350877 0
580 . TIMPAIRMENT OF OTHER PROPERTY 0 0 0 0 0
59 EXPENDITURES OF PREVIOUS YEARS 9 0 886,910 0 9
591 |EXPENDITURES OF PREVIOUS YEARS 0 0 0 0 0
502 |EXPENDITURES FROM ERROR CORR. FROM, PREV.YEARS MATERIALLY INSIGNIFICANT 0 0 856,910 0 0
i OTHER EXPENDITURES 17,110,185 11,069,355 40,625,587 237 367
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 2,460,776,448)  3,200152491]  2780.685718] 113 87,
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it quarter

In the period IV-VI 2017 total expenditures were achieved in the amount of RSD
1,368,742,144. Thus achieved expenditures are 12% higher than the expenditures achieved in
the same period of the previous year and 22% lower in relation to Rebalancing Plan Il for the
period IV-VI| 2017.

Purchase value of sold goods (group 50) is realised in the amount of RSD 14,051,367
and it almost entirely refers to purchase value of sold heating oil. For purchase value of sold
heating oil it was spent RSD 13,781,730.

The costs of material and energy (group 51) for the period IV-VI 2017 amount to RSD
79,120,665. They participate in total expenditure with 6% and mostly refer to: costs of electricity,
spent fuel for cargo vehicles, spent stationary, spent basic material and other.

Hugest amount within total expenditures refers to the costs of salaries,
reimbursements and other personal expenditures (group 52) amounting for the period I\V-VI
2017 RSD 744,579,107 and that is 4% higher than in the same period last year.

The costs of salaries of employees (gross Il - groups 520 and 521) in Airport Nikola Tesla
amount RSD 494,338,972, while costs of persons engaged through youth organisations (Fan,
Beograd, Knez, Medijator and Europa) amount RSD 95,875,703.

Group 52 besides salaries also includes reimbursements by contracts (service contracts),
reimbursements per temporary and occasional jobs, contracts for additional work,
reimbursements for the members of the Supervisory board and members of the Assembly of
Shareholders and other personal expenditures (transport of employees, costs of trips, joint
assistance and jubilee bonuses, etc.).

The costs of production services (group 53) in the period IV-VI 2017 amount RSD
97,774,766 and they are 45% higher then in the same period of the previous year.

The pattern of cost of production services consists of:

e costs of transportation services, which in the period IV-VI 2017 amount RSD
16,567,408 mostly refer to: monthly ITT support for passenger and baggage registration,
information costs and passenger check-in costs and other;

¢ costs of maintenance services which in the period IV-VI 2017 amount RSD 35,377,387
and they are 53% higher than in the same period 2016 mostly because of the significant
increase of costs of the current maintenance of fixed assets;

¢ costs of renting which in the period IV-VI 2017 amount RSD 6,309,941 and mostly refer
to renting of business facilities of legal persons, licence leasing and leasing of web
structures and servers. '

« costs of advertising and propaganda which in the period IV-VI 2017 amount RSD
28,990,969; '

» costs of other services which in the period IV-VI 2017 amount RSD 10,529,062 and they
are 22% higher than in the same period 2016 mostly refer to costs of water, sewage, etc.

The costs of amortisation and reserves (group 54) in the period IV-VI 2017 amount
RSD 136,782,971 and they are 36% lower then in the same period of the previous year.
due to decreased principle for amortisation calculation, established after value assessment for
fixed assets on 31.12.2016

[\
h
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Intangible costs (group 55) in the period IV-VI 2017 are disclosed in the amount of RSD
132,393,748 and they are twice higher then in the same period of the previous year.

The pattern of intangible costs (group 55) consists of:

e The costs of non-production services in the period IV-VI 2017 amount to RSD
89,460,631 are most significant costs in the group of intangible costs and in most part
refer to the costs of the consulting services in the amount of RSD 24,973,094. Within this
group of costs are also:

¢ costs of representation which in the period IV-VI 2017 amount RSD 863,173;

e costs of insurance premium which in the period V-Vl 2017 amount RSD 8,698,300;

¢ costs of payment operations which in the period IV-VI 2017 amount RSD 1,545 472;

» costs of memberships which in the period IV-VI 2017 amount RSD 745,949;

s costs of taxes which in the period IV-VI 2017 amount RSD 20,086,460:

¢ other intangible costs which in the period I\VV-VI 2017 amount RSD 10,993,762;

Financial expenditures (group 56) in the period IV-VI 2017 are disclosed in the amount
of RSD 145,156,840 and they are five times higher then in the same period of the previous year.
Increase of financial expenditures in the period 1V-VI 2017 resulted mostly from increase of
negative exchange rate differences, i.e. from fail of RSD exchange rate for Euro (1EUR on
30.06.2016 equalled RSD 123,3115, while on 30.06.2017 it was RSD 120,38486).

In the pattern of financial expenditures, the largest participation have realized expenditures from
non-realized negative exchange rate differences amounting to RSD 93,582,304 with 64% of
share in the total financial expenditures, followed by realized expenditures from negative
exchange rate differences with 29% amounting to RSD 41,438,255 and at the end realized
expenditures from interest with 7% amounting to RSD 10,136,281.

Other expenditures (group 57, 58 and 59) in the period IV-VI 2017 are achieved in the
amount of RSD 8,882,681, while in the same period of the last year they amounted RSD
13,555,976.
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EXPENDITURE STRUCTURE IV-Vi 2017

. Rebalancin .
Aocoun Acoountnams oovement || S| achievement | gy
vt 2017
1 2 3 4 5 8(5/3} 7(5/4}

50 [PURCHASE VALUE OF SOLD GOODS 29,035,948 190,550,000 14,051367] 48 7
501 |PURCHASE VALUE OF SOLD GOODS 29,035,948 190,550,000 14,051,367 48 7
51 COSTS OF MATERIAL AND ENERGY 80,716,505 153,257,369 79,120665| 98 52
511 |COSTS OF MAKING MATERIAL 10,533,278 62,872,842 9209461 88 15
512 |COSTS OF OVERHEAD MATERIALS 2,939,561 2,814,234 8462400, 288 301
613 |COSTS OF FUEL AND ENERGY 54,493,489 64,469,682 57,122,138] 105 89
514 |COSTS OF SPARE PARTS 8,490,152 21,444,082 4,236666] 65 2
515 COSTS OF SINGLE WRITE-OFF OF TOOLS AND INVENTORY 6,260,004 1,656,519 0. 0 0
52 |COSTS OF SALARIES, COMPENSATIONS AND OTHER PERSONAL EXPENSES 713,889,173 726,649,219 744519.007] 104 102
520 |COSTS OF SALARIES, SALARY COMPENSATIONS (GROSS) 414,404,115 422,230,312 419,266,656 101 %
521 |COSTS OF SALARY TAXES, CONTRIBUTIONS AND COMPENSATIONS - EMPLOYER 74,178,338 75,579,226 75,052,316] 101 %
522 |COSTS OF COMPENSATIONS FOR SERVICE CONTRACTS - GROSS 0 95,860 111,389 0 116
524 |COSTS OF COMPENSATIONS FOR TEMPORARY AND OCCASIONAL JOBS - GROSS 140,937,507 138,537,017 161,006,576] 114 116
55 |COMPENSATION TO NATURAL PERSONS FOR OTHER CONTRACTS - GROSS 0 50,000 0 0 0
526 |COMPENSATION TO DIRECTOR, LE. MEMBERS OF MANAGEMENT AND SUPERVISORY BODIES 2,134,038 2,005,603 2,337,073] 110 115
529 |OTHER PERSONAL EXPENDITURES AND COMPENSATIONS 82,235,175 88,131,202 86,785006| 106 %
53 |COSTS OF PRODUCTION SERVICES 67,231,854 199,662,231 97.774,766] 145 49
531 |COSTS OF TRANSPORTATION SERVICES 21,133,499 19,080,641 16,567,408 718 87
532 |COSTS OF MAINTENANCE SERVICES 23,155,774 99,895,621 35377,387] 153 35
533 |COSTOF LEASE 10,624,248 20,651,004 6300941 59 3
535  |ADVERTISING COSTS 3,673,884 30,525,000 28,990969| 789 9
539 |COSTS OF OTHER SERVICES 8,644,449 29,500,964 10,529,062] 122 3%
54 |COSTS OF AMORTISATION AND RESERVES 213,876,552 213,250,000 136,782971] 84 64
540 |AMORTISATION COSTS 211,876,552 211,250,000 131,412971] 62 62
545 |RESERVES FOR EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION 0 0 0 0 0
549 |OTHER LONG-TERM RESERVES 2,000,000 2,000,000 5,370,000 269 269
55 |INTANGIBLE COSTS 66,610,545 249,241,796 132,393,748] 199 53
550 |COSTS OF NON-PRODUCTION SERVICES 31,942,625 207,153,803 89,460,631 280 43
551 |COSTS OF REPRESENTATION 850,359 2,578,138 863173 98 S
552 |COSTS OF INSURANCE PREMIUMS 5,813,783 8,788,686 8,598,300 150 %9
553 |COSTS OF PAYMENT SYSTEM 1,519,286 1,310,638 1,545,4724 102 118
554 |COSTS OF MEMBERSHIPS 1,869,105 2,513,862 745049] 40 30
565  |COSTS OF TAXES 19,855,226 2,750.076 20086460, 101 o7
550 |OTHER INTANGIBLE COSTS 4,730,062 6,137,594) 10,993,762] 232 179
1 OPERATING EXPENDITURES 1471,360,878]  1,732,610,608]  1,204702,623] 103 70
5 |FINANCIAL EXPENDITURES 28,071,494 13,967,956/ 145,156,840  517] 1,039
562 |INTEREST EXPENDITURES 11,550,166 8.980.007) 10,136,281 88 113
583 " INEGATIVE EXCHANGE RATE DIEFERENCES 16,508,761 4,982.065| 130861,322] 793 267
564 |EXPENDITURES FOR EFFECTS OF CURRENCY CLAUSE 12,563 5,884] 4,139,238] 32,947 70345
I FINANCIAL EXPENDITURES 26,071,491 13,967,956 145,156,840 517 1,039
57 |OTHER EXPENDITURES 13,555,976 5,529,677 8.237218] 61 143
570 |LOSSES FROM EXPENDITURES AND SALE OF INTANGIBLE INVESTMENT IN REAL ESTATES AN 9 25,000 2,571,612 o| 10286
571 |LOSS FROM WRITE-OFF AND SALE OF BIOLOGICAL RESOURCES [ 0 80,000 0 0
574  |DEFICIT 0 0 0 0 0
575 |CONTRACTED RISK PRGTECTION NOT PRESENTED AS-REV.RESERVE 0 0 0 0 0
576 |EXPENDITURES FROM DIRECT WRITE-OFF OF RECEVABLES 0 0 0 0 0
577 |WRITE-OFF : ) 0 0 0 0 0
579 |OTHER NON-MENTIONED EXPENDITURES 13,556,976 5,504,677 5565606, 41 101
58 |EXPENDITURES FROM PROPERTY IMPAIRMENT 0 [) 119,650 [ o
582 |IMPAIRMENT OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 0 0 0 0 0
583 [IMPAIRMENT OF LONG-T FININVST AND OTHER SECURITIES FOR SALE g 0 868,778 0 0
585 |IMPAIRMENT OF RECENVABLES OF SHORT-T. FiN. INVEST 0 0 988,428 0 0
589 . IMPAIRMENT OF OTHER PROPERTY 0 0 0 0 0
59 |EXPENDITURES OF PREVIQUS YEARS 0 0 765,113 0 0
501 |EXPENDITURES OF PREVIOUS YEARS 0 0 [} 0 0
582 |EXPENDITURES FROM ERROR CORR. FROM. PREV.YEARS MATERIALLY INSIGNIFICANT 0 0 765,113 0 0
1 OTHER EXPENDITURES 13,565,976 5,529,677 5,862,681 66 161
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 1,212,988.345]  1,752,108,238]  1,368,742,144 112} 78
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4.3. SALARIES

In the period I-VI 2017 the total amount of RSD 853,790,528 (gross 1) was paid for
salaries. It is 4 % higher than in the same period 2016 and 1% higher than the planned figures
for the period I-Vi 2017,

SALARIES GROSS |

SALARIES GROSS |

5 6
1 2 3 4 (4/2) (4/3)
January 148,211,040 140,743,437 141,135,782 95 100
February 132,265,745 140,743,437 136,689,966 103 97
March 129,326,788 140,743,437 156,678,124 121 111
April 148,264,265 140,743,437 141,617,053 96 101
May 135,787,982 140,743,437 140,301,835 103 100
June 130,351,868 140,743,437 137,367,769 105 98
Total salaries 824,207,688 844,460,622 853,790,528 104 101

In the period I-VI 2017 salaries of employees are paid off per individual work contracts.

In the period 1-VI of the current year the average Gross | salary in the Company
amounted RSD 110,341 and it is higher than in the previous year by 3%. In the period I-VI 2017
the average net salary in the Company amounted RSD 78,530 and it is 3% higher than in the
same period last year. , ,
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Month AD ANT Month AD ANT
January 109,462 January 77,907
February 107,288 February 76,400

March 122,177 March 86,827

April 109,278 April 77,785
May 108,336 May 77,122
June 105,506 June 75,137
Average I-V1 2017 110,341 Average |-Vl 2017 78,530
Average I-V| 2016 106,790 Average |-V| 2016 76,011
I-V1 2017/1-Vi 2016 103% [-V12017/1-V1 2016 103%
Average number of employed and engaged persons on 31.03.2017 was 1.992,
while the average number on 30.06.2017 was 2001.
NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES IN 2017
Month Indefflmfte Definite Total GH Tem|_o/occ TOTAL
period of per. of as. jobs
1 2 3 4 (2+3) 5 6 7 (4+5+6)
Average I-lll 827 503 1,331 416 245 1,992
Average |-V 958 380 1,338 408 255 2,001

Business report for the period I-VI 2017




4.4. FINANCIAL RESULT I-vi 2017

In the period 1-VI 2017 gross profit of the Company was achieved in the amount of RSD
1,640,251,202.
Thus expressed gross profit is 1% higher than gross profit in the same period 2016.

_ FINANCIALRESULT _~
. Rebalancing .
No. Position Ac:*\ :;VZEOT: nt Plan Il Ac‘h:/e.}vze OT; nt Index
I-VI 2017
1 2 3 4 5 6(5/3) 7(5/4)
1 |Operating revenues 3,920,356,661)  4,623,111,676]  4,330,402,235 110 94
2 |Operating expenditures 2,389,172,583|  3,170,157,224]  2,575,857,627 108 81
3 |Business profit (1-2) 1,531,184,078)  1,452,954,452)  1,754,544,608 115 121
4 |Financial revenues 126,312,301 86,822,934 78,994,498 63 1
5 |Financial expenditures 54,493,709 27,935,912 164,202,502 301 588
6 |Financial profit (4-5) 71,818,592 58,887,022 0 0
6a (Financial loss (54) 85,208,004 0 0
7 |Other revenues 36,550,490 23,546,516 11,540,186 32 49
8 |Other expenditures 17,110,155 11,059,355 40,625,587 237 367
Other profit (7-8) 19,440,334 12,487,161
9a |Other loss (8-7) 29,085,401
10 |Total revenues (1+4+7) 4,083,219,452)  4,733,481,126]  4,420,936,919 108 93
11 |Total expenditures (2+5+8) 2,460,776,448|  3,209,152,491|  2,780,685,716 13 87
12 |Total gross profit (10-11) 1,622,443,004|  1,524,328,635)  1,640,251,202 101 108
12a |Total gross loss (11-10)
13 |Period tax expenditure 171,552,908| 228,649,295 215,646,608 126 94
14 |Deferred period tax exﬁenditure 76,828,171 0 37,373,426 49 0
15 |Deferred income tax 0 0 0 0 0
16 |Eamings paid by employer
17 |Net profit 1,374,061,925)  1,295,679,340|  1,387,231,169 101 107

In the period -Vl 2017 gross profit of the Company was disclosed in the amount of RSD
1,387,231,169. Thus expressed net profit is 1% higher than net profit in the same period 2016.
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Il quarter

In the period IV-V] 2017 gross profit of the Company was disclosed in the amount of
RSD 1,060,179,371 and it is 1% higher than gross profit in the same period of 2016

~ FINANCIAL RESULT
. Rebalancing .
Achievement Achievement
No. Position Plan Hi WHpexe
1IV-Vi 2016 VI 2017 V-Vl 2017
1 2 3 4 5 6(5/3) | 6(5/4)
1 |Operating revenues 2,160,663,360  2,734,275,956|  2,371,316,979 110 87
2 |Operating expenditures 1,171,360,878]  1,732,610,605]  1,204,702,623 103 70
3 |Business profit (1-2) 989,302,482,  1,001,665,351)  1,166,614,356 118 116
4 |Financial revenues 64,713,817 43,411,467 41,033,421 63 95
5 |Financial expenditures 28,071,491 13,967,956 145,156,840 5171 1,039
Financial profit (4-5) 36,642,326 29,443,511 0 0
6a |Financial loss (54) 104,123,419 0 0f
Other revenues 34,856,981 11,773,258 8,571,115 19 56
Other expenditures 13,555,976 5,529,677 8,882,681 66 161
Other profit (7-8) 21,301,005 6,243,581
9a |Other loss (8-7) 2,311,567
10 |Total revenues (1+4+7) 2,260,234,158)  2,789,460,681|  2,418,921,515 107 87
11 |Total expenditures (2+5+8) 1,212,988,345|  1,752,108,238|  1,358,742,144 112 78
12 |Tofal gross profit (10-11) 1,047,245,813|  1,037,352,443)  1,060,179,371 10 102
12a |Total gross loss (11-10)
13 |Period tax expenditure 107,495,454 155,602,866 143,141,347 133 92
14 |Deferred period tax expenditure 62,891,631 37,373,426 59
15 |Deferred income tax 2,671,708 0
16 |Eamings paid by employer
17 |Net profit 876,858,729 881,749,576 876,992,889 100 99

In the period IV-VI 2017 net profit of the Company was disclosed in the amount of RSD
876,992,889 and it is at the same level as net profit in the same period of 2016.
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4.5. ECONOMIC BUSINESS INDICATORS FOR THE PERIOD I-VI 2017

BUSINESS RATIO OF THE COMPANY FOR THE PERIOD V12017

NOC. Description of ratio indicators ADP R:(T)f;) ]N 3:2081? R?;': lN ;N;;EE/R
Cash ratio
. — 10442 484 457
{current capital / short-term liabilties) 0043 044 8
Aodtestrato (0043:0044) /0442|475 445
4 LIQUIDITY RATIO (current capital/ short-term liabilities)
Cash ratio
10442 72 0.
{cash equivalents and cash / short-term liablities ) 0088/ 04 ¢ &
Financial stability ratio 0002/ 10 117
(fixed assets / capital assets + long-term liabilities) (0402+0432) ) )
Net profit margin 064/
{net profit / profit from sale of goods + profit from sale of services (1002+}?83HO17) 3.0 320
Gross profit margin {gross 1058/
2 Profitability ratio profit / profit from sale of goods + profit from sale of services 100 (1002 +'1 09+1017) 4139 3788
*Gross proft margin gives information how much profit is kept once all the costs 100 ' )
are paid after realisation of products and services on a market
Return on assets (ROA) .
1064 /00711 ) .
Net profit / Total assets*100 064 /0077100 478 4%
Leverage ration (0424+0442) { o 008
(total liabilities / fixed assets) 0002 ‘ ‘
3 |PRODUCTMTY RATIO Retam o Shore o aseeis ot
urn of short-term assets rafi
. ‘ prof / . 82
(total profit/ working capital) toLprof./ 0043 05 08
4 EBIT ) BT ‘ ) 1001-1018 1,531,184,077.73 | 1,754,544,607 .83
{operating profit - operating expenditures)
5 EBITDA ) ) .EBWDA ' o (1001-1018)+1027 | 1,948,076.866.54 | 2,120,943,183.30
{operating profit-operating expenditures) + amortisation
Solvency ration
{total assets / totel liabilities ) 00711 7
4,
6 SOLVENCY RATIO *Solvency is capabilty of the Company fo settle its fiabiltties in due time. 10424+0447) 5 1468
Company is solvent if the ratio is > or = 1
Ebitda margin
" (ebitda / operating profit} 100 R
! EGTDAMARGIN “It indicates percentage of profit in revenues of the Company, without Ebida / 1001°400 960 8%
consideration of amortisation and fingncial result
NET CURRENT Net current assets - NCA
T -044 611,722,706.67 | 4.192,988.728.72
s ASSETS (current assets-short-term fiabilities) Was-04s2 8617227068 9238812
9 BUYERS TURNOVER : 365/Average receivables charging time 235 3.28
RATIO
1 SUPP”EF?;%RNOVER 366/Average libilty setiement time 290 93
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According to the Regulation on the provision of ground handling services at airports
(Official Gazette of the Republic of Serbia no. 61/2015-hereinafter the Regulation) Belgrade
Nikola Tesla Airport drew up the Business plan of OU Ground handling within ANT, No. 33-
179/2 dated on 24.06.2016.

According to the Regulation on the provision of ground handling services at airports,
Belgrade Nikola Tesla Airport is responsible for accounting records of the business activities of
the airport operator and the activity of providing ground handling services so as to ensure
complete separation of accounts specified activities.

The Regulation defines the types of services that Ground Handling provides to third
parties as follows:

1) Aircraft ground handling on apron;
2) Ground handling of hold baggage;
3) Supply of aircraft with fuel and lubricants;

4) Ground handling of mail and goods, in part related to the physical handling at arrival,
departure or transfer between the cargo terminal and the aircraft.

Determination of achieved revenues and expenditures in the period I-VI 2017 of the OU
Ground handling is in accordance with the Business plan of OU Ground handling ANT nN. 33-
179/2 dated 24.06.2016.

5.1. REVENUES OF OU GROUND-HANDLING

OU Ground handling in the period |-Vl 2017 has achieved the total revenue in the
amount of RSD 776,479,188, which is 18% of total revenues at the level of the Company.

Total realised business revenues based on services provided by OU GH at ANT in the
period I-VI 2017 amount to RSD 774,901,327 and participate with 18% in the realised business
revenues of ANT for 2017.

Within business revenues, the largest share of 55% consists of revenues generated from
air services, 27% share of revenues from other services, revenues from CCW services account
for 11% of business revenues, and revenues from passenger services account for 7% of
business revenues in the period |-Vl in 2017.

Financial revenues are realised in the amount of RSD 350,597 for the period I-Vi 2017
and they refer to realised exchange rate differences.

Other revenues are realised in the amount of RSD 1,227,263 for the period I-VI 2017
and they refer to revenues from sale of secondary materials.

w2
(V8]
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REVENUE PATTERN ANT/GH 1-vi 2017
Ser. . - Realization ANT Realization GH
No. Type of service Description 1V 2017 VI 2017 INDEX
1 ] 3 4 5 & (5/4)
Air services domestic carriers
614000+614004+614300+614302+614303+614304 Landing 88,326,562 O 0
614010+614014+614310+614312+614313+614314 Lighting 27,607,957 0 0
614030+614034+614330+614332+614333+614334 Handiing 92,875,352 92,875,352 100
614040+614042+514043+614044 Infrastructure 51,446,738 0 0
614050 Air-bridges 10,388 1,039 10
614020+614024+614320+614323+614324 Aircraft abode tax 2,192,656 0 ']
} Total air services (domestic carriers): 262,459,662 92,876,391 35}
Air services foreign carriers
615010+615011+615012+615013+615014 Landing 349,335,245 Q 0
616020+616021+616022+615023+615024 Handling 321,333,370 321,333,370 100
616030+615031+615032+615033+615034 Lighting 35,819,613 0 0
816040+615042+615043+615044 Infrastructure 229,027,379 0 0
616060+615062 Air-bridges 100,627,747 10,062,775 10
616000+615001+616002+616003+615004 Aircraft abode tax 13,774,555 0 0
H Total air services {foreign carriers): 1,048,917,907 331,396,144 32
[Adll Total air services 1,312,377,669 424,272,536 32
Passenger service
614400+614404 - domestic carriers - domastic traffic Passenger sarvice d.c./d.t. 872 0 0
614181+614182+614183+614190(BRS and 4
PRM)+614410+614412+614413+614414 Passenger service d.c./l.t. 569,084,044 24,073,393
€15150+616152+615200+615210+6156212+615213+616214+61 3
5216+615862+615864+615896-PRM Passenger service for.car. 910,848,579 28,557 431
614420+614430+614432+614433+614434+615230+615232+61 0
5233+615234 Security fees 506,254,911 0
]
Hl Total passenger service 1,986,188.405 62,630,823 3
feli+il Total air services and passenger service 3,298,565,966 478,903,358 14
CCW services
6125004612510 CCW services dom. market 80,361,488 80,361,488 100
613300 +613310 (foreign) CCW services for. market 6,429,469 6,428,469 100
v Total CCW services 86,790,957 86,790,957 1001
v Total services in air traffic (I to IV): 3,386,356,922 583,694,318 17
Other services
1 614360+615100+615102 DCS senvices 7,935,789 7,935,789 100
614110+614112+614115+614116+614170+614173+614180+61 )
2 4391 +615872+615877+615891+615892+615895 Special request - work order 81,020,160 75,193,330 83
3 |614130+614131+615072+615071 VIP Lounge 3,692,085 0 0
4 4614140+814142+615090+815002 CUTE (dom + for) 82,085,273 [¢] 0
5 1615080+614380 Lost and found 7,622,351 7.629,351 100
6 }6146+615120+615400+615401 Putili utifities 3,862,561 0 0
7 1614820+615170 Catering ser. Business Ciub 725 0 0
8 |614870+615810 Advetising space 44,838,527 0 Q
9 1614883 f “{ummer.use of apron 29,472,441 0 0
10 1614160+614164+615110+615114 Aircraft de-icing service 115,972,405 115,972,405 100
11 _}Other non-mentjoned senices dom + foreign 40,883,928 4,476,138 kX
Vi Other services (1 to 11): 487,183,246 211,207,012 43
Vil Total 61 - Revenues from sale of services (V+VI) 3,872,550,166 774,901,327 20!
Revenues from sale of goods:
Vil 60 - Revenues from sale of kerosene + goods 10,420,992 0 Q
1X Total (60+61) Revenues from sale (Vil+Vil) 3,882,971,168 774,901,327 20
X 64 n 86 - Renting of office spacs 447,431,076 0 0
X! BUSINESS REVENUES { IX+X) 60+61+62+64+65 4,330,402,235 774,901,327 18
XH 88 - FINANCIAL REVENUES 78,994,498 350,697 0
1 interest 47,424,278 0 0
2 exchange rate differences -realised 14,784,293 350,597 2
3 exchange rate differences -non-realised 16,785,827 0 0
X 67 ¥ 68 OTHER REVENUES 11,540,186 1,227,263 11
XV Total revenues (XI+X1+X1i1) 4,420,936,919 776,479,188 18



I} quarter

OU Ground handling in the period IV-VI 2017 has achieved the total revenue in the
amount of RSD 359,047,281, which is 156% of total revenues at the level of the Company.

Total realised business revenue based on services provided by OU GH at ANT in
the period IV-VI 2017 amount RSD 357,773,174 and participates with 15% in the realised
business revenues of ANT for 2017.

Operating revenue in the period IV-VI 2017 is composed of:

- revenues from air services 65%,

- revenues from other services 14%,

- revenues from CCW services 12%

- revenues from passenger services make 9% of operating revenue.

Financial revenues are realised in the amount of RSD 69,007 for the period IV-VI 2017
and they mostly refer to realised exchange rate differences.

Other revenues are realised in the amount of RSD 1,205,100 for the period V-VI 2017
and they refer to revenues from sale of secondary materials.
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REVENUE PATTERN ANT/GH IV-vI 2017

" - Realization ANT Realization GH
S.No. Type of service Description VAV 2017 V.V 2017 INDEX
1 2 3 4 5 6 (5/4)
Air services domestic carriers
614000+614004+614300+614302+614303+614304 Landing 49,421,163 0 ]
614010+614014+614310+614312+614313+614314 Lighting 13,109,807 0 0
614030+614034+614330+614332+614333+614334 Handling 51,822,784 51,822,784 100
614040+614042+614043+614044 infrastructure 28,712,798 0 0
614050 Air-bridges 6,918 692 10
614020+614024+614320+614323+614324 Aircraft abode tax 1,561,084 0 0
i Total air services (domestic carriersy 144,634,654 51,823,476 36
0
Air services foreign carriers ]
615010+615011+615012+615013+615014 Landing 192,654,044 0 0
615020+615021+615022+615023+615024 Handling 173,927,858 173,927,858 100
615030+615031+615032+615033+615034 Lighting 14,910,434 0 0
615040+615042+815043+615044 Infrastructure 125,873,550 0 0
815060+615062 Air-bridges 55,172,347 5,517,235 10
616000+615001+615002+615003+615004 Aircraft abode tax 8,031,359 0 0
H Total air services (foreign carriers): 570,569,592 179,445,093 31
aal) Total air services 716,204,246 231,268,569 32
Passenger service
614400+614404 - domestic carriers - domastic traffic Passenger service d.c./d.t. 872 0 0
614181+614182+614183+614190(BRS and 4
PRM)}+614410+614412+614413+614414 Passenger service d.c./i.t. 331,563,775 14,248,396
615150+616152+615200+615210+615212+615213+615214+61 3
§215+615862+615864+615896-PRM Passenger service for.car. 519,735,814 16,410,228
614420+614430+614432+614433+614434+615230+615232+61 0
52334615234 Security fees 305,179,201 0
[ Total passenger service 1,15€,479,662 30,658,623 3
I+H+li Total air services and passenger service 1,871,683,908 261,927,192 14
CCW services
612500+612510 CCW sarvices dom. market 41,155,837 41,155,837 100
613300 +613310 ({foreign) CCW services for. market 3,378,715 3,379.715 100
IV Total CCW serviges 44,535,652 44,535,552 100
v Total services in air traffic (1 to IV): 1.916,219,480 306,462,744 16
Other services
1 1614360+615100+615102 DCS senvices 4,845,758 4.845,758 100
-+ + + + + + -+
2 3;311212;3;12612;;1212;;:1212:3;;212;3;73 B14180+61 Special request - work order 43,204,584 40,115,723 93
3 1614130+614131+615072+615071 VIP Lounge 1,967,143 0 0
4 1614140+614142+615090+615002 CUTE (dom + for) 47,386,855 0 0
6 1615080+614380 Lost and found 3,841,312 3,941,312 100
6  |8146+615120+615400+615401 Public utilities 39,001,644 0 0
7 1614820+615170 Catering ser. Business Club 725 0 0
8 |614870+615810 Agvertising space 18,224,874 0 0
9 1614883 Commer.use of apron 15,258,668 0 0
10 {814160+8141684+615110+615114 Aircraft de-icing service 0 0 Y
11_|Other non-mentioned services dom + foreign 22,100,373 2,407,637 "
vi Other services (1 to 11} 196,021,936 51,310,430 26
Vil Total 61 - Revenues from sale of services V+V]) 2,112,241,395 357,773,474 17
Revenues from sale of goods:
Vil 60 - Revenues from sale of kerosene + goods 10,114,849 0 0
o 1]
X Total (60+61) Revenues from sale (VII+VIif) 2,122,356,343 367,773,174 17
9
X 64 v 86 - Renting of office space 248,960,636 0 0
X1 BUSINESS REVENUES ( IX+X) 80+61+62+64+65 2,371.316,979 357,773,174 15
Xi 66 - FINANCIAL REVENUES 41,033,421 69,007 0
1 interest 25,680,354 0 0
2 exchange rate differences -realised 6,535,927 93,1892 1
3 exchange rate differences -non-ealised 8,807,140 -24,182 0
X 67 ¥ 68 OTHER REVENUES 8,571,116 1,205,100 18
Xiv Total revenues (XI+XI+XH) 2,418,921,515 359,047,281 15
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5.2. EXPENDITURES OF OU GROUND-HANDLING

In the period 1-VI 2017 total expenditures of GH were achieved in the amount of RSD
704,688,955, which represents 25% of realised expenditures of ANT on this bases for the
relevant period of 2017.

Total realised business expenditures based on services provided by OU GH in ANT in
the period 1-VI1 2017 amount RSD 701,734,026 and participate with 27% in the realised business
expenditures of ANT for 2017.

Within the total expenditure, the largest share of 71% relates to expenditures realized based on
expences of salaries, reimbursements and other personal expenditures, costs of material and
energy are 13% within business expenditures, costs of amortization and provisions 9%, other
business expenditures relate to intangible costs and costs of production services.

Financial expenditures are realised in the amount of RSD 1,103,534 for the period |-VI
2017 and they refer to negative exchange rate differences.

Other expenditures are realised in the amount of RSD 1,851,395 for the period |-V
2017.
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EXPENDITURE PATTERN ANT/GH I-Vi 2017

Realization ANT 14 Reatization GH
Acc. Account name zati Vi 2017 Vi 2‘0” index
1 2 3 4 5 (4/3)

50 PURCHASE VALUE OF SOLD GOODS 14,288,842 4 0
501 PURCHASE VALUE OF SOLD GOODS 14,258,842 0 0
51 COSTS OF MATERIALS AND ENERGY 236,255,645 89,017,797 38
51 COSTS OF MATERIALS FOR PRODUCTION 75,410,681 44,270,978 59
512 COSTS OF OVERHEADS 11,373,936 1,562,765 14
513 COSTS OF FUEL AND ENERGY 140,474,624 41,869,308 30
514 COSTS OF SPARE PARTS 8,996,304 1,314,748 16
515 COSTS OF ONE-TIME WRITE-OFF OF TOOLS AND INVENTORY 0 0 o
52 SALARIES, REIMBURSEMENTS AND OTHER PERSONAL EXPENDITURES 1,505,234,859 498,356,085/ 33
520 SALARIES AND REIMBURSEMENTS-GROSS 853,790,528 268,917,223 31
521 TAXES AND CONTRIBUTIONS AT THE COST OF EMPLOYER 152,828,519 48,136,190 31
522 REIMBURSEMENT FOR SERVICE CONTRACTS-GROSS 207,889 0 0
524 COSTS OF REIMBURSEMENTS PER TEMPORARY AND OCCASIONAL JOBS-GROSS 316,160,712 132,740,507 42
525 REIMBURSEMENT FOR NATURAL PERSONS BY OTHER CONTRACTS-GROSS Q G 0
526 REIMBURSEMENT TO DIRECTOR, L.E. MEMBERS OF MANAG. AND SUPERV. BODIES-GROSS 4,378,211 501,915 11
529 OTHER PERSONAL EXPENDITURES AND REIMBRSEMENTS 177,868,999 48,060,220 27
53 COSTS OF PRODUCTION SERVICES 203,742,689 18,631,728 9
531 COSTS OF TRANSPORTATION SERVICES 29,845,021 11,099,622 37
532 COSTS OF MAINTENANCE SERVICES 87,908,124 3,708,596 4
533 COSTS OF LEASE 17,613,882 537,432 3
535 COSTS OF ADVERTISING 48,281,804 ¢] 0
539 COSTS OF OTHER SERVICES 20,193,757 3,186,079 18
54 COSTS OF AMORTIZATION AND RESERVES 371,768,581 66,111,849 18
540 COSTS OF AMORTISATION 366,398,581 66,111,849 18
544 RESERVES FOR RESTUCT.COSTS 0 [¢] 0
545 RESERVES FOR REIMBURSEMENTS TO EMPLOYEES o G 0
549 OTHER LONG-TERM RESERVES 5,370,000 0 0
56 INTANGIBLE COSTS 244,597,210 29,716,595 12
550 COSTS OF NON-PRODUCTION SERVICES 157,836,477 17,230,446 i
551 COSTS OF REPRESENTATION 1,688,184 149,457 9
552 INSURANCE PREMIUMS 17,302,995 5,739,797 33
553 COSTS OF PAYMENT SYSTEM 2,953,361 245,069 8
554 COSTS OF MEMBERSHIPS 1,380,964 460,281 33
566 COSTS OF TAXES 40,217,925 3,322,242 8
558 OTHER INTANGIBLE COSTS 23,217,304 2,569,303 11
t BUSINESS EXPENDITURES 2,576,857,827 701,734,028 27
56 FINANCIAL EXPENDITURES 184,202,602 1,103,534 1
562 INTEREST EXPENDITURES 19,001,114 0 0
563 NEGATIVE EXCHANGE RATE DIFFERENCES 141,019,425 1,103,534 1
564 EXPENDITURE ;OF EXCHANGE CLAUSE RISK 4,181,963 0 0
H FINANCIAL EXPENDITURES 164,202,502 1,103,634 1
57 OTHER EXPENDITURES 14,730,256 1,861,385, 13
570 LOSSES BASED ON WRITE-OFES AND SALE OF PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 2,571,612 1,034,228 40
571 LOSSES BASED ON WRITE-OFFS AND SALE- OF BIOLOGICAL RESQURCES 80,000 0 0
574 LOSSES 581 0 0
576 CONTRACTED RISK PROTECTION NOT SHOWN AS REVALUATION RESERVE 0 o 0
576 DIRECT WRITE-OFF OF RECEIVABLES Y 0 0
577 DISPOSAL - REMOVAL FROM INVENTORY 0 0 0
579 OTHER NON-MENTIONED EXPENDITURES 12,078,062 817,187 7
58 EXPENDITURE ON IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS 26,038,422 0 Q
582 IMPAIRMENT OF PROPERTY, PLANT-AND EQUIPMENT Q 0 0
583 IMPAIRMENT OF LONG-TERM FIN. INVESTMENTS AND OTHER SECURITES AVAILABLE FOR SAL 868,778 0 0
585 IMPAIRMENT OF RECEWWABLES OF SHORT-TERM FIN.INVESTMENTS 24,169,644 0 0
589 IMPAIRMENT OF DTHER ASSETS a 0 0
59 EXPENDITYRES OF PREVIOUS YEARS 856,910 0 Q
591 EXPENDITURES OF PREVIOUS YEARS 856,910 0 0
L OTHER EXPENDITURES ({57+58+59) 40,625,587 1,851,385 5
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 2,780.685,716 704,688,955 25
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Il quarter

In the period IV-VI 2017 total expenditures of GH were achieved in the amount of RSD
329,037,435, which represents 24% of realised expenditures of ANT on this basls for the
relevant period of 2017.

Total realised business expenditures based on services provided by OU GH in ANT in

the period IV-VI 2017 amount RSD 326,570,390 and participate with 27% in the realised
business expenditures of ANT for 2017.
Within the total expenditure, the largest share of 77% relates to expenditures realized based on
expences of salaries, reimbursements and other personal expenditures, than costs of
amortization and provisions 9%, while costs of material and energy are 6% within business
expenditures of UO GH, other business expenditures relate to intangible costs and costs of
production services.

Financial expenditures are realised in the amount of RSD 1,103.534 for the period IV-
V1 2017 and they refer to negative exchange rate differences.

Other expenditures are realised in the amount of RSD 1,408,570 for the period 1V-VI|
2017.

L2
O
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EXPENDITURE PATTERN ANT/GH IV-VI 2017

Realization ANT

Realization GH

Acc. Account name 112017 VI 2047 index
1 2 3 4 5(4/3)

50 PURCHASE VALUE OF SOLD GOODS 14,061,367 0 0
501 PURCHASE VALUE OF SOLD GOCDS 14,061,367 0 0
§1 COSTS OF MATERIALS AND ENERGY 79,120,665 20,254,981 28
511 COSTS OF MATERIALS FOR PRODUCTION 9,299,461 2,069,601 22
512 COSTS OF OVERHEADS 8,462,400 1,237,850, 15
513 COSTS OF FUEL AND ENERGY 57,122,138 16,164,954 28
514 COSTS OF SPARE PARTS 4,236,666 782,586 18
515 COSTS OF ONE-TIME WRITE-OFF OF TOOLS AND INVENTORY 0] 0 0
§2 SALARIES, REIMBURSEMENTS AND OTHER PERSONAL EXPENDITURES 744,679,107 262,831,684 34
520 SALARIES AND REIMBURSEMENTS-GROSS 419,286,656 131,387,329 31
521 TAXES AND CONTRIBUTIONS AT THE COST OF EMPLOYER 75,052,316, 23,518,334 31
522 REIMBURSEMENT FOR SERVICE CONTRACTS-GROSS 111,389 0 1]
524 COSTS OF REIMBURSEMENTS PER TEMPORARY AND OCCASIONAL JOBS-GROSS 161,006,576 73,830,735 45
525 REMBURSEMENT FOR NATURAL PERSONS BY OTHER CONTRACTS-GROSS 0 [¢] 0
526 REIMBURSEMENT TO DIRECTOR, I.E. MEMBERS OF MANAG. AND SUPERV. BODIES-GROSS 2,337,073 252,811 11
529 OTHER PERSONAL EXPENDITURES AND REIMBRSEMENTS 86,785,096 23,642,475 27
63 CO3TS OF PRODUCTION SERVICES 97,774,766 9,043,038 9
531 COSTS OF TRANSPORTATION SERVICES 16,567,408 5,687,313 34
532 COSTS OF MAINTENANCE SERVICES 35,377,387 1,646,564 &
533 COSTS OF LEASE 6,309,941 137,662 2
535 COSTS OF ADVERTISING 28,990,968 [ 0
539 COSTS OF OTHER SERVICES 10,520,062 1,571,500 15
54 COSTS OF AMORTIZATION AND RESERVES 136,782,871 28,389,237 21
540 COSTS OF AMORTISATION 131,412,971 28,389,237 22
544 RESERVES FOR RESTUCT.COSTS 0 0 0
545 RESERVES FOR REIMBURSEMENTS TO EMPLOYEES 0 0 Q
549 OTHER LONG-TERM RESERVES 5,370,000 0 0
56 INTANGIBLE COSTS 132,383,748 16,251,440 12
550 COSTS OF NON-PRODUCTION SERVICES 89,460,632 8,956,478 10
551 COSTS OF REPRESENTATION 863,173 78,014 9
552 INSURANCE PREMIUMS 8,698,300 2,883,365 33
553 COSTS OF PAYMENT SYSTEM 1,545,472 218,314 14
554 COSTS OF MEMBERSHIPS 745,949 396,603 53
555 COSTS OF TAXES 20,086,460 2,325,236 12
559 OTHER INTANGIBLE COSTS 10,893,762 1,393,430 13
1 BUSINESS EXPENDITURES 1,204,702,624 326,570,390, 27
56 FINANCIAL EXPENDITURES 145,166,840 1,068,475 1
562 INTEREST EXPENDITURES 10,136,281 0 0
563 NEGATIVE EXCHANGE RATE DIFFERENCES 130,881,322 1,068,475 1
564 EXPENDITURE OF EXCHANGE CLAUSE RISK 4,139,238 0 0
l FINANCIAL EXPENDITURES 145,166,840 1,068,475 1
57 OTHER EXPENDITURES 8,237,218 1,408,570 17
570 LOSSES BASED ON WRITE-OFFS AND:SALE OF PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 2,571,612 1,034,228 40
571 LOSSES BASED ON WRITE-OFFS AND SALE OF BIOLOGICAL RESOURCES 80,000 0 0
574 LOSSES 0 0 0
575 CONTRACTED RISK PROTECTION NOT SHOWN AS REVALUATION RESERVE 0 0 0
576 DIRECT WRITE-OFF OF RECEIVABLES ¢} 0 0
577 DISPOSAL - REMOVAL FROM INVENTORY. 0 0 0
579 OTHER NON-MENTIONED EXPENDITURES 5,585,606 374,342 7
68 EXPENDITURE ON IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS -119,850 0 4
582 IMPAIRMENT OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 0 0 0
583 IMPAIRMENT OF LONG-TERM FIN. INVESTMENTS AND OTHER SECURITES AVAILABLE FOR SALI 868,778 0 0
585 IMPAIRMENT OF RECEIVABLES OF SHORT-TERM FIN.INVESTMENTS 088,428 0 0
589 IMPAIRMENT OF OTHER ASSETS 0 (¢ 0
59 EXPENDITURES OF PREVIOUS YEARS 765,113 0, 9
591 EXPENDITURES OF PREVIOUS YEARS 765,113 0 0
i OTHER EXPENDITURES (57+58+59) 8,882,881 1,408,570 16
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 1,358,742, 148 328,037,435 24
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5.3. FINANCIAL RESULT OF OU GROUND HANDLING

From the above tables it can be concluded that for the period I-VI 2017 Ground Handling
realized total revenues in the amount of RSD 776,479,188, total expenditures in the amount of
RSD 704,688,955 which resulted in gross profit in the amount of RSD 71,790,233,

The generated gross profit of GH represents 4% of the total generated gross profit of

ANT.
___ FINANCIAL RESULT ANT/GH I-VI 2017
Achievement Achievement
No. Position ANT I-VI 2017 GH 1-VI 2017 Index
1-V1 2017 {-Vi 2017 I-vi 2017
7 > 3 p 5(4/3)
1 |Operating revenues 4,330,402,235 774,901,327 18
2 |Operating expenditures 2,5675,857,627 701,734,026 27
3 |Business profit (1-2) 1,754,544,608 73,167,302 4
4 |Financial revenues 78,994,498 350,597 0
5 IFinancial expenditures 164,202,502 1,103,534 1
6 |Financial profit (4-5) ]
6a |[Financial loss (5-4) 85,208,004 752,936 1
7 |Other revenues 11,540,186 1,227,283 11
8 |Other expenditures 40,625,587 1,851,395 5
9 [Other profit (7-8)
9a |Other loss (8-7) 29,085,401 624,132 2
10 |Total revenues (1+4+7) 4,420,936,919 776,479,188 18
11 _|Total expenditures (2+5+8) 2,780,685,716 704,688,955 25
12 |Total gross profit (10-11) 1,640,251,203 71,790,233 4
12a [Total gross loss (11-10)
13 |Period tax expenditure 215,646,608 10,768,535 5
14 1Deferred period tax expenditure 37,373,428 0
15 |Deferred incometax 0 0
16 |Earnings paidbyemployer
17 |Net profit 1,387,231,167 61,021,698 4

OU Ground handling in the period I-VI 2017 achieved net profit in the amount of RSD
61,021,698, which is 4% of the generated net profit of ANT.
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Il quarter

ANT.

From the above tables it can be concluded that for the period V-Vl 2017 Ground
Handling realized total revenues in the amount of RSD 359.047.281, total expenditures in the
amount of RSD 329.037.435 which resulted in gross profit in the amount of RSD 30.009 846,

The generated gross profit of GH represents 3% of the total generated gross profit of

_ FINANCIAL RESULT ANT/GH IV-V] 2017

No Position Achievement Achievement Index
) I-VI 2016 I-V1 2016
IV-VI 2017 IV-VI 2017 V-Vl 2017
7 2 3 4 5(4/3)
1 |Operating revenues 2,371,3186,979 357,773,174 15
2 |Operating expenditures 1,204,702,624 326,570,390 27
3 |Business profit (1-2) 1,166,614,355 31,202,784 3
4 |Financial revenues 41,033,421 69,007 0
5 |Financial expenditures 145,156,840 1,058,475 1
6 |Financial profit (4-5) 0
6a |Financial loss (5-4) 104,123,419 989,468 1
7 |Other revenues 6,571,115 1,205,100 18
8 |Other expenditures 8,882,681 1,408,570 16
9 |Other profit (7-8)
9a |Other loss (8-7) 2,311,566 203,470 9
10 |Total revenues (1+4+7) 2,418,921,515 359,047,281 15
11 |Total expenditures (2+5+8) 1,358,742,145 329,037,435 24
12 |Total gross profit (10-11) 1,060,179,371 30,009,846 3
12a |Total gross loss (11-10)
13 |Period tax expenditure 143,141,348 4,501,477 3
14 |Deferred period tax expenditure 37,373,428 0
15 |Deferredincome tax 0 0
16 {Earnings paid by employer
17 |Net profit 879,664,595 25,508,369 3

OU Ground handling in the period IV-VI 2017 achieved net profit in the amount of RSD
25,508,369, which is 3% of the generated net profit of ANT.
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Joint Stock Company Belgrade Nikola Tesla Airport is actively involved in solving the
problems of environmental pollution and raising the environmental awareness of all employees

and other persons ANT has direct and indirect contact with.

By its Decision no. 952-02-859/2011 dated 23/03/2017 the Republic Geodetic Authority,
Real Estate Cadaster office Surcin adopted the request for amendment of the list of real estates
no. 2348 CM Surcin, by registration of coholders right on cadastral parcel no. 3739/1 of the area
161 ha 20a 90m? in such manner that it is registered with share of 727/1612090 of "Airport
Catering” d.o.o. Belgrade, Belgrade-Surcin, address Airport Belgrade 59, register number
20047976 as holder of rights on private property. By the same Decision it is registered with
share of 1611363/1612090 JSC Airport Nikola Tesla Belgrade, Belgrade-Surcin, address
Airport Belgrade 59, register number 07036540 as a holder of the right of use at state property
of the Republic of Serbia.

On 27/04/2017, the Republic Geodetic Authority, Real Estate Cadaster Office Surcin
adopted a decision, by which it allowed entry of title of JSC Airport Nikola Tesla Belgrade to
facilities for which the conditions for entry of title are fulfilled and which are placed on the
cadaster lot 3739/1. The basis for acquiring title to the stated facilities are conclusions of the
Republic of Serbia 05 number 023-6625/2016 dated 27/07/2016 and 05 number 023-
10559/2016 dated 09/11/2016 by which an approval was given to enter JSC Airport Nikola
Tesla Belgrade as holder of property title to 27 facilities. By amendments of the Statute of JSC
Airport Nikola Tesla Belgrade, dated 13/04/2017 the article 8, which regulates property and core
capital of the Company, is amended with the provision that adds entitement to 27 relevant
facilities to the core capital of the Company.

On 28/06/2017, the Republic Geodetic Authority, Real Estate Cadaster Office Surcin
adopted a decision, by which it allowed entry of title of JSC Airport Nikola Tesla Belgrade to the
land, i.e. cadastral lots registered in the property list no. 2348 KO Surcin. The basis for acquiring
title to the stated land is the conclusion of the Republic of Serbia on granting ownership of the
land 05 number 464-4116/2017 dated 11/05/2017. Furthermore, by the mentioned decision of
RGA, Real Estate Cadaster Office Surcin, entry of change of land type on cadastral lots
registered in the property list no. 2348 KO Surcin is allowed, so that the land type is changed
from land in agricultural area into land in construction area. Moreover, by the mentioned
decision of RGA, Real Estate Cadaster Office Surcin entry of title of JSC Airport Nikola Tesla
Belgrade to the traffic facility - access road, to the facility airport runway and to the facility
Parking of area 1 ha, 22 a 33 m2 in the part 4633/12233 is allowed.
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Aircraft de-icing and anti-icing apron

Purpose: The investment in subject includes construction of the aircraft de-icing and
anti-icing apron, together with accompanying installations and facilities. JSC Airport
Nikola Tesla Belgrade financed apron construction, whose value is over RSD 557
million, from its own profit.

The area of the constructed apron is about 21.000 m? whereof 16.500 m? is for aircraft
movement,

Status: Works on the apron construction has been finished.

The apron has been used since January 6, 2017, following announcement of appropriate
aviation information, based on previously performed technical inspection and obtained
certificate of the Civil Aviation Directorate of the Republic of Serbia. Ycnen nonnase
rojaBuM Cy ce Maki TEXHUYKM NpoBnemu Koju ce TPEHYTHO pellasajy ca yroBOpeHUMm
ocuryparem.

Reconstruction of the existing hot water system and construction of a new branch of the

system

Purpose: The existing hot water net system in the part from the restaurant for
employees to the substation in the facility of the Terminal building 2 is older than 25 year
and partly goes under the terminal building. From the point of security it is not a good
solution that hot water system goes under a building, because in case of leakage safety
of the object would be endangered and access to the leakage point would be difficult.
For that reason, and due to the age of the installation, it was necessary to move the hot
water system which goes under the Terminal 1 and under connecting part between
Terminal 1 and Terminal 2.

By installation of pre-insulated pipes loss of heat is decreased, as well as loss of hot
water (which was also achieved by construction of a new main branch of hot water
system from the boiler house to the restaurant for employees. Furthermore, for the
planned construction of the C finger hall, as well as for the aircraft de-icing and anti-icing
apron, it was necessary to construct a new branch of the hot water system (from the
connection for Terminal 2), considering that the capacity of the substation for Terminal 2
is fully used.

Status: Works on reconstruction of the existing hot water system and construction of a
new branch of the system have been finished. Exploitation permit has been obtained for
the performed works. Until now no irregularities have been noticed in the operation of the
hot water system.

Arrangement of the central hall of the Terminal 1

e Purpose: For the purpose of commercialisation of the space in the Terminal building 1

it is necessary to carry out the works on arrangement of that space. By arrangement of
the space in subject we will make a new, more modern and more representative space,
which will be easily and efficiently used for commercial purposes.

Status: The works on the arrangement of the central hall were completed on March 15,
2017 and the facility was put into operation immediately after the completion of the
works.
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Adaptation of passenger check-in facility

Purpose: Due to increased number of passengers, a greater number of check-in
counters for departing passengers is needed. Increase of the registration capacity has
the purpose of unobstructed traffic in peak hours and higher standard of comfort for
departing passengers.

Adaptation of the existing facilities at the ground floor of Terminal 1 and reconfiguration
and increase of capacity for passenger and baggage check-in are planned to free the
existing check-in counters in Terminal 1 and Terminal 2 from work overload.

Apart from the indicated, it is provided to arrange the facility for passenger and baggage
check-in in the hall and the baggage conveyor system and facilities in the sorting room
of the Terminal 1.

The concept of facility arrangement is adjusted to temporary trends of arrangement of
passenger terminals and it will encompass most modern solutions from this field in
aviation industry.

Status: Works are underway and it is expected to be finished during the second half of
2017,

The works were contracted based on conducted public procurement procedure and the
Contract was concluded on 22/12/2016 with a group of tenderers Energoprojekt
Industrija and WD Concord West. Dynamics of the works in subject are in the
accordance with technological processes of the Airport Nikola Tesla and in line with the
dynamics of performance of other works. Island 500 (part of adapted passenger check-in
hall) is put into operation.

Procurement of the Visual Docking Guidance System

Purpose: By installation of the system on the parking positions A6-A10 the aircraft
handling system will be completed and improved on all contact positions. Procurement
and installation of the Visual Docking Guidance System enables technical assistance to
a pilot during aircraft parking, whereby safety level in realisation of critical operation is
increased and the time of engagement of active employees and of the equipment is
decreased (Marshallers and Follow me vehicles). Also time of parking operations is
decreased.

Apart from basic information shown to aircraft crew by the system, such as parking
position mark, position of the aircraft in relation to the centre line/stop bar on the parking
position and speed of the aircraft entering a position, there is also an option of systemic
display of certain information relevant for persons employed in Operation centre of the
Airport. Those information mainly refer to restrictions in terms of aircraft parking on
neighbouring positions, if the system does not catch irregularities automatically, whereby
security level is increased and possibility of fault due to human factor is diminished.
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Status: Following conducted public procurement procedure, the Public procurement
contract for the Visual Docking Guidance System is awarded to a group of tenderers
Elgra Vision and MC Corona.

The equipment for visual docking guidance is installed. Final testing of the system,
verification of expertise of users and process of obtaining approval for regular usage
from CAD are in progress.

Based on the results of the internally conducted tests, the equipment supplier has
received remarks and the final removal of the observed defects is expected. The system
is still not in commercial use.

Enforcement of floor construction

Purpose: In the departing sorting area at the ground level of the Terminal 2 according to
new security regulations it is planned to place a new X-ray screener whose mass is over
8000kg. As the existing floor construction cannot support described concentrated load it
is necessary to additionally enforce the construction.

Status: Public procurement procedure had been performed and on 01/11/2016 the
contract was concluded with a group of tenderers WD Concord West, Masinoprojekt
Kopring, Dabicom and Interfast; the group of tenderers commence the works on
13/12/2016.

Realisation of the first phase of work performance - enforcement of the construction in
the basement of the Terminal 2 has been finished, and the next phase and finalisation
of works - in the departing sorting room are planned for the second half of 2017, a
period following start-up of new passenger check-in counters, baggage handling system
and the sorting room of the Terminal 1.

Drawing out of Detailed requlation plan

Purpose: The plans currently in effect, based on which it is possible to plan new
contents, buildings and infrastructure at the airport complex dates back to 1989. Up to
now the Airport Nikola Tesla has utilised most of its capacities provided by these plans
and its development in accordance with current trends in aviation is disabled and it
cannot make appropriate infrastructural improvements which should accompany
significant increase in air movements and number of handled passengers and goods.

Status: The contract for the preparation of planning documents was concluded on May
31, 2016 with the Urban Planning Institute of Belgrade. On 18.07.2016 The City
Assembly passed the Decision on the elaboration of a detailed regulation plan for the
ANT complex. The drafting of the plan is in progress. The development of the concept of
development, which is the basis of the Draft, is dynamically dependent on the dynamics
of the implementation of the process of selection of the ANT Concessionaire. All parties
(UZB, VRS, ANT) are familiar with the conditionality of these two processes and the
possible delays in the development of the DRP are communicated.
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The Airport Nikola Tesla Capacity Assessment Study

Purpose: The study should indicate necessary technological and technical capacities of
the airport infrastructure, operating technology and capacity utilisation during peak
traffic. For that purpose, service provider should carry out comprehensive monitoring of
airport processes and necessary analysis of collected data. Following the analysis,
service provider should indicate in the Study existing capacities which could be utilised
more efficiently in accordance with international standards and recommendations, and
weak points in airport processes with suggestions for their melioration, as well as
conclusions on further development of airport capacities and on traffic forecasts.

Status: The procedure of public procurement has been carried out and on 08/08/2016
the Contract was concluded with EGIS d.0.0 from Belgrade and EGIS AVIA from France.
Deadline for the study is 180 days.

Pursuant to the contracted deadline, during March 2017 the final report of the Capacity
Assessment Study of the Airport Nikola Tesla was submitted, alongside the
accompanying final documentations.

The study received all the necessary internal approvals and, in with June conclusive,
EGIS was paid the full value of the contract.

Container facilities for employees

Purpose: In order to relocate users of the facilities in the area of reconstruction and
additional construction works on finger hall A in the part from A6 to A10, it is necessary
to provide new facilities for their accommodation. Users of the facilities in subject, apart
from accommodation facilities also need parking places and places for their equipment.
For this purpose a space in wider area between D staff access, a traffic apron and the
building of the Post office, at the place of the existing temporary facility - "Barracks in
wire". At this area a plateau for parking of vehicles and storing of equipment in security-
restrictive area will be formed, a mounting container facility for employees will be
constructed, and a space for car parking and a plateau for the mounting container with
business facilities in the public area will be arranged.

Status: Drawing out of the technical documentation and performance of works have
been contracted in the public procurement procedure with a consortium RAS inzenjering
and the Highway Institute. The concept design has been made and a request for issuing
of a decision on construction certificate has been submitted to the Ministry of
construction, traffic and infrastructure.

The contractor began the process of fencing construction sites.
The procedure for obtaining the construction permit is in the final stage.
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Arrangement of the parking lot P10

Purpose: The existing car parking - P10 (parking next to the "Red building") need to be
rearranged to relocate taxi parking, and in order to free the existing location for other
contents, as well as in line with increased demand for parking capacities at the ANT
complex The existing area comprises of 3950 m? with road constriction in bad condition
with visible damages/cracks. Rearrangement works will divide the existing car parking
into two independent functional parking lots of total surface of 3950 m2. The parking lot
of around 1850 m2 should be used for employees (74 parking places) and the lot of
about 2100 m2 should be used for taxi vehicles (84 parking places). Access to each of
the lots will be controlled by an appropriate access control system, connected to
automatic ramps.

Status:

o Technical documentation: The contract for development of technical
documentation was concluded on May 11, 2017 with Geoput. The designer
submitted the preliminary design of the Project execution. The expected deadline for
submission of the complete technical documentation is August 2017,

o Performance of works: After development of technical documentation, the
execution of works will start. Expected deadline for performance of works is the last
quarter of the current year.

New boiler house

* Purpose: The existing boiler house supplies heating to the facilities at the Airport Nikola

Tesla complex and it was built more than 40 years ago.

The boiler house has capacity of 47,9 MW and the huge part of it is not utilised, as the
boiler TPK-20 MW has not been in order for years. The boilers have been subject to
maintenance works of different level for a few times and their working parameters were
decreased, which indicates low driving reliability of the boilers. Due to deterioration of the
boilers, equipment and other devices, frequent failures during heating season are
encountered. ;

As we need to connect new users to the existing heating system it is necessary to
reconstruct and improvement of the system or to built a new energy block.

Status: For the purpose of drawing out of the necessary technical documentation the
public procurement procedure has been carried out and on 09/11/2016 the contract for
drawing out of the technical documentation for construction of a new boiler house was
concluded with the tenderer Kolssing.

Adjustment of the selected conceptual design with the suggestions received from the
Ministry of construction, traffic and engineering is in progress, in order to obtain location
requirements for construction of an additional facility and decision on construction
certificate for reconstruction of the facility in accordance with regulations and based on
technical : documentation.
Preparation of modification of technical documentation by the designer is in progress, in
order to apply again for the location conditions for the reconstruction of the boiler room.
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Legalisation of facilities

Purpose: For certain number of facilities at Belgrade Nikola Tesla Airport documentation
in relation to property status is unsatisfactory despite a course of actions taken in a
previous longer period of the time. In line with the valid regulations and in order to
overcome existing situations in this area, legalisation procedures have been commenced
for the unsatisfactory documentation. Total area of 11 building constructions for
legalisation is 4.700 m2 (de-icing garage, fire-fighters' garage, auxiliary buildings,
locksmith workshop, fire water supply reservoir P-264, a facility - aircraft handling drivers,
crematory building, kennels for dogs, a building for technical maintenance, the heating
facility, the restaurant "Borik"). Total area of 8 civil engineering facilities for legalisation is
57.150 m2 (roads, parking in front of the terminal building, parking in front of the barrack
for technical maintenance, parking no. 9 in front of the barrack, Parking T-2, Parking P4,
Parking P7, Parking P8, Parking P10).

Status: Upon the filed request, the Ministry of construction, traffic and infrastructure
addressed us with a request to submit documentation necessary for legalisation
procedure, to prove fulfiiment of pre-conditions in legalisation procedure for the facilities in
subject;

JSC Airport Nikola Tesla Belgrade filed a plead for extension of the deadline for
submission of the necessary documentation to the Ministry until the public procurement
procedure is realised and the procurement for the service of drawing out of documentation
necessary for legalisation is provided.

The public procurement procedure for service of making the Report on the existing
condition of the building in purpose of legalisation, as a part of necessary documentation.
The Report on the existing condition should include 19 facilities built without permit for
construction at the airport complex (11 building constructions and 8 civil engineering
facilities).

Procurement Services of landline telephony, mobile telephony and Internet

Purpose: Procurement of services of fandline telephony, mobile telephony and Internet
services includes procurement of these telecommunication services for the period untii
December 2018. Without telecommunication and internet services the operative and
business processes at the airport could not work. Considering that all services are based
on Internet services and that telecommunication services, which include landline and
mobile telephony, are exceptionally important for airport operations, signing of these new
contracts for the said services provides continued, unimpeded airport operations.

Contracted values:

Contracted values for the services of landline telephony is 14,000,000.00, service
provider is Telekom Srbija.

Contracted values for the services of mobile telephony is 14,800,000.00, service
provider is VIP Mobile.

Contracted values for the Internet services is 12.000.000,00, service provider is Telekom
Srbija.
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Implementation of reporting, analysis and analytical system

* Purpose:_JSC Belgrade Nikola Tesla Airport has a large number of information
systems, both standard and those specific to airport operations. Individually, all these
solutions have their role in business processes, collect data, process them, store them,
add value to them, generate information, generate reports and indicators that are used in
day-to-day operations and decision-making.

In every organization that has a large number of data storages (databases), there is a
need for an "umbrella" solution that will integrate the relevant data in one place, thus
creating a new database from which the reports will be generated, analyzing and
analyzing the complete blood picture of the company and be the basis for business
management decision-making.

By implementing the reporting, analysis and analytical system, the airport can achieve
numerous advantages when it comes to better resource planning and eventual change
or introduction of new processes that can lead to cost savings and revenue increases.
By monitoring the key performance indicators (KPIs) provided by the system, the
necessary information is provided for process optimization, planning and decision
making based on real and timely information within individual organizational units and
management.

Opening of tenders for this public procurement was conducted on July 17, 2017, and the
process of expert evaluation of tenders is in progress.

Procurement Equipment for passenger and baggage self check-in

Purpose: J/ATA StB initiative (FAST TRAVEL PROGRAM. Simplifying the Business,
IATA) is aiming to enable service users self check-in per individual travel phases. The
subject of the procurement is equipment for passenger and baggage self check-in in
accordance with /ATA StB initiative and within the indicated procurement of applicative
software, service of system implementation, support and maintenance.

The equipment and software for passenger self check-in - Common Use Self Service
(CUSS) represents information platform which enables using of common infrastructure,
ie. CUSS counter, to which several different applications of air-carriers can be
implemented for passenger self check-in.

The equipment and software Self Service Bag Drop (SSBD) represents information
platform which enables passengers to automatically checks-in their baggage and drop it
at the counters with this service.

Apart from the previous, this procurement shall provide forming of hybrid counters, i.e.
counters with the option of standard passenger and baggage check-in and the option of
Self Service Bag Drop depending on current/seasonal needs.

In accordance to an initiative of Air Serbia made in line with its needs, the Airport
planned the subject public procurement and thus continued the process of
implementation of self-servicing.

Preparation of Tender documentation for the procurement Equipment for passenger and
baggage self check-in is in progress.

50
Business report for the period 1-V] 2017



Procurement of Enterprise Resource Planning system (ERP)

Purpose: Enterprise Resource Planning system (ERP) represents a platform of
integrated applications which provides integration and optimisation of operating
processes.

The basic purpose of the ERP system is to facilitate information flow between all
operating functions in the organisation, as well as with external associates and business
partners.

Future information system should completely integrate operating processes, eliminate
manual processes and introduce automatic control at all fields of application.

The procurement includes procurement of licences of applicative software, service of
analysis of business processes, implementation and adjustment of the system to the
operational needs of the airport, as well as service of preventive and corrective system
maintenance upon system launching.

Introduction of the new Enterprise Resource Planning system will significantly contribute
to development and improvement of information technology of the airport and provide
simple and efficient integration with other information systems directly used in
operational processes of the airport (specific airport systems and other business
systems)

The implementation of the SAP enterprise-information system is in progress, and the
agreed deadline for the implementation of the last phase of the implementation project is
560 days (December 2018).

Value: RSD 145,253,602,00, VAT excluded

Provider: A group of tenderers with S&T Serbia doo as a group leader, per contract no.
UJNV-28/2017 dated 27/04/2017

Lease, agreements and contracts with air carriers

1.

On 02/02/2017 the Request for disclosure of information, submission of data and
documentation to the Commission for protection of competition of the Republic of Serbia
for individual exemption of the Lease contract (revised text) no. 14-61/2016 dated
20/12/2016 with the Lessee Dufry, which is concluded based on a decision of the
Supervisory Board as the most significant commercial contract of Airport Nikola Tesla
Belgrade, which come into effect on the day of obtaining of Decision of the Commission
for protection of competition and it will be implemented on the first day of the month
following the Decision of the Commission. Up to the date of obtaining of the Decision of
the Commission, the Basic Agreement remains entirely effective with application of all of
its provisions. In the new agreement the airport diminished obligations and liabilities
related to guarantees in the agreement, as well as areas dedicated for operations of the
lessee-Dufry, but it increased revenues. The Lease Agreement (revised text), no.14-
61/2016 dated 20/12/2016 provides consequences in case the Commission for
protection of competition does not approve exemption. The request has been filed
together with the lessee-Dufry.
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On 10/02/2017 the Public invitation for the granting of a concession for the financing,
development through the construction and reconstruction, maintenance and
management of the infrastructure of JSC Airport Nikola Tesla Belgrade and the
performance of the activity of airport operator was published. The public invitation was
published in the Official Gazette of RS no. 09/2017 on 10/02/2017.

Thus the procedure for granting concession of JSC Airport Nikola Tesla Belgrade was
launched.

On 16/02/2017 air carrier "Isr Air* commenced air traffic on its scheduled flight Belgrade
— Tel Aviv, twice to three times per week, operated with Airbus A320.

On 01/03/2017 the Stimulation plan came into force, including the following reliefs for the
companies fulfilling prescribed conditions: introduction of new scheduled lines (short-
haul and long-haul traffic) and volume base reliefs (reliefs for frequency increase, reliefs
for increase of departing passengers number, reliefs for increase of transfer passengers
number, reliefs for total departing passengers number reliefs for airlines with based
aircraft or aircrafts with night abode.

Introduction of the Stimulation plan has a purpose to increase attractiveness of the
airport as a regional hub, its transparency and competitiveness.

The Stimulation Plan is applied to all airport users which increase air-traffic volume at
Belgrade Nikola Tesla Airport, initiate public air-transportation on a new scheduled flight,
annually increase either number of flights or number of passengers.

On 02/03/2017 lIsrael air carrier "Arkia* commenced air traffic on its scheduled flight
Belgrade — Tel Aviv, mostly twice a week, operated with Embraer 90.

On 15/03/2017 first daily flights of the Turkish air-carrier Atlasglobal on the route
Belgrade - Istanbul commenced. The flights are operated with A320/A321 aircrafts. This
air-carrier operates on this route as code-share partner with the domestic air-carrier Air
Serbia and it operates seven times a week.

On 16/03/2017 a part of the debt upon executive judgement was charged from the
company "AS Catering” RSD 4.473.777,26 (the principal debt with interest and costs of
enforcement before the Court) while the other part was charged on 21/04/2017 in the
amount of RSD 34.299.839,58 (the principal debt with interest and costs of enforcement
before the Court.

On 04/04/2017 the IoW-ccst company "Transavia“ launched its flights from Belgrade to
Amsterdam. The company operates Boeing 737 on its three flights per week.

On 27/04/2017 the Agreement on repayment of a debt with the Company Jat Technica
which regulates debt of this company based on rendered services which are the subject
of legal action before the Commercial Court in Belgrade, with the exemption of the debt
based on access to and use of service roads and auxiliary service roads at Airport
Nikola Tesla Belgrade as well as the Agreement on repayment of a debt with the
Company Jat Technica which regulates debt of this company based on final judgement
i.e. court decision on enforcement of the Commercial Court.
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10. After the visit of representatives of the Chinese airline "Hainan airlines”, which was

1.

12.

realized in the period from 13th to 16th June 2017, negotiations on the signing of the
SGHA Agreement began. The negotiations are still ongoing, and the company starts
with flights from September 15, 2017 and as their agent for ground handling, the
company chose ANT.

On 06/30/2017 we received a letter from the Ministry of Health No. 530-01-266 / 2017-10
of June 27, 2017 in connection with the request for extending the deadline for the
implementation of the second phase of the Pilot Project "Testing User Satisfaction at the
ANT Complex", by which the Ministry informs us that they believe that the Project should
continue in the next two years.

Application fot he use of Incentive Plan are submitted by the following airlines:

LAIr Serbia®, ,Wizzair®, ,LOT*, , Transavia".

Company ,Air Serbia“submitted application for the use of Incentive Plan (No.1) for
introduction of the new regular (scheduled) route.

Company ,Wizzair'submitted application for the use of Incentive Plan (No. 1) for
introduction of a new scheduled flight, (No. 2) incentive for introduction of frequencies,
(No. 3) for the increased number of departing passengers, (No. 5) total number of
departing passengers and (No. 8) for air carriers with based aircraft(s) for night abode at
ANT

,LOT"airline submitted application for the use of Incentive Plan (No. 2) for increase of
frequency and (No. 3) for the increased number of departing passengers.

Company ,Transavia“submitted application for the use of Incentive Plan (No. 2) for
increase of frequency.

Training of employees in the Employees Training Centre

Staff who indirectly affects the safety of air traffic must be trained in a Training Centre
authorized by DCA and must have certificates of training (Article 187 of the Air Traffic Law
("Official Gazette of RS" nos.73/2010, 57/2011 and 93/2012). In accordance with the stated, the
Employees Training Centre is authorised by DCA for training of employees performing the
following experts' jobs:

Sk wN =

aircraft, passenger and cargo handling on the airport;

fire-rescuing;

transport of dangerous goods in air traffic;

safety control of surfaces for aircraft maneuvering, of airport facilities and installations:
Aircraft fuel supply

Training of aircraft staff on air traffic security
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Under staff performing aircraft, passenger and cargo handling the following staff is considered:

1.

pown

oo

Number of trained persons in the period 01/01/2017 - 30/06/2017:

Traffic coordinator (Airport duty manager):

(Traffic dispatcher (traffic dispatcher and Flight coordinator);

(ramp dispatcher);

controller of ground handling operations (aircraft, passenger and cargo handling
supervisor, inspector of final check of aircraft de-icing/anti-icing, cargo loading
worker in Cargo Warehouse);

aircraft balancer;

airport equipment operator (driver and operator of tugging equipment, airport
escalators, cargo loaders, water cisterns, aircraft toilet servicing vehicles, de-
icing/anti-icing vehicles, air bridges, passenger shuttle buses, passenger and staff
van etc.);

generator operator (operator of Air Ground Power Units);

marshaller (driver of Follow me vehicle, operator of ground communication with
aircraft);

host or hostess at the airport (ground stewards/stewardess, passenger and baggage
check-in agents, passenger and baggage supervisors).

ANT per;?rrwcsj
Steward/-ess (level 1) 40 8
Traffic coordinator 2
Ground handling controller (category 1) 5
Ground handling controller (category 3) 29
Aircraft balancer; 4
Marshaller (level 1) 2
Airport equipment operator (level 1) 37 21
Generator operator 13
Foreman of the sorting area 4
Foreman of cargo trahsshipment 21
Transport worker - transshipment of cargo on aircraft 20
Transport worker in sorting area : 13
Cargo loading worker in Cargo Warehouse 1
Worker on acceptance and dispatch of check-in baggage, mail and
goods at the Airport 25
Winter maintenance service 1
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Under staff performing fire-rescue operations the following are considered:
1. Commander,

2. Professional fire-rescuer (fire-rescue unit and fire prevention section);
3. support staff (primarily employed on other duties):
4. Instructor (practical training instructors).

Number of trained persons in the period 01/01/2017 — 30/06/2017:

ANT per;g!zzg
Support staff 9
Support staff - practice 48
Fire-rescuer L 69

Under employees performing transport of dangerous goods in air traffic the following is
considered:

Category 1 staff - a sender or a person undertaking senders liability;

Category 2 staff - staff preparing parcels with dangerous materials:

Category 3 staff - staff processing dangerous materials;

Category 4 staff - staff processing cargo and mail (excluding dangerous materials);

Category 5 staff - staff performing handling and warehousing of cargo and mail;

Category 6 staff - staff performing reception of dangerous materials:

Category 7 staff - staff performing reception of cargo and mail (excluding dangerous

materials),

Category 8 staff - staff performing handling of cargo and mail and baggage;

9. Category 9 staff - staff performing passenger handling (ground steward-ess,
passenger and baggage check-in, passenger and baggage registration
supervisors);

10. Category 10 staff - aircraft balances and aircraft handling supervisor

11. Category 12 staff - staff performing passenger, baggage, cargo and mail X-screening.

NOoO OO -

@

55
Business report for the period 1-VI 2017



Number of trained persons in the period 01/01/2017 — 30/06/2017:

ANT peréggg
Transport of dangerous goods in air traffic, cat. 7 6
Transport of dangerous goods in air traffic, cat. 10 13
Transport of dangerous goods in air traffic, cat. 9 15
Transport of dangerous goods in air traffic, cat. 5 and 8 137 19
Transport of dangerous goods in air traffic, cat. 8 3
Transport of dangerous goods in air traffic, cat. 12/ module 19 318

Under staff performing safety control of maneuvering area, aircraft facilities and installations is
considered Maneuvering areas, airport facilities and installations safety controller.

Under staff performing aircraft fuel supply operations the following are considered:

1.

Loader (cistern driver and fuel operator);

2. support operator;
3. Storekeeper (fuel storekeeper).
Number of trained persons in the period 01/01/2017 — 30/06/2017:
ANT third
persons
Storekeeper - -
Loader - -
Under staff performing security screening at the airport the following staff categories are
considered:
1. State body staff at the airport;
2. Persons other than passengers, allowed to move without company in SRA or have
access to critical facilities, infrastructure and systems;
3. Persons performing X-screening of persons;
4. Persons performing X-screening of hand baggage and other items that checked
persons carry;
5. Persons performing X-screening of hold baggage:
6. Persons performing X-screening of cargo and mail;
7. Persons performing X-screening of mail and materials of air-carriers, in-flight supplies
and airport supplies;
8. Persons performing security check of vehicles;
9. Persons performing control of access to the airport, surveillance and patrols;
10. Persons performing aircraft protection;
11. Persons performing passenger and baggage reconciliation;
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12
13.

14.
15.
16.
17.

Persons performing security control of cargo and mail, by methods other than X-ray
screening or have access to cargo and mail identified for air transport;

Persons performing security control of mail and materials of air-carriers, in-flight supplies
and airport supplies by methods other than X-ray screening.

Supervisor;

Head officers of security affairs;

Instructors;

Staff responsible for response to emergency situations.

Training certificate for employees performing X-ray screening is issued for the following
categories:

Persons performing security check of vehicles:

Persons performing access control, surveillance and patrols;

Persons performing X-screening of people;

Persons performing X-screening of hand baggage and other items that checked persons
have with;

Persons performing X-screening of hold baggage;

Persons performing X-screening of cargo and mail;

Persons performing X-screening of mail and materials of air-carriers, in-flight supplies
and airport supplies;

For other staff who, in line with the National aviation security programme, must be undergone
appropriate security training the training certificate are issued.

Number of trained persons in the period 01/01/2017 — 30/06/2017:

ANT perézlrrzg
Security awareness training 147 1
Mogpyn 3- OcHosHa o6yka 3a oBaBrbare KoHTpone obesbehuBara 58
Mogayn 4- Mpernep o6esebefuBarba nuua 46
Mogayn 10- KoHTpona npuctyna, Haarneaare u nartpone 25

Apart from the listed trainings prescribed by the national regulations the Employee training

centre

also performs a great number of internal trainings prescribed by internal training

programmes (in line with international /CAO and IATA standards) according to employment
needs of the airport and requests of air-carriers. Furthermore, it is necessary to notice that these
trainings are not organised in any other existing training centre in our country, while their
rendering through foreign training centres is above all very expensive and their implementation
is arguable (our trainings are real working conditions and position-driven). Internal trainings
which are performed within the Employee Training Centre in AD Airport Nikola Tesla Belgrade;

v
v
v

Foreman of cargo transshipment

Foreman of the sorting area

Transport worker --cargo transshipment into aircraft / baggage sorting / transshipment in
CCw.
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Beside the listed trainings, all persons performing jobs within SRA (employees and persons
engaged in ANT, as well as third persons) must be undergone the training on Aviation security:

1. Basics of air traffic safety;

2. Independent operation of vehicle/equipment in SRA 1;

3. Independent operation of vehicle/equipment in SRA 2:
Number of trained persons in the period 01/01/2017 ~ 30/06/2017:

ANT | persans
Basics of air traffic safety; 331 5
Independent operation of vehicle/equipment in SRA 1 7
Independent operation of vehicle/equipment in SRA 2 72 25

In accordance with the Law on Air Traffic, training of employees at the airport is carried out,
which closer area is monitoring and suppression of the presence of birds and other animals.
Number of trained persons in the period 01/01/2017 — 30/06/2017

third

ANT persons

Worker on suppression of birds and animals at the airport 2

In accordance with the Law on obligations and the basics of property relations in air transport,
the staff directly working with persons with disabilities has finished training on equality of
persons with disabilities and awareness on disabilities.

Number of trained persons in the period 01/01/2017 - 30/06/2017:

ANT

Training on equality of persons with disabilities and awareness on

disabilities 127

In accordance with the Law on air traffic, the Centre for professional development is subject to
inspection and audits of the Civil Aviation Directorate.
The Centre for professional development is also subject to external audits of air-carriers.

Number of inspections/audits in the period 01/01/2017 — 30/06/2017:
‘ ~ CAD | Companies

Inspections 2 9

The Centre for professional development also organizes pupils visits for primary, secondary
schools, as well as professional visits of the pupils of the Aviation Academy and students of the
Faculty of transport and traffic engineering.

Number of visits in the period 01/01/2017 — 30/06/2017:
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Faculty of
transport
Schools and traffic
engineering
Visits 7 1

Analysis, planning and development of human resources

In the period from 01/01/2017 until 30/06/2017, within analysis, planning and development of
human resources and OU Human resources (in line with changes in organization, i.e. the new
Rule book on internal organization and systematization of work positions in JSC BNTA, no. 32-
115/1 dated 31/05/2016), there were organized and realised the following:

* 26 internal recruitments and selections, during which 183 candidates were invited for an
interview, and selected 74 candidates for training and redeployment;

* 43 external recruitments and selections, during which 247 candidates were invited for an
interview, and selected 163 candidates for training and redeployment.

Table review of internal selection for the period from 01/01/2017 until 30/06/2017

Internal advertisement Applicants

Operator of airport equipment, cat | 20
Expert associate for safety and health at work 5
Manager of basic maintenance 5
Associate of technical support 12
Driver of the equipment for hygiene 8
Storekeeper 5
Coordinator of passenger and baggage check-in 2
Supervisor of passenger and baggage check-in, cat. 2 7
Worker on maintenance of building construction, cat | 1
Driver on baggage delivery outside of the airport complex 10
Foreman of the sorting area 5
Business secretary in OU Technics 10
Driver on passenger transportation 8
Driver on baggage delivery within the airport complex 4
Fire-fighter - rescuer 83
Brigadier on maintenance of construction building 1
Auxiliary worker for announcement of information through a 5
public address system

Driver on baggage delivery within the airport complex 2
Operator Assistant ' 1
Sorting area coordinator 6
Assistant foreman of the sorting area 2
Worker on maintenance in civil engineering 1
Worker on technical maintenance of the facilites 1
Automation technician on maintenance of technolog. equipment 3
Mechanic on maintenance of technolog. equipment 1
Assistant electrician 4
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Table review of external selection for the period from 01/01/2017 until 30/06/2017

Date of Selection for positions Number of recruited Number of selected
selection candidates candidates

18/01/2017 Ground stewardess 2 2
18/01/2017 Transportation worker 1 1
18/01/2017 Operator of ambulance 1 1
30/01/2017 Transportation worker 11 6
06/02/2017 Transportation worker 2 2
07/02/2017 Ground stewardess 1 1
20/02/2017 Ground stewardess 1 1
20/02/2017 X-ray screener 1 1
24/02/2017 X-ray screener 1 1
24/02/2017 Transportation worker 1 1
07/03/2017 | X-ray screener 1 1
02/03/2017 Electronics engineer 10 0
03/03/2017 Car electrician 7 1
06/03/2017 Transportation worker 17 11
06/03/2017 Transportation worker 12 11
08/03/2017 Transportation worker 6 4
09/03/2017 Ground stewardess 2 2
09/03/2017 X-ray screener 19 19
14/03/2017 Electrician 1 1
14/03/2017 Worker on winter

maintenance in civil 1 1

engineering
17/03/2017 X-ray screener 3 1
21/03/2017 | Transportation worker 21 21
22/03/2017 | Transportation worker 16 16
30/03/2017 | Ground stewardess 1 1
30/03/2017 | X-~ray screener 2 2
31/03/2017 X-ray screener 1 1
10/04/2017 Cleaning jobs 4 4
05/05/2017 Transportation worker 22 15
08/05/2017 Transportation worker 23 15
08/05/2017 Transportation worker 2 2
17/05/2017 Cleaning jobs 2 /
26/05/2017 | Transportation worker 10 6
29/05/2017 | Hostess at the airport 2 2
29/05/2017 Transportation worker 2 2
30/05/2017 | Transportation worker 1 1
02/06/2017 Transportation worker 11 11
14/06/2017 Transportation worker 1 1
19/06/2017 Hostess at the airport 3 2
21/06/2017 Transportation worker 1 1
26/06/2017 Transportation worker 12 11
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26/06/2017 Hostess at the airport

26/06/2017 Cleaning jobs

Wi —

o=

29/06/2017 Transportation worker

-

Labour relations and personal evidention

The Committee giving approval for new employment and further engagement with the users of
public funds gave its approval by the Conclusions no. 112-11145/2016 dated December 13,
2016, 51 number 112-12436/2016-1 dated December 28, 2016 and the Conclusion 51 number
112-1628/2017 dated February 23, 2017 to AD Airport Nikola Tesla Belgrade to employ for an
indefinite period of time totally 600 employees, whose employment for a definite period of 24
months must have been cancelled due to expiry of the employment term, defined in the

statutory maximum term of 24 months.

We would like to remark that by signing the contracts for an indefinite term the employment
status of long time employees of the Airport was finally solved.

Safety and health at work

previous

periodical

Total

Enabling employees for security and health at work at
employment and at movement to other positions.

20

763

783

Organizing previous, periodic and targeted medical
examinations for employees

232

585

817

Training for operéting, keeping and maintaining of
scaffolds B

30

First aid training for employees

200

Injuries at work: report on injury at work, application to
the competent Inspection, the Republic Institute for
Health insurance and the PIO Fund and the BZNR
Administration, event research and corrective measures. -

11

Measurement and examination of conditions of working
environment: microclimate, lighting, noise, aerosols,
gasses and evaporation

159

Inspection and testing of equipment for work
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Inspection and testing of high voltage protective means 16

Publishing of texts for the Bulletin on activities | 4
OU Work safety and protection in the Company.

Remarks and irregularities:
Taking corrective measures in purpose of elimination of 53
irregularities and prevention of further remarks

Making instructions for safe and healthy work 6

Construction site visits during construction works. Filling
out a checklist, monitoring construction works and 8
controlling the application of safety at work measures.

Signing of the Agreement on mutual cooperation and
implementation of safety and health at work measures 1
between Air Serbia and ANT

35

Filling content in FP cabinets. locations

Investment "Draw out of executive design for runway end safety area (RESA)"

¢ Purpose: The purpose of drawing out of the Technical documentation is construction of
runway end safety area in front of the threshold of 12th runways of Airport Nikola Tesla
Belgrade.

» Status: The public procurement is conducted according the procurement plan from the
year of 2015. The contract for service provision is signed with the Institute for roads jsC
Belgrade. Contract value is RSD 1,500,000.00. The technical documentation is made
and delivered to the Purchaser, whereby the contract is executed. Preparation of
security documentation (risk analysis for performance of works) is in progress and it will
be send to the Civil Aviation Directorate for approval.
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Investment "Performance of works on rehabilitation of the sorting area in T1"

Purpose: Due to procurement of a new transportation system it is necessary to adapt
the facilities of the old sorting area, which will functionally comply with the new system.
The procurement plan involves change of the floor surface and, if needed, construction
reinforcing.

Status: The contract for work performance is signed with PC Inzenjering d.o.o0. and
Termomont d.o.0. from Belgrade. The Contract value is RSD 24,942,474.60, VAT
excluding for a turn-key project. The works were finished on 02/03/2017. The Minutes on
works handover is signed on 06/04/2017. The warranty period of five (5) years for the
works in subject has been counted since this date.

Investment "Rehabilitation of plants for fuel storage and decanting”

Purpose: Based on the project of the existing state and suggested measures for
rehabilitation of the fuel tank, works on rehabilitation of plants for fuel storage and
decanting at Airport Nikola Tesla Belgrade are planned. The works are necessary to
obtain exploitation permit.

Status: The public procurement according to the Procurement plan from the year of
2016 is terminated. The same public procurement is planned in the Procurement plan for
the year of 2017. The Public procurement is launched according to the decision on
investment adopted by the Supervisory board. Tender documentation is under
preparation.

Investment "Draw out of investment-technical documentation for analysis _of

reconstruction_and construction of maneuvering surfaces at the Airport Nikola Tesla

Belgrade"

Purpose: Drawing out of the documentation includes analysing variant solutions for
improvement of the condition of road surface construction of the runway. Proposed
variant solutions depend on adopted project period (either 5 or 25 years) and on solution
of road surface construction (flexible, inflexible or combined). Analysing, apart from the
road surface construction, include traffic analyses, costs and gains analyses and risk
management analyses. Based on results of the analyses a decision on further strategy
of maintenance of the existing runway will be adopted.

Status: The public procurement is conducted according the procurement plan from the
year of 2015. Following tender opening session, the documentation has been reviewed
and a decision on contract award has been made. One of the tenderers filed a claim for
protection of Tenderer's rights. The claim was rejected by the Commission for protection

of rights. The most favourable tender rejected to sign the contract submitted by ANT. The

Public procurement commission is preparing documentation for further operations.
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Investment "Draw out of project documentation with technical control for rehabilitation
and fixing up of pedestrian underground passage between arrival part of the Terminal 2
and the parking"

¢ Purpose: Passengers and people who are welcoming passenger intensively use the
pedestrian passage between the terminal building 2 and the parking. Arranging of the
passage with advertising space in line with modern trends and technical solutions is
planned

e Status: The contract is concluded with the service provider "KEJ" d.o.0. Belgrade.
Contract value is RSD 348,000.00. The technical documentation has been made and
delivered to the Purchaser. The Purchaser agreed with the delivered documentation,
whereby the contract is executed.

Investment "Draw out of technical documentation with technical control of
reconstruction of the fence around perimeter”

» Purpose: The final phase of works on rehabilitation of the existing fence alongside the
whole perimeter of the Airport for the purpose of increase of security level and
adjustment of the characteristics of the fence with new regulations.

e Status: The contract on drawing out of technical documentation is signed with the
Tenderer "EUROZNAK" d.o.0. Belgrade. The contract value is RSD 162,000.00,
excluding VAT. The technical documentation has been delivered to the Purchaser. The
Purchaser agreed with the delivered documentation, whereby the contract is executed.

Investment "Rehabilitation of the roof of the reservoir P8"

* Purpose: The reservoir P8 is the hugest fuel tank for jet fuel at the airport, of the total
volume of 500m® Due to deterioration of material the tank cover truss and cover plate
buckled. The procurement "Rehabilitation of the roof of the reservoir P8" includes
drawing out of technical documentation (main design and as-built documentation) and
performance of works on change of the complete tank roof - complete bearing structure
and plate roof cover,

» Status: The public procurement according to the Procurement plan from the year of
2016 is terminated. The same public procurement is planned in the Procurement plan for
the year of 2017. The public procurement was launched based on a decision on
approved investment approved by the Director General. Tender documentation is under
preparation.

Investment "Construction of a fence around perimeter, Phase 4"

* Purpose: Continued works on change of the existing fence alongside the whole
perimeter of the Airport for the purpose of increase of security level and adjustment of
the characteristics of the fence with new regulations. With this, fourth phase changing of
the old fence alongside the whole perimeter of the Airport Nikola Tesla would be
finished.
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Status: The public procurement is planned according the Rebalancing procurement plan
for the year of 2016. Investment has been approved by a decision of the Supervisory
Board. Tender documentation has been published. Tender opening session was
scheduled for 14/03/2017. The submitted tenders exceeded the planned budget. The
procedure was cancelled. A new position in the plan.

Investment "Chiller for server room"

Purpose: The server room currently has air-conditioning system with one chiller as a
primer air-conditioning system and two split units installed as a support in case of failure
of the primer system. Procurement of another chiller enhances reliability level of air-
conditioning system. Parallel connection is made between two chillers, so in case of
failure of one of them, the other takes over operating function.

Status: The public procurement is planned according the Rebalancing procurement plan
for the year of 2016. Investment has been approved by a decision of the Supervisory
Board. Tender documentation is under preparation.

Investment "Changing of the fence on parking areas P5, P6, P7 and the fence around

power transformer station 35/10"

Purpose: For the purpose of uniformising of appearance of the fence and improvement
of functionality of the parking change of the fence is intended. Newly installed fence will
improve appearance of the access road to terminal buildings from Novi Beograd and
Surcin.

Status: The public procurement is planned according the Rebalancing procurement plan
for the year of 2016. Investment has been approved by a decision of the Supervisory
Board. Tender opening session was carried out on 20/01/2017. One of the tenderers
filed a claim for protection of Tenderer's rights. The Commission for protection of
Tenderer's rights has given a guidance for additional consultation with competent
bodies. A request has been sent to the Institute for standardisation for construing of
compatibility of requested and submitted quality standards of cathodic protection of the
fence. The procedure was cancelled. It is planned to repeat the procedure.

Investment "Performance of work on rehabilitation of the roof and on change of the

drainage system of the outdoor seating area of the restaurant Borik"

Purpose: Due to the problem in use of the building (roof leakage and water-lodged
seating area) the works on replacement of the roof cover and drainage system in the
outdoor seating area are planned. As the facility is under lease, the works are supposed
to be finished in the period when outdoor are is not in use.

Status: The public procurement is planned according the Rebalancing procurement plan
for the year of 2016. Investment has been approved by a decision of the Supervisory
Board. Tender documentation has been prepared and sent for approval.
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Investment "Replacement of access control doors"

Purpose: The procurement provides replacement of the doors for control of access to all
waiting rooms at the Airport Nikola Tesla, for the purpose of enhancing security
measures.

Status: The public procurement is planned according the Rebalancing procurement plan
for the year of 2016. Investment is approved by a decision of the Director General. This
procurement provides replacement of the doors at gate accesses, which will enable
implementation of card access control. Design elaboration for access control doors is
under preparation and the initiator of this procurement is OU ITT. Specification for
replacement of the doors will be done based on the project solution.

Investment "Toilet adaptation”

Purpose: The toilet in the transit area by the Dufry coffee bar (by A1 waiting room) is
one of the mostly used toilets at the airport. This toilet also has a shower. Currently,
there is an additional space before the toilet. The entrance is next to the Dufry coffee
bar. Provided that the change of appearance and position of the Free shop, coffee bars
and other shops in the vicinity is envisaged, the toilet adaptation is planned. The
adaptation includes change of the entrance (entrance from the transit corridor C) and
change of the interior design of the toilet.

Status: The public procurement is planned according the Rebalancing procurement plan
for the year of 2016. Investment has been approved by a decision of the Supervisory
Board. Project task with variant solutions has been prepared. Procurement process is
completed and selected contractor BAUWESEN d.o.0. from Lazarevac. The Contractor
is introduced into the business on 28.06.2017 and realization of contract is in progress.

Investment "Replacement of inner branch of stormwater sewage in T2"

Purpose: During the reconstruction of the Terminal building 2, a branch of storm water
sewage, placed in the dropped ceiling of the central part of the terminal building, was not
replaced. In the course of time, material deteriorated and storm water started teaking.
Replacement of the inner branch is planned.

Status: The public procurement is planned according the Rebalancing procurement plan
for the year of 2016. Investment is approved by a decision of the Director General.
Tender documentation is under preparation.

Investment "Replacement of air-conditioners in air-bridges”

Purpose: The existing TEAM air-conditioners in air-bridges have been in use since
2006. According to technical specification for this type of devices their lifespan has
expired. Due to technological obsolescence their efficiency is on much lower level than
of the modern generation of this type of air-conditioners. This procurement provides
replacement of 10 air-conditioners on 5 air-bridges.

Status: The public procurement is planned in the procurement plan for the year of 2017.
Investment is approved by a decision of the Director General. The public procurement
has been launched.
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Investment "Machine for maintenance of installation branch"

Purpose: Procurement of two devices/machines is planned. a machine for maintenance
and cleaning of sewage in the buildings and a machine for compacting unbound layers
with vibratory plate. These machines are necessary for regular and quality work of
maintenance services.

Status: The public procurement is planned in the procurement plan for the year of 2017.
Investment is approved by a decision of the Director General. The public procurement
has been launched.

Investment "Provision of equipment for facilities of state bodies at the airport”

®

Purpose: Within fixing up of spaces for state bodies in the Terminal buiiding 1,
adaptation of the facilities with architectural and construction works, as well as
installation works has been finished. It is planned to equip it with build-in furniture and
equipment, movable furniture and equipment and small wares.

Equipped facility will form a unique functional complex responding to user's needs and
which will aesthetically and qualitatively comply with representation of the Airport Nikola
Tesla in the best manner.

Status: The public procurement is planned in the procurement plan for the year of 2017.
Investment is approved by a decision of the Director General. The public procurement
has been launched. Procurement process is completed and selected contractor
EUROSALON FABRIKA d.o.0. from Belgrade. Realisation is underway.

Investment "Draw out of technical documentation for the existing infrastructure

systems”

Purpose: During the regular maintenance of the existing infrastructure systems, it is
ascertained that some parts of the equipment and installation must be replaced and that
replacement cannot be considered as regular maintenance. For the purpose of quality
view of the scope of works and finding adequate problem solution, we planned drawing
out of technical documentation with work-out in detail. Based on the technical
documentation works and replacement of equipment will be planned in line with bill of
quantities and estimates. The aim is enhancement of the existing systems. Draw out of
technical documentation is planned for replacement of deteriorated equipment and
installations in substations at the airport complex.

Status: The public procurement is planned in the procurement plan for the year of 2017.
Investment is-approved by a decision of the Director General. The public procurement
has been launched.

Investment "Draw out of technical documentation for rehabilitation and fixing up

certain spaces and areas in facilities on Nikola Tesla Airport"

Purpose: Based on the pre-existing conditions of certain spaces and areas, as well as
ascertained defects, frequent interventions for ongoing maintenance, necessity arose for
works of grater scope, which surpass ongoing maintenance and are included in
investment maintenance in line with applicable laws and regulations. The aim is to
provide undisturbed functioning of these facilities in accordance to their purpose, as well
as equipping the facilities on a higher and more modern level, in order to enhance the
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level of services provided to passengers and users of airport building. Drawing out of
technical documentation for rehabilitation of the bomb-shelter, for fixing up of economy
passage and rehabilitation of the part of the roof of the terminal building is planned.

Status: The public procurement is planned in the procurement plan for the year of 2017.
Investment is approved by a decision of the Supervisory Board. The public procurement
has been launched.

Investment "Construction of temporary fence around Airport property"

Purpose: The land that was purchased in the period between 2006 and 2008 for the
purpose of expansion of the Airport,was vested in property in December 2016. The total
area is little above 51ha. Temporary fencing is planned to disable unauthorised access to
and use of the parcels.

Status: The public procurement is planned in the procurement plan for the year of 2017.
Investment is approved by a decision of the Supervisory Board. The public procurement
has been launched. Tender documentation is under preparation.

Investment "Segment doors of the sorting area”

Purpose: The procurement has been conducted and the most favourable tenderer has
been selected. The contract is signed on 29/02/2017, under no. UJNM 9/2017 with the
company HOUSEMATIC DOO Belgrade in the amount of RSD 1.842.500,00, excluding
VAT. Replacement of industrial door of the sorting rooms-total 4 doors is planned by the
procurement. Replacement is carried out due to deterioration of the doors and due to
necessity to work in special conditions in the sorting room of the terminal 1.

Status: Realised. For requirements of carrying out regular technological processes new
doors are put into operation in June 2017.

Investment "System of remote surveillance of power transformer station”

¢ Purpose: For the purpose of increase of reliability and security of power supply of the

consumers at the airport complex, it is necessary to collect and present all key
information from power transformer stations at the airport complex at one place, i.e. to
introduce a system of remote surveillance and management of power transformer
stations from one place, where status of the system of power transformer stations will be
monitored constantly by a duty shift electrician. For the reliable work of the system timely
information and reactions to disruptions in power transformer station, meaning
monitoring -and- control from one place, are highly important. For that purpose,
introduction of the system for surveillance and management of power transformer
stations from duty power centre, in the Electro-service.

Status: The Public procurement is launched according to the decision on investment
adopted by the Supervisory board. Public tender opening session was carried out on
10/10/2016.

The procurement contract was awarded to the Institute Mihajlo Pupin from Belgrade.
Contract value, including VAT is RSD 14,958,740.00. Project realisation is in process.
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Investment "Service of adaptation of public lighting"

Purpose: In order to enhance lighting and decrease electric energy consumption at the
airport complex, it is necessary to adapt a part of public lighting, entrance road to the
parking for the police and rent-a-car agencies in front of Terminal 2, parking in front of
connecting part and Terminal 1 (used by rent-a-car agency) and entrance road from the
city (gate of the building of the new regional control SMATSA) to Terminal 1.

Status: Realised.
The Public procurement is launched according to the decision on investment adopted by
the Supervisory board. Public tender opening session was carried out on 06/10/2016.

The contract is signed with the tenderer MANES DOO from Topola on 14/12/2016 and
the value of the contract excluding VAT is RSD 6,091 500.00. Works are finished,
lighting in use since 19.04.2017.

Investment "Replacement of DG4 with UPS and diesel generator"

Purpose: Provision of reliable and safe work of critical consumers who are supplied
from power transformer station TERMINAL 2

Status: Realised.

Public procurement procedure is conducted. Public procurement contract is signed with
a group of tenderers VITREUM DOO, Belgrade, TEHNIOUNION-EXIM, Sremska
Kamenica and TEHNOLINK DOO, Cenej on 09/06/2016. Contract value, including VAT
is RSD 113,061,600.00. Works and putting into operation carried out on 21.04.2017.

Investment "Machine for maintenance of the system of lighting and marking"

Purpose: Procurement of dedicated machines for performance on road construction for
maintenance of the system of lighting and marking.

Status: Realisation is in process.

Public procurement is divided into the following lots: Lot 1 — Concrete cutting machine
and Lot 2 — Asphalt crack-filling machine. The decision on awarding the contract was
made on June 16, 2017; it is expected to sign a contract for the procurement of goods.
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Investment "Service of implementation of the system for remote monitoring and control
of consumption of de-icing liquid"

e Purpose: Implementation of the Data Transmission System (DTS) with integrated data
collection, processing and distribution. The system provides simplified principle of
operation recording with enhanced level of service security and quality

Status: The Public procurement is launched according to the decision on investment
adopted by the Supervisory board. The public procurement was commences and
published on the web site on 04/04/2016. Tender opening session was carried out on
15/05/2016. The contract was signed with VESTERGAARD COMPANY A/S, DK-4000
Roskilde, Denmark, in the amount of EUR 64,000.00 excluding VAT. The contract was
filed into the Airport archive under the number UJNV-63/2017 on July 19, 2017.

The physical implementation of the equipment according to the said contract should be
completed by September 30 of the current year.

Investment "Baggage conveyor system"

» Purpose: It assumes procurement of conveyor systems on the location - connecting part
between T1 and T2 and T1, provision of baggage check-in counters, baggage carousels,
conveyors, baggage screening devices and central monitoring and management
systems. It also assumes installation/de-installation works, adjustment and putting into
action through phases.

¢ Status: Realisation is in process.
The public procurement was commences and published on the web site on 04/04/2016.
Tender opening session was carried out on 10/05/2016. The contract is signed with a
group of tenderers PREMAR SERVICES AG, Zug, Switzerland and PROFLUSS GrbH,
Leichlingen, Germany in the amount of EUR 6.299.985 50, excluding VAT. The Contract
is recorded in the Archive of the Airport on 15/06/2016.
By the decision of the Director of Civil Aviation, the use of the first and the second phase
of the realization of island 400, island 500 is approved.

Investment "Procurement of passenger vehicles for apron”

» Purpose: Passenger cars used to support aircraft handling jobs, apron management
jobs and operational sectors for maintenance of Airport Nikola Tesla. The aim of this
project is procurement of passenger cars which will be used on maneuvering areas of
the airport.

o Status: The Public procurement is launched according to the decision on investment
adopted by the Supervisory board. ‘

Investment "Machines and special means and vehicles for maintenance of maneuvering
surfaces"

*  Purpose: The purpose of this project is to improve the existing technology in the field of
maintenance of maneuvering surfaces and technological equipment, through the
procurement of dedicated and special means, machinery and equipment to support the
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maintenance of maneuvering surfaces in regular conditions, as well as maintenance of
equipment in technological processes of ground handling.

e Status: Preparation phase for the implementation of procurement in progress. The
public procurement is planned in the procurement plan for the year 2017. The decision
of the Supervisory Board DG 907/2017 on March 16, 2017 approved investment.
Procedure for preparing the documentation for the implementation of the procurement
in progress.

7.1. DESCRIPTION OF ALL SIGNIFICANT OCCURENCES AFTER THE PERIOD |-VI 2017

The Republic Geodetic Authority, the Surcin County Property Cadastre, passed on 19.07.2017
Decision allowing registration of ownership rights in favor of JSC Belgrade Nikola Tesla Airport
on real estate in the real estate list No. 452 KO Sur¢in, on the cadastral lot 4109/1, a field of the
2nd class of 2638 m2, and on the cadastral lot 4109/2, a field of the 2nd class, with an area of
8599 m2.

Project of land allotment and reallotment at the airport complex

o Status: Drafting of allotment/reallotment project is under way on the basis of a contract
with the "ABA Geodetic House", which was concluded following the conducted public
procurement procedure.

The Service Provider prepared preliminary proposals that are considered in the ANT and
will be coordinated with other entities at the Airport Complex.

Geodetic surveys are underway to update the state of geodetic documentation.

Legalisation of facilities

e Status: Contract concluded with Energoprojekt Industrija (Contract No. UIJNV - 61/2017
dated 11.07.2017) for the preparation of the necessary documentation for the
legalization of the facilities. Realisation of the Contract is in process.

Procurement of information system for integration of services at the application level

* Purpose: The intended procurement involves a set of information solutions and tools designed
to support business, ie solutions that will provide IT support to ultimate business processes,
which involve the exchange -of information between multiple heterogeneous information
systems, and direct human interaction with business processes. The purpose of the subject
acquisition is to integrate all heterogeneous application environments into a single system, in
order to automate the process, as well as faster forwarding, ie exchange of information and
services.

The complexity of the application environment and the demands for increasing availability and
availability of critical services have highlighted the need for diverse applications to integrate with
the aim of automating process and forwardmg or exchange of information. The need for
integration exists from internal corporate services, to applications that are related to the basic
function that the Airport performs in the transport of passengers in air traffic. The project should
provide a framework for the integration of the application environment of the Airport Services.
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The goal of the decision is to eliminate manual activity, wherever possible, as well as
consolidate and integrate all relevant business process-related data into a single centralized
platform, which will be the main point for monitoring, control and optimization of the processes.
The integration of heterogeneous information systems, implemented in different technologies
and with different interfaces, is the basic task and goal of the mentioned procurement, which will
rely on the existing information infrastructure and the implementation of the business process
logic with the established communications of all participating information systems. The process
platform of the envisaged system, besides providing the environment for the execution of the
process, envisions a set of new tools for designing and testing integration and process, then for
monitoring key processes and later optimization of the process, thus closing the complete circle
of business process management.

Delivery of the hardware platform was on July 17, 2017, and the first steps in the
implementation of the system will start within 30 days.

On 17.07.2017 the Commission for the Protection of Competition was submitted an amendment
to the individual exemption request No. 4/0-03-192/2017-1 dated February 2, 2017. The change
was made by the Lessee "Dufry", it was registered under the number 5270/17 dated
17.07.2017, and the registered number of JSC Belgrade Nikola Tesla Airport is GD-3876/2017
of 17.07.2017.

Analysis, planning and development of human resources

In the period after 30/06/2017 until today there were five internal advertisements and two
external selections published in the field of analysis, planning and development of human
resources at Airport Nikola Tesla Belgrade.

Table review of internal selections after 30/06/2017

internal advertisement Applicants
Assistant foreman of the sorting area 3
Driver on baggage delivery within the airport 11
complex
Warehouse equipment operator 5
Auxiliary worker - cleaning /
Worker for maintenance of sewer installations 1

Table review of external selections after 30/06/2017

Number of
Date of . Lo . Number of selected
selection Selection for positions recryited candidates
~ candidates
04/07/2017 X-ray screener 1 1

12/07/2017 Hostess of the airport B 6

Procurement of Container for employees and parking booth

* Purpose: The purpose of purchasing a container / parking booth is to improve the
quality of service within the OU Logistics and OU Securities.
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The subject of investment are following goods that serve the following purposes:

- Parking booths for accommodation of employees in open parking lots ANT (P10, P8, P7,
P5/6, P3 and P9) for the needs of the OU Logistics;

- Containers for the installation of complete equipment for the removal of aircraft, with the
possibility of transporting them through low-floor trailers, for the needs of the QU Security;

- Containers for the storage of spare parts for EDS sorting area and gates, for the needs of
OU Security.

At the moment there are parking booths placed on the parking lots P8, P7 and P9 temporarily.
They are worn out and do not comply with legal regulations, according to which the employer is
obliged to provide the employee with a workplace where the measures for safe and healthy
work are implemented.

The parking positions P10, P5 / 6 and P3 are not covered by parking booths, and given that
parking P3 is already in commercial use, as well as the plan to introduce the parking lots P10
and P5 / 6 for commercial use, the purchase of parking booths allows employees / collectors
have their place in parking positions, where they could provide support to customers.

For the needs of the OU Security, containers are purchased for the accommodation of complete
equipment for the removal of aircraft, with the possibility of transporting them through low-floor
trailers, while the aforementioned equipment is located in various transport boxes that have
arrived from the supplier and which are intended only for transportation to the customer and
after opening they do not have their functionality and are, as such, unsafe for further use and
transport.

The aforementioned equipment has a logical order of packing and matching with other
equipment, depending on the situation, and by unification, it facilitates the transport and use of
the same.

Also, there is a need for containers for the storage of spare parts for the EDS (explosive
detection system) - sorting area and gates, and for the needs of QU Security. At present, the X-
ray screening control has about 40 X-ray devices, about 40 walk-though metal detectors, 20
explosive detection detectors, 5 liquid explosive detectors and a lot of accompanying
equipment, All this equipment requires maintenance, replacement of spare parts as well as
stock of new spare parts.

X-ray screening control currently has only one warehouse in the Terminal 2 sorting ara, a useful
area of about 10 square meters, which is insufficient for the foregoing.

The subject procurement improves the quality of business for the mentioned segments within
OU Logistics and Security. :

Tender opening session for procurement of Containers for employees and parking booths was
completed on 24/07/2017 and drawing up of the Report on experts' assessment of tenders is in
progress.

Trainings of employees in the field of security X-ray screening

In accordance with regulations from aviation security field Airport Nikola Tesla Belgrade is
obliged to perform training on aviation security, i.e. ensure appropriate initial, periodic and
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additional training. Persons must successfully pass the relevant training before they got
authorised to independently perform security controls.

The trainings are carried out according to a curriculum approved by the Civil Aviation
Directorate of the Republic of Serbia.

Implementation of training for operators of the X-ray screening sector continued in May 2017,
organized by the Center for Vocational Training of Belgrade Nikola Tesla Airport, as follows:

- Training for persons performing X-ray screening of passengers and non-travelers

- Training of persons performing X-ray screening of hand baggage, hold baggage and
cargo and mail.

- Training of persons performing X-ray screening of passengers, persons other than
passengers and items they carry with them.

Organised tenders:

X-ray screening devices per lots

Lot 1: X-ray screening devices for items carried by persons other than passengers 60X40 2is,
(3 pieces),
Lot 2: X-ray device three pieces:
- one with the tunnel opening of 180X180 2uc,
- one with the tunnel opening of 145X180 2uc,
- one with the tunnel opening of 130X130 2uc.
The contract is concluded with the company Jugoscan d.o.o. for both lots.
Delivered in June 2017.

X-ray screeners using millimetric waves

The contract is concluded with the company Centum d.o.o.
Delivered in May 2017.

Liquid explosives detectors

The contract is concluded with the company Security Company Kobra d.o.o0.
Delivered in July 2017.

Walk-through metal detector

The contract is concluded with the company Jugoscan d.0.0.
Delivered in May 2017.
Explosive trace detectors

The contract is concluded with the company Analysis d.o.o.
Delivery was in April 2017.
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Detector of prohibited items hidden in shoes

The contract is concluded with the company Jugoscan d.0.0.
Delivered in June 2017.

Walik-through metal detector, 6 pieces

The X-ray Sector needs walk-through metal detector of standard 2 for new staff only access
points. '

6 (six) walk-through metal detectors for screening of passengers at gate waiting rooms need to
be purchased. Airport Nikola Tesla has 4 (four) walk-through metal detectors of standard 1
which cannot be upgraded. Walk-through metal detectors will be of the requested standard 2,
with advanced features such as:

- More localised zones of detection;

Smaller dimensions of the door;

- Count function;

- OQutputs for CCTV;

High adaptability during installation (no external interferences).

Walk-through metal detectors will be installed at the position D2, where currently only hand
baggage is screened. One walk-through metal detector will be a spare device in case of
failure of those devices in use, to avoid capacity decrease in waiting rooms and slowing down
the flow of passengers, employees and third persons.

Public procurement published on 30/09/2016

Tender opening: 07/11/2016
WTMD installed in certain gates in January 2017.

X-ray screener for the sorting area in Terminal 1 (from 2016)

In 2016 OU X-ray screening planned procurement "X-ray screener of standard 3" for secu rity
screening of hold baggage in Terminal 1 within reconstruction of the sorting area in the
Terminal 1. This is a procurement for the year of 2016. Realisation commenced in 2017 and
the planned deadline of completion of works is the end of May (second quarter)

Island 500 where there are new X-ray devices in standard 3 (2 pieces in sorting area T1)
opened in June. ; s

Also, within the reconstruction of the Terminal 2, a device for screening of oversized baggage
with opening 130x130xm, brand Smiths Heimann GmbH has been procured.

X-ray screening devices per lots (from the plan for 2016)

LOT 1: X-ray screening devices for security screening of employees and persons other than
passengers at official accesses, with the opening 60x40 (5 pieces).

The contract is concluded with the company Jugoscan d.o.o.

Delivery was.in February 2017.
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LOT 2: Portable screening device for security screening of suspicious and unattended baggage
and items.

The contract is concluded with the company Centum d.0.0.

Delivery was in April 2017.

LOT 3: Mobile x-ray screening devise for security screening in emergency situations.

The contract is concluded with the company Jugoscan d.o.0.
Delivery was in March 2017.

Container for employees and parking booth

Conducted procurement of total 11 containers for employees for the following organisational
units:

OU Operations and safety management - 2 containers, one is double

OU Security - 3 containers, 2 are double

OU Logistics - 1 parking booth

OU Commercial and Marketing - 2 containers

Public procurement published on 09/12/2016

Contract concluded: on 28/02017 with a group of tenderers Dunex d.0.0. and Tehnix Beo d.0.0.
for the amount of RSD 6,570,000.00, VAT excluded.

Container for requirements of X-ray screening (screening of employees) on E security check
point is delivered and in use from May 2017.

The goods from the public procurement delivered in the period 07/04-18/04/2017.

Automotive robot-vehicle for explosives

Possessing of this device maximally increase solution of suspicious situations, thus it decrease
potential losses of the airport due to longer closure of operations because of blockage or
laboured passenger handling. It provides higher safety of participants in the security action as
they act from distance. Modern robots are used for neutralising of diversion-terrorist devices, for
reconnaissance and surveillance, convoy, transport and fire-rescue, as well as for checking of
people and vehicles.

Public procurement published; 21/02/2017

The Decision on contract award was adopted on 25/04/2017 and the contract is awarded to
JUGOSCAN for the amount of RSD 54,625,000.00, VAT excluded.

The contract concluded on 06/06/2017; delivery term: 90 days from the date of order.

Drone detectors and jammers

Drones, primarily intended for use in civil purposes, are more and more used in criminal
activities. Drone usage started with spying of private, industrial activities and advanced
technologies, and went on with smuggling of narcotics and weapons, first cross-board and then
farther. Ever since potential risks have increased intensively.
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Drones may appear above critical infrastructure, governmental bodies. They may cause pubiic
restlessness (for example at football match Serbia - Albania, on 14/1 0/2014) which can lead to
violence. Several tests prove that armed drone may kill from the air. In recent years drones
started appearing in airport area and, as they are comparatively small, it is difficult to spot them
on the CCTV system. In this way they endanger safe air traffic as aircrafts are the most
vulnerable at landing and take off and from the point of statistics most of aircraft accidents
happens then (80%).

Systems for protection from drones have a unique approach, based on radio-controlled link, of
high reliability and with low rate of false alarms. They have option of early warning, meaning
high speed of response, even before take off of the drones. They provide a review of all
activities of a drone and automatic alarm on a threat emerging in a defined defended area. They
have advanced geographical location with identification and precise direction of a drone and a
person controlling it. Effective counter-measures may be applied, primarily such as usage of
highly precise jammer of low power (reactive and selective jamming).

Public procurement published: 10/02/2017
The Decision on contract award was adopted on 29/03/2017 and the contract is awarded to
Comtrade System Integration Belgrade for the amount of RSD 94,231,339.50, VAT excluded.

In the period January-March one big fire-fighting vehicle with hand for fire extinguishing was
delivered to OU Sector for fire rescue and protection. By delivery of the vehicle we have
reached and secured sustainability of fire-fighting category 7 and unimpeded upgrade to
categories 8 and 9 as needed.

An annex for pushback tugs for aircrafts delivered - a part which enables us to place the tugs
under the nose gear in case of removal of the aircraft and thus remove the aircraft without nose
landing gear.

Public procurement procedure for fire-fighting vehicle 6x6 with fire-fighting hand. Delivery is
expected in the mid-December of 2017, which will secure and strengthen readiness for fire-
fighting category 10. Value of the public procurement is EUR 989,000.00.

The "pressure tank" simulator was delivered to train members of a rescue and fire fighting unit
during the combustion of pressure gases.

The simulator "Desktop simulator of the hydraulic firearm for simmering fire" was delivered for
the training of firefighters-drivers and fire fighters-rescuers for operating extended arm for fire
fighting (HRET).

The simulator "helicopter with a wing motor and landing gear” is being installed for the training
of members of the rescue firefighter unit, in which real training will be conducted and training of
firefighters in real conditions on the firefighting field.

It will also provide conditions for the training of members of the firefighting units from other
airports in the region, which would contribute to the increase of airport profits.

Audit: } S

1. Aegean audit 20-21.3
2. Eurowings audit 27.3
3. Austrian airlines audit 19.04 subject of the audit: Manual for safety management.
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4. Pagasus airlines 27.04

5. Croatia airlines audit 13.06 subject of the audit: Manual for safety management,
System for reporting on air traffic security, Airport emergency plan.

6. lIsrair 19.06 audit subject of the audit: Manual for safety management, System for
reporting on air traffic security, Airport emergency plan.

7. WIZZ Air, Ryanair, Easy Jet audit subject of the audit: protection from birds and other
animals

In the period from June 21-24, JSC Belgrade Nikola Tesla Airport accepted 23 aircraft with
foreign delegations at the highest state level who brought the Presidents, Prime Ministers,
Ministers of Foreign Affairs, the Presidents of Parliaments and personal envoys from other
countries to the inauguration of the new President of the Republic of Serbia, Aleksandar Vucic .

Investment "Automatic and segment doors for Terminal, CCW and VIP lounges"

* Purpose: The purpose of this project is to purchase new doors in Terminal T1, drive grups for
automatic doors in VIP lounge and segment doors in the Cargo warehouse due to the obsolete
existing equipment, the inability to purchase adequate spare parts and the ineffective
maintenance.

» Status: The preparatory phase for the implementation of procurement in progress. The public
procurement is planned in the procurement plan for the year 2017. The decision of the
Supervisory Board DG 3361/2017 of 22.06.2017 approved investment. The procedure for
preparation of the public procurement procedure is in progress.

Investment "Elevators and escalators"

+ Purpose: Elevators and escalators, planned for general reconstruction, after forty years of
exploitation, are increasingly more subject to downtime. Original spare parts, especially
mechanical ones, can no longer be obtained due to the obsolescence of the equipment, so the
deadlock lasts longer. Due to the deterioration of the components of the equipment, repair of
one mechanical part causes an accelerated problem occurrence in the mechanically connected
part. Increasing number of passengers through terminal 1 expected in the coming vyears
requires increasing reliability and safety of lifts and escalators for the needs of passengers in
terminal 1. General reconstruction of elevators and escalators in terminal 1 is the only way to
provide quality, reliable and safe services to passengers in that area.

- Status: The preparatory phase for the implementation of procurement in progress. The public
procurement is planned in the procurement plan for the year 2017. The decision of the
Supervisory Board DG 3361/2017 of 22.06.2017 approved investment. The procedure for
preparation of the public procurement procedure is in progress.
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Investment "Machines and special means and vehicles for maintenance of maneuvering

surfaces"

Purpose: The purpose of this project is to improve the existing technology in the field of
maintenance of maneuvering surfaces and technological equipment, through the
procurement of dedicated and special means, machinery and equipment to support the
maintenance of maneuvering surfaces in regular conditions, as well as maintenance of
equipment in technological processes of ground handling.

* Status: Realisation of the public procurement in progress. The public procurement is

planned in the procurement plan for the year 2017. The decision of the Supervisory
Board DG 907/2017 on March 16, 2017 approved investment. Procedure for
implementation of the procurement is in the final stage, tender opening realized on
12.07.2017.

Investment "Bagqage conveyor system"

e Purpose: It assumes procurement of conveyor systems on the location - connecting part

between T1 and T2 and T1, provision of baggage check-in counters, baggage carousels,
conveyors, baggage screening devices and central monitoring and management
systems. It also assumes installation/de-installation works, adjustment and putting into
action through phases.

Status: Realisation of the contract is in process.

The public procurement was commences and published on the web site on 04/04/2016.
Tender opening session was carried out on 10/05/2016. The contract is signed with a
group of tenderers PREMAR SERVICES AG, Zug, Switzerland and PROFLUSS GmbH,
Leichlingen, Germany in the amount of EUR 6.299.985,50, excluding VAT. The Contract
is recorded in the Archive of the Airport on 15/06/2016.

Decision of Civil Aviation Directorate approved use of the first and second phase of
realization, island 400, island 500. After second half of July is expected realization of
island ocTpsa 600 with commissioning and provision of approval of the regulatory body
of Civil Aviation Directorate.

Investment ,, Service of greé aration of the study and project-technical documentation for

the improvement of the filed lighting system "

+ Purpose: Procurement of dedicated machines for performance on road construction for

maintenance of the field lighting system.

Status: Realisation is in process.
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Procurement of 2 belt conveyers - elevators

Purpose: Increase of capacity and quality of services provided to air carriers in relation
to aircraft handling during baggage, cargo and mail embarkation and disembarkation.
Value: RSD 11.500.000,00, VAT excluded

Supplier: CENTUM d.o.0, Public procurement contract no 3/2017 dated 13/02/2017
Status: The elevators were delivered on 22/02/2017.

They have been in use since 16/03/2017.

Procurement of 3 electric tractors— dolley tractor

Purpose: increase of capacity and quality of services provided to air carriers during
aircraft handling.

Value: RSD 11.700.000,00, VAT excluded

Supplier: EUROPLAST INTERNATIONAL d.o.0, Public procurement contract no.
17-37/2016 dated 29/02/2016.

Status: Electric tractors are delivered (one on 06.02.2017),(two on 07.03.2017)

They have been in use since 15/05/2017.

Procurement of 6 container dollies

Purpose: Increase of capacity and quality of services provided to air carriers in relation
to aircraft handling during baggage, cargo and mail transportation.

Value: EUR 17.800,00, VAT excluded

Supplier: "MILOCO PRODUCTION", Public procurement contract no UJVN-12/2017
dated 28/02/2017

Status: The dollies were delivered on 06/04/2017.

They have been in use since 04/05/2017.

Procurement of 1 cafgo loader, capacity 20 t

Purpose: Increase of capacity and quality of services provided to air carriers in relation
to aircraft handling during baggage, cargo and mail embarkation and disembarkation.
Value: RSD 41.458.000,00, VAT excluded

Supplier: CENTUM d.d.o, Public procurement contract no 17/2017 dated 30/01/2017
Status: Cargo transporter delivered on 28/04/2017

It has been in use since 10/05/2017.
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Procurement of 1 drawbar for push-back of aircraft type—~ Bombardier CS100/CS300

e Purpose: Increase of capacity and quality of services provided to air carriers in relation
to aircraft handling during aircraft push-back.

¢ Value: RSD 689.000,00, VAT excluded

* Supplier: PROCES INZENJERING d.o.0., Public procurement contract no UINM13/2017
dated 24/03/2017.

» Status: Drawbar is delivered on 12.05.2017.

* It has been in use since 04/07/2017.

Procurement of 2 passenger vans - FIAT 500L TALENTO

* Purpose: Increase of capacity and quality of services provided to air carriers during
aircraft handling as well as for transport of employees.

¢ Value: RSD 8.459.712,50, VAT excluded

¢ Supplier: FCA SRBIJA d.0.0., Public procurement contract no UJNV 4/2017 dated
17/02/2017.

» Status: The vehicles were delivered on 17/05/2017.

* They have been in use since 24/05/2017.

Procurement of 4 cargo delivery vehicles - FIAT 500L DOBLO

e Purpose: Increase of capacity and quality of services provided to air carriers during
delivery of lost baggage.

¢ Value: RSD 6.295.800,00, VAT excluded

» Supplier: FCA SRBIJA d.o.0., Public procurement contract no UJNV 5/2017 dated
17/02/2017.

* Status: The vehicles were delivered on 17/05/2017.

* They have been in use since 25/05/2017.

Procurement of 1 cargo loader, capacity 7 t

* Purpose: Increase of capacity and quality of services provided to air carriers in relation
to aircraft handling during baggage, cargo and mail embarkation and disembarkation.

* Value: RSD 22.483.000,00, VAT excluded

* Supplier: CENTUM d.o.0, Public procurement contract no 17-11/2017 dated 30/01/2017

e Status: Cargo loader delivered on 26/05/2017

* lIthas been in use since 19/06/2017.
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Procurement of 6 palette dollies

Purpose: Increase of capacity and quality of services provided to air carriers in relation
to aircraft handling during baggage, cargo and mail transportation.

Value: RSD 4.199.000,00, VAT excluded

Supplier: EUROPLAST INTERNATIONAL d.o.o, Public procurement contract no 17-
12/2017 dated 06/02/2017

Status: The trailers were delivered on 02/06/2017.

They have been in use since 15/06/2017.

Procurement of 1 passenger vans - FIAT 500L DUKATO

Purpose: increase of capacity and quality of services provided to air carriers during crew
transportation.

Value: RSD 8.459.712 50, VAT excluded

Supplier: FCA SRBIJA d.o.0., Public procurement contract no UJNV 4/2017 dated
17/02/2017.

Status: The vehicles were delivered on 19/06/2017.

They have been in use since 25/06/2017.

Procurement of 4 passenger cars - FIAT 500L

Purpose: Increase of capacity and quality of services provided to air carriers during
aircraft handling.

Value: RSD 15.743.635,00, VAT excluded

Supplier: FCA SRBIJA d.o.0., Public procurement contract no UJNV 6/2017 dated
17/02/2017.

Status: The vehicles were delivered on 19/07/2017.

It is expected to put them in use on 01/08/2017.
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Internal risks:

» Fulfilled projected airport capacities in terms of number of passengers, commercial offer
with rising demand and parking positions,

* Deterioration of the part of the existing infrastructure (part of maneuvering areas, part of
capacities of the Terminal building, part of primary heating network, primary branches of
the part of the water and sewage system are older than 40 years, fire-rescue facility is
not up to the conditions of such purpose),

e Unsolved property-legal relations in regard to land lots and facilities in the vicinity of the
Airport, at the locations projected for potential expansion of airport complex.

External risks:

* Limitation of development in accordance to the existing obsolete Plan until adoption of
the new plan.

* Growing competition of international neighbouring airports,

* Inadequate connectedness with city centre and wider area in Serbia, considering the
trend of passenger number increasing and introduction of direct flights to USA.

* Requirement for continuing improvement of security measures and consequently
increase of expenses,

e Expansion of other airports in Serbia and potential redirection of a part of traffic flow,
competition increase at local level,

* Small number of bidder owning licences for drawing up of technical documentation, i.e.
facility construction, for which the Ministry issues certificates (for airports for public air-
traffic),

» Seasonality and demand fluctuation, which may represent a challenge in future capacity
planning

Opinion of the Commission for protection of competition. On 02/02/2017 based on the filed
Request for disclosure of information, submission of data and documentation to the Commission
for protection of competition of the Republic of Serbia for individual exemption of the Lease
agreement (revised text) no. 14-61/2016 dated 20/12/2016 with the Lessee Dufry, the most
significant risk and uncertainties refer to the part of the agreement, where, at Dufry's insistence
are added provision on indemnification in case of a negative decision of the Commission for
protection o competition, according to which all term sheets of the Agreement, including lease
price will be negotiated, but the Airport will not be liable for missed profit or possible fines
prescribed by the Commission upon this Agreement, and for possible finds for the period from
2006 until 2016 provisions of the Basic Agreement will be applied, proscribing that Airport Nikola
Tesla Belgrade is liable for all fines.

Procedure for granting concession for JSC Airport Nikola Tesla Belgrade, which was

published on 10/02/2017, is in progress and numerous factors can impact the outcome of the
procedure.
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In the period I-1ll 2017 there was a risk of spreading of terrorist attacks from 2016, more and
more often aiming airports. That indicated necessity of increased vigilance and control at Airport
Nikola Tesla Belgrade. In the public area, where security checks are not carried out, great
importance is attached to video surveillance and frequent security patrols.

Based on risk assessment carried out by security authorities in 21086, it is recommended to
introduce additional security measures amounting to procurement of new equipment and
devices, as well as engagement of greater number of persons who will be trained for the
indicated positions.

The additional security measures encompass training procedures for employees and public
procurement of equipment and those cannot be completed in short period of time, which can
cause vulnerability of security system at the Airport.

In relation to OU Sector for fire rescue and protection, in the period January - March 2017
the Airport risk fines from CAD and the Emergency Sector for non-performance of the
procurement of professional examination in the field of Fire protection, servicing of fire
extinguishers and fire hydrants and servicing of breathing apparatus as taking these measures
is an obligation.

At the AOC meeting in June, announcements were made about the increased risks of the
existence of electronic devices (most relevant to laptops) in hand luggage. It is stated that
consideration is being given to possible measures that will be applied in terms of screening this
type of devices. They also consider the prohibition of their carrying in hand luggage.

A smaller number of employees in the GH in relation to the needs anticipated by the
analysis of the required number of employees, so that with the increased volume of traffic,
passengers, goods and mail, employees are making an extraordinary effort to ensure that the
flights are handled in the first place safely, and then on time according to quality standards that
are in our Company at the highest level.
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Due to market risks influencing financial instrument, the management of the Company
monitors in detail movements leading to risks and takes necessary risk management measures.

9.1. MARKET RISK

During analysis of the market and its impact on Company operations, primarily on financial
instruments, the Company considers exchange rate changes risks (currency risk), risk of
interest rate changes and risk of service price changes.

Currency risk (foreign exchange risk)

Considering balance and sources of resources of the Company on 30/06/2017 and
primarily cash and cash equivalents, receivables from buyers, liabilities per long-term loans and
similar we could say that the Company is not imposed to foreign exchange risks.

By detailed analysis of currency structure of the assets and liabilities on 30/06/2017, we
can ascertain that the financial assets are contracted with currency clause and that they are
higher than currency financial liabilities. Financial liabilities contracted in foreign currency are
generally of long-term nature. Based on the above facts it results that Airport Nikola Tesla
Belgrade does not operate with high currency risk.

a) Risk of interest rate change
Risk of interest rate change is not significant risk for the Company. Most of the financial
instruments categories contracted with interest are defined with fixed interest rate.

9.2. CREDIT RISK

The company estimates that beside market risks to which financial instruments can be
imposed it is also necessary to monitor credit risks. The company has receivables from
domestic and foreign buyers so there is credit risk. To reduce this risk, the Company regularly
monitors the realisation of the collection, analyses the value of the collection achieved within the
contracted period, payment delays and outstanding receivables.

9.3. LIQUIDITY AND CASH FLOW RISK

Liquidity risk management requires special attention of the management of the
Company which established business policy mainly based on financing from its own resources.
Borrowed resources are mainiy long-term resources and short-term liabilities can be covered
with long-term receivables.

Looking at liquidity indicators, we note that current and accelerated liquidity ratios
are above 4.4, indicating that the Company is able to settle its current and short-term liabilities
within maturity of its own sources.

The average time of collection of receivables amounts to an average of 55 days (77 days in
the same period of 2016). It is important to give high priority to collecting matured receivables,
to provide payment mechanisms with constant monitoring of the balance of receivables and
daily updating of payments with the permitted mechanisms, as indicated by the indicator of the
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customer turnover ratio of 3.3. The average payback time for suppliers is on average 19 days
(63 days in the same period of 2016). We emphasize that the Company settles its current
obligations within the agreed deadlines and that the supplier's turnover ratio is 9.3.

JSC Belgrade Nikola Teslia Airport does not have any related parties under the
Companies Act (Official Gazette of RS No. 36/2011, 99/2011, 83/2014 and 5/2015, Article 62),
respectively, there are no business activities with related parties.

10.1. BRANCHES

JSC Airport Nikola Tesla does not have any branches within the Company.

Belgrade, August 2017

Directqr of OU Finance

{i‘)‘ 7 { )
{/ H e o0 4 2
yi LA ; j e f et e

Ddhiila Pejovic,

o

Executive Eireg}ﬁ? ) f

e i // ,»

( VYA
Raga Ristivojevid,/ | 7

Under power of/attoriiéy: UOP-] 3510-20
dated 08/08/2047

{
:

P -

o o

86
Business report for the period I-VI 2017



Director General’s Office

11180 Beorpag 59, Cpbuja T:+381 11 209 4802 E: kabuHer.abHT@6Ger.aepo
CUTA: BEFTOWXX ®: +381 11 2286187 www.ber.aepo
STATEMENT

Hereby we state that, according to our best knowledge, the Quarterly report for the second
quarter, which contains data for the period I-VI 2017, is drafted in line with appropriate
international standards of financial reporting and that it shows true and impartial data on
property, obligations, financial position and operating, profits and losses, cash flows and

changes on the capital of the Company.
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